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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents
of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of
this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
(the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no
any other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

M5 E
RESULTS

A summary of the consolidated results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the five accounting years ended
31 December 2019 prepared under the International Financial

Reporting Standards is as follows:

ES

AARIREWBAR(IASEE ) EZE2019F12
A31B It ARSI FEZEEEEREIEERE
S mEEABRNT

For the year ended 31 December

HBE12A31BILEE

2019 2018 2017 2016
20194 20184 20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AR%¥TR ARETT ARETT ARETTT
(GESEE))
€ ==
Turnover S 2,716,799 2,613,904 2,397,084 2,772,369 3,186,352
Profit before income tax K SRR 69,559 47,738 82,502 67,703 71,785
Income tax expense FTiSHi =2 (26,785) (20,130) (19,751) (10,067) (12,306)
Profit for the year F [ i A 42,774 27,608 62,751 57,636 59,479
Profit attributable to Y& G &= T
Non-controlling interests IR AE R 33,320 25,039 21,219 14,253 5,795
Owners of the Company ZiN/NSIEZE DN 9,070 4,759 41,532 43,383 53,684
Basic earnings per share FRREARZF
(RMB) (AR®IT) 0.03 0.01 0.12 0.12 0.15
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE

A summary of the assets and liabilities of the Group as at the
year end for the five accounting years ended 31 December 2019
prepared under the International Financial Reporting Standards is

as follows:

REBHZE2019F12A831B It A A€t FEH
RKZEEBEME NIRRT SRS ZLFR 0
™

As at 31 December

M®12A318

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
20194 20184 20174 20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETRT ARETIT AREBTT ARETT ARETT

(Restated)  (Restated)

(&ZE=7) (&=71)
Non-current assets EREEE 790,171 744,410 757,431 759,775 631,791
Current assets MBEE 2,170,017 1,858,051 2,040,152 1,902,111 1,947,570
Total assets BEMRE 2,960,188 2,602,461 2,797,583 2,661,886 2,579,361
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 130,146 70,404 114,766 115,560 6,243
Current liabilities mEafE 1,745,365 1,466,121 1,620,717 1,523,961 1,681,942
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR RE S 118,556 108,859 103,280 94,493 84,857

Liabilities and B R MR

non-controlling interests 1,913,481 1,645,384 1,838,763 1,734,014 1,773,042
Total equity M 4AEE 1,084,677 1,065,936 1,062,100 1,022,365 891,176

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

REBBSFEVREBENERAT



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”),
| am pleased to present the audited consolidated financial results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 to all
shareholders.

RESULTS OF THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year”), turnover
of the Group amounted to approximately RMB2,716,799,000
(2018: RMB2,613,904,000), representing an increase of
approximately 3.94% as compared with the corresponding period
of last year. Profit and total comprehensive income attributable
to the shareholders was approximately RMB9,070,000 (2018:
RMB4,759,000) and the earnings per share was approximately
RMB0.03 (2018: RMB0.01).

o =+
E S
AANBREARFESTS([EF2 ) RARIRR

EEHE2019F12A31B L FERBZ ZAH
WSS PR SURREE -

REERER

HE2019F12A31BLEFE(AFE]D) - A%
B &EBEENHARBK2716,799,0007(2018
& AR#2,613,904,0007T) @ 8 4 RIERE N
#13.94% - REEEEF RE2EMBABEBNAA
R #9,070,0007T(2018%F : 4,759,0007T ) » &
B ZF 4 B AR0.037L(20184F + AR¥0.01
TT) e
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERRE

As of 31 December 2019, the total assets and current assets
of the Group were approximately RMB2,960,188,000 (2018:
RMB2,602,461,000) and approximately RMB2,170,017,000
(2018: 1,858,051,000), respectively, representing an increase of
RMB357,727,000 and RMB311,966,000 as compared with 31
December 2018, respectively. Our net assets attributable to the
parent company and net assets per share at the end of the year
were approximately RMB966,121,000 (2018: RMB957,077,000)
and approximately RMB2.73 (2018: RMB2.70), respectively, both
representing an increase of approximately 1% as compared with
31 December 2018.

REVIEW FOR THE YEAR

In 2019, facing a complex international environment, with a firm
commitment to putting the philosophy of new development into
practice, China pushed forward high-quality development and
promoted continuous optimization and upgrading of its economic
structure. Its economic performance continued to remain at a
reasonable range, and the overall trend of stable, steady and
progressive development has perpetuated. Gross domestic
product in 2019 increased by 6.1% over last year. Facing the
downward pressure on the economy and the regional financial
risks in Tianjin, the Company stood firm on the working principle
of "steady progress”, maintained efficient operation and steadily
pushed ahead various work. The logistics transportation industry
is still undergoing transformation, causing substantial changes
in transportation resources, transportation costs and means of
transportation. In order to adapt to the changes of international
and domestic economic environment and policies, the logistics
industry is still in the process of innovation in the midst of
explorations.

Faced with the severe economic situation in 2019, the Group has
continued to strengthen its internal fundamental management,
integrated various resources, cooperated with its subsidiaries to
explore new customers and cultivated core competitive strengths
and new sources of profit growth. Benefitted from the growth
in results of its automobile logistics business, enhancement of
management and development of new projects, the overall
performance of the Group improved as compared with the same
period last year.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

HE2019F12A3IH A5 BENBEENK
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The Group all along adhered to the development strategy of
integrated logistics business and upheld the general working
principle of “steady progress”. The Group also actively expanded
its businesses, strictly controlled business risks and cultivated new
sources of profit growth.

As market risks increased, the Group adjusted its materials
procurement business, attached greater emphasis to risk control
and enhanced assessment and monitoring of customer risks.
The materials procurement business was in a sound condition
throughout 2019. For major projects, advantageous resources
were concentrated to ensure smooth progress. Regarding business
segments with lower operational efficiency, the Group pushed
ahead the mixed-ownership reform to introduce new resources
and stimulate internal vibrancy. During the Year, the Group
commenced deregistration of He Guang Trade and Business Co.,
Ltd., an underperforming subsidiary of the Company. Meanwhile,
the Group continued to strengthen its advantages in traditional
business segments such as automobile logistics and electronic
components logistics, and integrated its superior resources to
secure new customers and developed new business. The Group
actively pushed forward the transformation and upgrading
of the cold chain logistic business, continued to approach
potential investors and strategic investors and explored long-term
development strategies for the cold chain logistic business.

In order to adapt to the new economic situation and its own
development stage, the Company constantly strengthened
its internal management, promoted the reform of the “three
systems”, adjusted organization, consolidated the functions of
departments, optimized its appraisal and incentive mechanisms,
stimulated staff vitality and established an efficient communication
and collaboration mechanism.

The Group further improved its budget management, funding
management and financing management. The Group revised the
system for budget management and established a conference
mechanism for budget management, with a combination of
bottom-up statistics and top-down feedback and revision, which
enabled more scientific and controllable budget. Meanwhile,
the Group established a system of monthly funding meeting,
enhanced funding plans and payment management and prevent
funding risk. Financing system was also improved and various
means of financing were standardized.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERWE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERRE

Under the guidance of the Audit Committee of the Board, the
Group continued to take forward its annual internal audit work
and extended the internal audit work to the subsidiaries of the
Company. During the Year, the Group completed several special
audits, which effectively improved the internal management of
each subsidiary and enhanced the Company’s control over its
subsidiaries.

In terms of information construction, in order to cater for its
business expansion, improve internal business processes and
realize business and finance integration, the Company initiated the
construction of a smart operation platform to form an integration
system integrating existing business, finance and OA (office
automation) systems and improve data compatibility and decision-
making efficiency, providing comprehensive technical support for
the business development of the Group.

The Group has always implemented the working principle of
“safety first, prevention focused, innovative services, management
efficiency”, and continued to strengthen the long-term mechanism
of safety management enhancement. The management at all
levels signed the “Work Safety Responsibility Letter” and broke
down the objectives and tasks of work safety, thus creating a
systematic and comprehensive work environment of production
safety. The Company strengthened safety awareness of all staff,
and regularly carried out activities in relation to disaster prevention
and mitigation, safety month activities and fire protection week
activities. During the Year, the Group carried out a number of
production safety education activities and carried out fire drills
to improve the safety skills of all staff. There were no major
production safety accidents throughout the Year. The Company’s
properties and employees’ personal safety were well protected.

With attention to social responsibilities, the Group put great
emphasis to green operation and production safety, and focused
on talent cultivation. The Group encouraged its employees to save
water and electricity, evaluated environmental risks and formulated
counter-measures, so as to reduce consumption of resources and
impact on the environment.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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PROSPECT AND VISION

In 2020, the international political, economic and ecological
environment will remain complex and severe, and the downward
pressure on domestic economy remains significant. Moreover,
the impact of the ongoing coronavirus outbreak on economic
development is unprecedented. As competition in the logistics
industry intensifies, the pressure of transformation and upgrades
and cost reduction and efficiency improvement is increasing.
The logistics industry is closely related to the real economy.
Strengthening management and expanding business are two
important safeguards for the development of the Group. Facing
a number of challenges, the Group will continue to adhere to
the development strategy of integrated logistics business, stand
firm on the working principle of “tactic operation strategy with
positive and steady growth and a shift from fiction to reality”,
actively expand businesses, strictly control business risks, activate
inefficient assets through reforms, enhance core competitiveness,
persist in cooperation and innovation, and cultivate new sources
of profit growth. Key points of work for this year are as follows:

With a view to integrating existing resources and stepping up
efforts in developing new business, the Group will continue
to adhere to the development strategy of integrated logistics
business, make full use of the technical advantages of automobile
logistics and electronic components logistics, open up new
business, innovate business models, integrate resources such as
courtyards, railways, cold storage and warehouses, improve the
efficiency of resources usage and underpin its core competitive
strengths.

The Group will continue to promote the development of two
major industrial platforms, i.e. automobiles and cold chain food.
The Group will continue to strengthen its automobile logistics
business and seize the opportunity of development of automobile
industry in Tianjin to explore new customers. In terms of the cold
chain business, the Group will make full use of the sophisticated
facilities of its cold storage and its well-established reputation
to drive efficiency and quality enhancements through resources
consolidation and joint-venture cooperation.

In terms of materials procurement and logistics business, the
Group will continue to enhance risk control, adhere to the
business development strategy of “tactic operation with flexible
approaches”, exercise strict selection of business partners and
enhance risks assessment and monitoring to form a new business
pattern of facilitating both logistics and trading.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERWE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERRE

In terms of logistics and supply chain services for electronic
components business, the Group will keep abreast with the
development trend of the electronic product industry, step
up efforts in exploring new customers while serving existing
customers, improve service quality and seize market development
opportunities to promote stable development of its business.

With a view to enhancing its corporate management, the Group
will further strengthen internal management, take forward the
reform of the “three systems”, continue to review and improve
system construction, optimize appraisal and incentive mechanisms,
raise the standard of management and stimulate staff vitality;
further improve its internal auditing function by enhancing internal
audit and carrying out internal auditing on subsidiaries of the
Company, with an aim to set a solid management foundation;
build up talent reserve, optimize the reward and punishment
mechanism and establish talent management system of the Group,
offering a platform for the staff to demonstrate their talents;
continue to strengthen information construction to achieve the
management goal of business and finance integration. The Group
will further enhance security management to ensure the property
safety of the Group and the personal safety of its employees.

Despite all the challenges ahead, especially the irresistible situation
brought by the coronavirus outbreak at the beginning of 2020, the
Company will forge ahead to ensure stability and create benefits
with confidence in its development in the future. Finally, | would
like to express my sincere gratitude on behalf of the Board to all
our staff for their excellent performance and dedicated efforts.

Yang Weihong

Tianjin, the PRC, 27 March 2020

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

The principal businesses of the Group are logistics and supply
chain services for finished automobiles and components, logistics
and supply chain services for electronic components, materials
procurement and related logistics services, cold chain logistics
services and other services such as bonded warehouse, container
yard, supervision, agency and transportation services. The major
customers of the Group include: Tong Fang Global (Tianjin)
Logistics Co., Ltd. (RFIRIKCKZ)YRE R A 7)), Tianjin Baisen
International Trade Co., Ltd. C(KEZBHREIRE ZERAF]), Tianjin
Binhai Tengfei Logistics Co., Ltd. (KB BB R RAER R 7),
Tianjin Anli Metal Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (KM ZF & BEER
fR 2 7)) and Tianjin Xiging District Materials Recycling Company (X
RIS &Y E R R).

During the current reporting period, the operating income of
the logistics and supply chain services for transportation of
finished automobiles and components increased as compared
with last year. As the operating results of imported automobiles
improved significantly, the performance of this segment increased
as compared with last year. During the reporting period, the
operating income and operating profits from the materials
procurement and related logistics services business of the Group
decreased compared to last year. The operating results of the
bonded warehouse, transportation and supervision businesses
declined as compared with the corresponding period of last year.
The operating income and operating profit of Tianjin Alps Teda
Logistics Co., Ltd. (K)EZFEMBBHTYRBR A F]) and Dalian
Alps Teda Logistics Co., Ltd. (KiEZE M B EHYRARAR]) (both
are affiliated companies of the Group) both recorded a decrease
as compared to last year. For the cold chain logistics business,
during the reporting period, as affected by the international
and domestic markets, importers hoarded large quantities of
goods, and warehouse vacancy rate remained at a low level.
Meanwhile, new businesses such as sales and yard leasing have
been developed. As a result, there was a significant reduction
of losses in operating results of Tedahang Cold Chain Logistics
Co., Ltd. (FET(RE)RBEWRABRAF]) as compared with last
year. The combination of the above factors led to a decrease in
the investment income of the Company as compared with the
corresponding period of last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

Logistics and Supply Chain Services for Transportation
of Finished Automobiles and Components

During the current reporting period, the principal businesses
income from logistics and supply chain services for transportation
of finished automobiles and components amounted to
RMB1,239,104,000, representing an increase of RMB242,270,000
or 24.30% as compared with last year. The logistics services
for the imported automobiles recorded a stable growth, driving
growth in the results of that segment, with a year-on-year increase
of 40.89%.

Materials Procurement and Related Logistics Services

During the current reporting period, the principal business income
from the materials procurement and related logistics services
amounted to RMB1,391,780,000, representing a decrease of
RMB161,744,000 or 10.41% as compared with last year.

Warehouse, Supervision, Agency and Other Incomes

During the current reporting period, other services such as bonded
warehouse, container yard, supervision, agency and transportation
services recorded an operating income of RMB85,915,000,
representing an increase of RMB22,369,000 or 35.20% as
compared with last year.

Logistics and Supply Chain Services for Electronic Components
(Conducted Through Investments in Joint Ventures)

During the current reporting period, the operating income
from logistics and supply chain services for electronic
components business of the Group’s joint ventures amounted to
RMB693,494,000, representing a decrease of 7.7% as compared
with the corresponding period of last year. The business recorded
an operating profit of RMB34,481,000, representing a decrease of
16.98%.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

For the year ended 31 December 2019, turnover of the Group was
RMB2,717 million, representing an increase of RMB103 million or
3.94% as compared to RMB2,614 million during the corresponding
period of last year. The increase in turnover is mainly attributable
to a certain extent of growth in imported automobiles of Tianjin
Fengtian Logistics Co., Ltd. C(RKIEZEMRERAR]) (a subsidiary
of the Group) as compared to last year.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the cost of sales of
the Group was RMB2,562 million, representing an increase of
RMB82 million or 3.31% as compared to RMB2,480 million of the
corresponding period of last year, which was slightly lower than
the increase of turnover for the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, gross profit margin of the
Group was 5.71%, 0.59 percentage points higher than last year.

The administrative expenses of the Group for 2019 amounted to
RMB59,590,000, representing an increase of RMB10,551,000 or
21.52% as compared to RMB49,039,000 during the corresponding
period of last year. The Group will continue to strengthen its
control over part of its administrative expenses.

The Group’s finance costs during 2019 amounted to
RMB42,416,000, representing an increase of RMB10,282,000 or
32% as compared to RMB32,134,000 last year. The Group will
continue to improve the efficiency of capital utilisation and strive
for the most favorable conditions for bank credits, so as to reduce
the overall finance charges.

The taxation expenses of the Group for 2019 were
RMB26,785,000, representing an increase of RMB6,655,000 or
33.06% as compared to RMB20,130,000 last year. The increase
in taxation expenses was mainly attributable to the increase in
the income tax expenses of Fengtian Logistics as compared to last
year as well as the decrease in the deferred tax expenses of the
Company as compared to last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

Net change in fair value of equity investments
through comprehensive income

The net change in fair value of equity investment of the
Group for 2019 was RMB-384,000, representing a decrease of
RMB2,574,000 as compared to RMB2,190,000 last year, which
was mainly attributable to the decrease in fair value of Tianjin
Ferroalloy Exchange Co., Ltd. of the financial assets measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income.

Share of results of joint ventures and associates

The share of results of joint ventures and associates of the
Group for 2019 was RMB15,793,000, representing a decrease
of RMB1,531,000 or 8.84% as compared to RMB17,324,000
last year, which was mainly due to the decrease in the operating
results of Tianjin Alps Teda Logistics Co., Ltd. and Dalian Alps
Teda Logistics Co., Ltd. (both are joint ventures of the Group) as
compared to the corresponding period of last year.

Profit for the year and profit and comprehensive
income attributable to the equity holders of the
Company

For the year ended 31 December 2019, total profits for the
period amounted to RMB42,390,000, representing an increase
of RMB12,592,000 or 42.26% as compared to last year. Profit
and comprehensive income attributable to the equity holders of
the Company were RMB9,070,000, increased by RMB4,311,000
or 90.59% as compared to RMB4,759,000 of last year. The
increase in profit and comprehensive income attributable to the
equity holders of the Company was mainly due to the increase
in operating results of Tianjin Fengtian Logistics Co., Ltd. and the
decrease in provision made for bad debts of accounts receivables
of the Company as compared to the corresponding period of last
year.

Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (corresponding period of
2018: nil). The Board will consider dividend distribution in due
course according to dividend policy.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group maintained a sound financial condition. As at 31
December 2019, the cash and bank balances of the Group
were RMB406,614,000 (31 December 2018: RMB387,273,000).
As at 31 December 2019, the total assets of the Group were
RMB2,960,188,000 (31 December 2018: RMB2,602,461,000).
Capital was sourced from current liabilities of RMB1,745,365,000
(31 December 2018: RMB1,466,121,000), non-current liabilities
of RMB130,146,000 (31 December 2018: RMB70,404,000),
equity attributable to the shareholders of the Group of
RMB966,121,000 (31 December 2018: RMB957,077,000) and
non-controlling interests of RMB118,556,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB108,859,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no change
in the capital structure of the Group. The share capital of the
Company comprised only ordinary shares.

As at 31 December 2019, the balance of bank loans of the Group
was RMB957,528,000 (31 December 2018: RMB504,520,000).

As at 31 December 2019, the ratio of total liabilities to total
assets of the Group was 63% (31 December 2018: 59%). The
gearing ratio (ratio of loans (including borrowings and obligations
under finance leases) to total equity) of the Group was 97.72% (31
December 2018: 52%).

As at 31 December 2019, the charge on assets of the Group was
as follows:

On 8 March 2019, the Company entered in to a finance
lease agreement with Shanghai Electric Financial Leasing Co.,
Ltd. (“Shanghai Electric Leasing”) at the consideration of
RMB100,000,000, and entered into a mortgage in favour of
Shanghai Electric Leasing to guarantee the principal payment
under the finance lease agreement. The mortgaged assets
are yards and facilities of the Company with a net value of
approximately RMB14,028,790.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

On 5 September 2019, the Company entered into a working
capital loan contract with the Tianjin Branch of Bank of Dalian Co.,
Ltd. at the consideration of RMB300,000,000, and entered into a
mortgage in favour of the Tianjin Branch of Bank of Dalian Co.,
Ltd. to guarantee the principal payment under the working capital
loan contract. The mortgaged assets are land and warehousing
facilities of TEDA General Bonded Warehouse Co., Ltd., a
subsidiary of the Company, with a valuation of RMB308,580,000.

Exchange loss or gain

All operating revenues and expenses of the Group are denominated
in Renminbi.

The Group has no significant investments outside Mainland China.
The Group, however, may be exposed to certain extent of foreign
currency exchange loss or gain mainly because the Company and
its subsidiaries, Tianjin Fengtian Logistics Co., Ltd. and Tianjin
Teda International Freight Forwarding Co., Ltd., have transactions
denominated in United States Dollar, Japanese Yen and Hong
Kong Dollar. For the twelve months ended 31 December 2019,
the Group had an exchange loss of RMB332,000 after offsetting
the exchange gains with exchange losses.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD
AND FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

During the Year, the Group had no significant investments and did
not make future plans for material investments or capital assets.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

During the Year, there was no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures by the Group.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed 2,309 employees
(31 December 2018: 2,358)
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As at As at
31 December 2018
2018412 A31H

31 December 2019
720196 12831H

Administration 1TIR 319 321
Finance B 75 62 66
Consulting Technology RERHT 15 1
Sale and Operation HE REE 1,913 1,960
Total A&t 2,309 2,358

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remunerations of the employees of the Company shall be
determined by reference to the market rate, and the performance,
qualification and experience of the relevant employees. Also, a
discretionary bonus based on individual performance during the
year would be distributed as a reward for the contributions made
by the employees to the Company. Other employee benefits
include pension insurance, unemployment insurance, labour injury
insurance, medical insurance, maternity insurance and housing
fund.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard to the
Group’s operating results, market competitiveness, individual
performance and experience, to the Board for determination.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R g RERWME

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
(the “Company”) is a company that strives to provide
integrated logistics service and supply chain management
service. The principal businesses of the Group are logistics
and supply chain services for finished automobiles and
components, logistics and supply chain services for electronic
components, materials procurement and related logistics
services, cold chain logistics services and other services such
as bonded warehouse, container yard, supervision, agency
and transportation services. The Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group” or “We") stringently adhere to
their environmental and social responsibilities.

Upholding the core value of “integrity, honour, responsibility,
resources, efficiency, value, cooperation, innovation and
ambition”, the Group places emphasis on talent cultivation,
and requires its employees to possess good moral character,
protect the global environment and support public welfare
activities.

In strict compliance with the requirements under Appendix
20 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“GEM Listing Rules”), the Group is pleased to present its
fourth environmental, social and governance (“ESG"”) report
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (“FY2019"), which
demonstrates the Group's approach and performance
in terms of ESG management and corporate sustainable
development for FY2019.

The information in this ESG report was gathered through
numerous channels, including internal policies of different
subsidiaries of the Group, the factual evidence of the
implementation of ESG practices in the Group, the feedback
from staff via online surveys in the format of quantitative
and qualitative questions based on the reporting framework,
and the verified statistics of the Group’s annual performance
in business operations and sustainable development.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Setting a clear reporting boundary from the outset of the
entire reporting process can help report preparers and
users of information to define and limit the scope and
extent of disclosure by giving readers a clear picture of the
effectiveness of the implementation of relevant ESG policies,
while allowing the Group to lower the risks of inadvertently
neglecting the material activities or business operations
in which the Group was engaged during the year under
review. Given the business nature and development plans
of the Group, this ESG report covers the performance and
management policies of all operations of the Group under
the operational control approach.

Materiality is the threshold at which ESG issues become
sufficiently important to investors and other stakeholders
that they should be reported. As a common strategic
business tool for screening the insignificant issues and
highlighting the environmental and social impacts, the Group
has implemented materiality assessment by gathering the
feedback of various stakeholder groups about their concerns
and expectations in terms of the Company’s sustainable
development. With the outcome from such an evidence-
based assessment of the potential impacts of different
ESG topics on the Group’s overall strategies, the Board of
Directors of the Company (the “Board”) are presented with a
picture reflecting the material ESG issues which may impact
the Group’s ability to develop in a sustainable way, and can
therefore access sufficient information to make strategic
decisions on allocating more resources and putting more
focus on the efficient daily management of operations under
certain topics.

To implement the reporting principle of Quantitative,
measurable key performance indicators (“KPIs”) are listed
under the section of Emissions, Use of Resources and
Employment in this ESG report. Targets of the Group are
relatively simple due to the operation nature of the Group.
To ensure that reader can have a deep understanding of
the Group’s ESG performance under environmental and
social subjects, a summary of the Group's performance in
greenhouse gas emissions, consumption of various energy
resources and statistics of employees was shown in the
measurable format.
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An unbiased picture of the Group’s ESG performance is
essential to ensuring the accuracy and objective evaluation
of information delivered to the audiences. The Group
has engaged external company for preparing ESG report
to ensure an unbiased report. Furthermore, the selective
disclosure in the report was utterly based on the reporting
principle of Materiality, in which both the excellent
performance and rooms for improvement were involved.

Readers normally rely on a transparent disclosure of
information against different indicators based on a consistent
reporting technique and methodology for calculations.
As such, the Group based the presentation of its ESG
management, especially the calculation of greenhouse gas
emissions on standard calculation methods and provided
adequate descriptive explanation about significant changes
to the reporting techniques. Meanwhile, to ensure that the
vast array of information under a variety of topics can be
presented to its stakeholders clearly, the Group adopted
a reporting process which is consistent with the order for
disclosure in the ESG Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix
20 of the GEM Listing Rules, which it believes is conducive to
adding more coherence to the entire reporting process and
building a roadmap visualising its growth in sustainability to
all.

BOARD INCLUSIVENESS

As an environmentally friendly company, the Group has
limited environmental impact. The Group believes that a
systematic sustainability governance framework and a clear
internal sustainability strategy are of paramount importance
to create values to all its stakeholders, while lowering the
Group's impact on the environment and natural resources.
The Group has developed its internal strategies and policies
with aims to create sustainable values to its stakeholders,
thereby to a large extent minimising the Group’s undue
impact on the environment, and the Board has ultimate
responsibilities for the effectiveness and efficiency of the
Group's ESG polices.
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In order to carry out the Group'’s sustainability strategy from
top to bottom, the Board takes the lead on and has oversight
of the execution of relevant ESG issues. The Group has also
established dedicated teams to manage ESG issues within
each business division of the Group and kept monitoring
and overseeing the progress against corporate goals and
targets for addressing climate change. Dedicated teams with
designated staff for management of ESG issues have been
assigned to enforce and supervise the implementation of the
relevant ESG policies cascading through the Group.

Risk management is also an essential part in ESG issues,
especially for those risks related to climate change and
environmental regulations established by the government.
Measures and emergency plan built by local government and
the Group are set to deal with any existing or unknown risk
to deal with any existing or unknown risk.

With the forward-looking guidance and well-designed
plans of action to address underlying ESG matters, the
management and responsible teams keep reviewing and
adjusting the Group's sustainability policies to satisfy the
ever-changing needs of its stakeholders on a regular basis.
Details of the Group’s management approaches in both the
environmental and social aspects are elaborated in different
sections of this ESG report.

REPORTING PERIOD AND SCOPE OF THE
REPORT

This ESG report covers the operational boundaries of the
Group’s business in Tianjin, the People’s Republic of China
("PRC"). For corporate governance section, please refer to
the Group’s 2019 Annual Report on pages 48 to 63 therein.
The reporting period of this ESG report is for FY2019, from 1
January 2019 to 31 December 2019. This report is prepared
in both English and Chinese, and has been uploaded to the
Group's website at http://www.tbtl.cn. If there is any conflict
or inconsistency, the English version shall prevail.
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IV. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

An effective communication with both internal and external
stakeholders is regarded essential to the Group in many
areas. With the goal to strengthen corporate sustainability
approach and performance while enhancing stakeholders’
awareness of ESG and sustainability issues, the Group has put
tremendous efforts into its internal and external stakeholder
inclusiveness. The Group highly values the feedback from
its stakeholders and takes initiative to build a trustful and
supporting relationship with them through their preferred

communication channels.

Materiality Assessment

In FY2019, the Group engaged its stakeholders to conduct
a materiality assessment survey initiated by a third-party
agency in order to guarantee the accuracy and objectivity of
evaluation. Through a science-based materiality assessment to
prioritise the topics from the entire inventory of ESG issues,
the Group eventually formulated a materiality assessment
matrix below (Table 1), which could genuinely reflect the
real concern of its stakeholders on ESG matters and facilitate
the Group to develop actions plans for effective ESG
management.
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Table 1 The Materiality Matrix

B HEREARS

RIEEMEE

Materiality Matrix
EEMER

HSNENEENY

IMPORTANCE TO THE STAKEHOLDERS

Crucial
EE:d

Areas identified as relevant for disclosure:

AR ER SR A AE B ) #E RS

e Energy use
BEIRGEA

e Mitigation measures to protect environment
and natural resources
RERF R B AE R E R

e Diversity of employees
EEZtit

e Customers satisfaction
EEmEE

e Marketing and promotion
FTEE AR

e Observing and protecting intellectual property
rights
J8 ST MR S B0

e Product quality assurance and recall
percentage
EmEERBME X

e |abelling relating to products/services
HERRISERNTE

e Product design and lifecycle management
EmaR et B EE TR

e Number of legal cases filed against the
Company about bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering
FEARNRIRENITH - R - BEFMERE
HEERRHHE

e Anti-corruption policies and whistle-blowing
procedure
REFHBR KB HRRIE

e Participation in charitable activities and
support public welfare
SHBREFPNIFREEE

e Cultivation of local employment

HEEhih 5 A%

Areas identified as critical for disclosure:

MR REENER

e Smooth communication and sound
relationship with suppliers
R (A P B B AN L RATRAR

e Protection of consumer information and
privacy
BEERAFLBIRE

e Procurement practices
g

e Environmentally preferable products and
services
IRIREE (o A BR T

e Health and safety relating to products/services
HESDREEBNRREZS

e Occupational health and safety
BERERLZD

e Social risks of the suppliers

HEEML AR

Not Relevant

TR

Crucial

iy

IMPORTANCE TO THE GROUP
HAKEMEEM
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Materiality Matrix
EEMIER

HENENEEY

IMPORTANCE TO THE STAKEHOLDERS

Not relevant
el

Areas identified as not relevant for disclosure:
B ER R R SRR S
e Land use, pollution and restoration
THIRIER - S5 ERFIRIE
e Climate-related risks
RIRAEREE 2
e Sewage treatment
ya7K BRI
e Solid waste treatment
(] §% BE 32 W) pn 12
e Use of other raw/packaging materials
H AR KL BN R 5
e Air and greenhouse gas emissions

AR5 R MR = REEE R

Areas identified as relevant for disclosure:

BRI RS

e Water use
IKREIRIE R

e Employee remuneration and benefits
& 8 Z AR

e Employee development and training
B B #REE

e Preventing child and forced labour
B EEE TFsaH4 T

e Environmental risks (e.g. pollution) of the
suppliers
HEENERERR (M5 5)

e Anti-corruption training provided to directors
and staff
MEERETRENRESHE

e Community engagement
Hma

e Business model adaptation and resilience to
environmental, social, political and economic
risks and opportunities
R ERANERAREIRE 18 - BUaH
B R B R IR FE S

e Management of the legal and regulatory
environment (regulation-compliance
management)
ERMERBENERE(GMHER)

e Critical incident risk responsiveness
REF MR R E

e Systemic risk management

Rk EE

Not relevant
TEE

Crucial

BE

IMPORTANCE TO THE GROUP
BAKEMERM

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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According to the outcome of the materiality analysis matrix,
the Group identified seven ESG issues that are of great
significance to both the Group and its stakeholders. This
review and assessment helped the Group to objectively
prioritise its sustainability issues, precisely identify the
material and relevant aspects, and make for the purposeful
documentation and disclosure of its ESG performance so as
to align them with stakeholders’ expectations.

To further strengthen the internal corporate sustainability
management and elevate the objectives set out by the Group
to the level of global sustainable development, the Group
has carried out an evaluation on its stakeholders’ opinions
on corporate sustainability stewardship, especially the ESG-
related topics that are material to stakeholders and the
United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (“SDGs”) to
which its stakeholders have paid particular attention. This
analysis of linking the Group’s sustainability targets to global
sustainability trends allows the Group to

e Understand the globally-agreed sustainable development
goals that act as an articulation of the world’s latest
and most pressing environmental, social and economic
issues of which companies should be encouraged to
take into account;

o Identify and seek potential business opportunities by
addressing sustainability-related risks and crisis through
business innovation and optimisation of the work
process, and

e Solidifying a common-known language for reporting the
Group’s business impact on climate change and social
welfare and involving the employees in creating the
sustainability culture in the Group.

According to the results, it was found that “Target 3: Good
Health and Well-Being for People”, “Target 9: Industry,
Innovation, and Infrastructure” and “Target 11: Sustainable
Cities and Communities” are considered to be the most
related to the business operation of the Group. In order to
achieve those targets, the Group took various measures,
including providing safety training and employee benefit,
upgrading facilities and safety systems, and establishing
emergency plan to help people who are suffering from
natural disasters.
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Stakeholders Feedback

As the Group strives for excellence, we welcome
stakeholders’ feedback, especially on topics listed as the
highest importance in the materiality assessment and its ESG
approach and performance. Readers are also welcome to
share their views with the Group at investor@tbtl.cn.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

The Group values the long-term sustainability of the
environment and community in which it operates, stringently
controls its emissions and consumption of resources, and
complies with all relevant environmental laws and regulations
in the PRC in the daily operation.

This section primarily discloses the Group’s policies, practices,
and quantitative data on emissions, use of resources, the
environment and natural resources in FY2019.

A.1. Emissions

Emissions from the Group were mainly domestic
wastewater, air emissions from warehousing activities
and vehicle use and the solid wastes from the packaging
material usage. During the year under review, the
Group complied with all relevant environmental laws in
the operating regions, including but not limited to the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China ({(REARKEFMBIRF(R#EE)) and the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Atmospheric Pollution ({FRZEA RN
Bl KRS BA%)), and found no disregard of any
influential laws relevant to waste gas or greenhouse gas
emissions, water or land discharge and generation of
non-hazardous wastes.

In FY2019, the Group had no record of the amount of
hazardous wastewater and hazardous solid waste during
the year under review. The Group’s total emissions are
summarised in Table 2. The Group targets to maintain
the emission whilst slightly increase in economic

performance.

A.1.
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Table 2 The Group’s Total Emissions by Category in &2 2019BFE K20188 4 E (12018
FY2019 and the financial year 2018 (“FY2018") W )AL BERERE 5 a5
WE
FY2019 FY2018
201981 % 201881
Amount Intensity*  Amount  Intensity*
Emissions 1y Y8 BE* 8= BE*
(Unit/"000 m?) Unit/'000 m?
(Bfy/F¥5X) FAR)
Air emissions  BER#H SO, =1 g5 kg N 21.9 - 332 S
NOX** A&l kg DT 24,8339 281 131,6696 149.2
PM** BRI kg Afr 706.9 0.8 9,131.7 10.3
Greenhouse  EEFE  Scope 1 (Direct #HE] tonnes COe  BZ&fix 48247 55 56739 6.8
gas ("GHG")  ([BE&  Emission) (EEER) 1
emissions B )M Scope 2 (Energy #E2 tomnes CO,e  E-&{kix  8397.2 95 83267 94
Indirect (RRmE EE
Emission) b230)
Total (Scope 1 4@zt tonnes CO,e~ BEZE(LE 13,2219 150 14,0007 159
&2 (BE1R2) B8
Non- BEEBR  General Refuse PEEREE tonnes i 314.7 0.4 4266 05
hazardous BEY Disposed o —RRHIR
solid waste Landfill
Paper Disposed WEEEEE tonnes g 37 - 0.03 -
to Landfill B
General Refuse I —Rksu 3kt tonnes 8 98.0 0.1 210.0 0.2
Recycled
Paper Waste — [ElMEE R tonnes i 8.4 - 83 -
Recycled
Plastic Waste — EIYEZBEEY tonnes i 9.5 - 8.2 -
Recycled
Total @zt tonnes 8 4343 0.5 653.1 0.7
Non- BERK E Ak 43,559.4 494 352844 40.0
hazardous
wastewater
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* Intensity is divided by the area of operating region
in FY2019 and FY2018; and

** To ensure consistency in reporting and for
better comparison throughout recent years, the
calculation of the air emissions of the Group
in FY2019 and FY2018 was based on the
methodology recommended in “How to Prepare an
ESG Report? — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange
and the latest data in the IPCC Emission Factor
Database, and the corresponding figures in FY2018
were adjusted accordingly.

Air and GHG Emissions

Air emissions form the Group mainly come from the
warehouse and vehicle use. The GHG emissions of
the Group consist of direct emissions from the use
of vehicles (scope 1) and indirect emissions from
the consumption of electricity (scope 2). The direct
emissions and indirect emissions are the main sources
of GHG emissions while other indirect emissions are

insignificant.

The Group focuses on the direct emissions from
transportation. To reduce the air emission from vehicle
use, the Group has established four measures:

o Reasonably plan the transportation route,
arrange the transportation time, maximize the
transportation efficiency, and reduce empty
transportation;

. Update for modern fleet;

° Use alternative energy such as sustainable energy;
and

. Support emission reduction standard and fuel
efficiency standard reformation.
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Apart from this, the Group’s warehouses are equipped
with detection devices to ensure all the emissions
align with the environmental protection requirements.
Refrigerator is also a big threat to the air emissions
of the Group as the Group is engaged in warehouse
business. The Group adopts liquid ammonia to
realize refrigeration in the cold storage and ensures
proper preservation of refrigerant in storage tanks,
compressors, evaporative condensers and other
refrigeration equipment, and purposely separate the
refrigerating station from other zones, so as to prevent
its leakage.

For indirect emissions, the Group has aligned its
operating practice with internationally acceptable and
recognised standards and recommendations in terms
of GHG emission reduction. Detailed measures taken
by the Group to reduce its GHG emissions through
reducing electricity consumption will be described
further in A.2. Use of Resources of this report.

During the year under review, the wastewater and solid
waste generated by the Group were mainly municipal
wastewater and municipal solid waste from daily
operations. The Group has implemented a classification
method for the collection of solid waste for better
management. The solid wastes that have been classified
will then be transported to a local recycling centre or
waste disposal plant for further treatment. To reduce
solid waste, not only does the Group encourage the
reduction in use of disposable paper cups, tissue,
chopsticks and plastic bags, the Group also posted
slogans to remind its employees to reduce food waste.
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The sewage discharged by us primarily comes from
domestic wastewater, sewage generated in warehousing
activities, as well as rainfall. Rainfall pipeline is built,
and domestic garbage is not permitted to be stacked
outdoors, so as to prevent rainwater from being
polluted. Some subsidiaries have installed dedicated
containers for collection of oily sewage, which is
transferred for professional treatment. Moreover, the
Group engages a professional agency that is recognized
by local environmental protection bureau to conduct
sewage treatment regularly every year, mitigating the
impact of sewage discharge on the environment.

The noises generated from the businesses of the Group
mainly include machine noise (e.g. compressors in the
warehouse operating zone), vehicle transportation
and loading/unloading noise (e.g. trucks, cranes and
forklifts), as well as engineering construction noise, and
SO on.

In order to manage the noises, the Group has
established internal policies and assigned dedicated
personnel to carry out daily inspection of running
equipment for spotting irregularities and repairing them
promptly, thus avoiding the generation of noises. We
have therefore mounted noise barriers and explosion-
proof doors and windows between the refrigerating
station and the control room in accordance with the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Pollution from Environmental Noise (&
3 ARIEMBUIRER ZI)5E0785)) and other relevant
national regulations, to reduce the impact of noises
on the employees. For better management of noises,
the Group has invited local environment monitoring
institution to monitor the noise pollution annually
according to the relevant national standards.

The use of natural resources has always been the
key issue for the Group’s environmental concern. To
effectively manage its resources consumption, the
Group keeps improving its tracking of ESG related KPls
and launches internal monitoring programme on the
procurement and use of resources. In FY2019, the major
resources consumed by the Group were electricity,
water, paper, and diesel.
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Table 3 The Group’s Total Use of Resources by Category
in FY2019 and FY2018

Use of Resources &iEfE

Electricity Eh KWh
Diesel -5 L
Gasoline hab L
Natural gas AAR Ve
Water k v
Packaging aiH By plastic 5B kg
materials By paper g kg
By wood Kt kg

Paper Fig kg

* Intensity is divided by the area of operating region
in FY2019 and FY2018.

Electricity

The Group’s consumption of electricity comes from the
daily operation. To make sure that all subsidiaries and
departments of the Group adhere to the electricity-
saving principle, a detailed internal policy and guidelines
to instruct all employees to achieve sustainability have
been formulated. All subsidiaries of the Group must
stringently comply with the Group’s energy saving policy
in FY2019.

During the year under review, many eco-friendly
measures were conducted by the Group to manage its
electricity consumption, including but not limited to:

o Fully use the natural light, such as turning off
electric lights when there is sufficient natural
lighting and turning lights off during lunch break;
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3 20198/ F K2018 F AL EIZ LRI & 5K

BREAE

FY2019 FY2018

2019815 2018815
Amount Intensity*  Amount  Intensity*
#E BE* g8 BE*
(Unit/"000 m?) Unit/'000 m?)
(Bf/TEAK) (3 HK)
THE 94958265 10,762.6 9,416,1063  10,671.7
AF 15032290  1,703.7 17574748 19918
AF 2493415 2826 331,510.8 375.7
URA 293120 332 5,040.0 57
upk 76210 864  68,266.0 774
NI 3,942.6 45 44400 5.0
NI 6,092.6 69 35100 4.0
NIy - - 19,685.0 23
AT 19,064.6 216 22,5040 225

* 2R T4 LA201981 & 2201884
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Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

e  Turn off the lights in public areas when not

necessary,

e  Turn off standby equipment, lighting and air
conditioner after work; and

° Set the air conditioner temperature to no less than
26T in summer and no portable heating equipment.

Also, as the refrigeration facilities contribute to most of
the power consumption, the storage department has
adjusted the operation time of such facilities, which
significantly reduces power consumption.

Water

Water consumption by the Group is for domestic use
by its staffs during working hours. In FY2019, the
Group did not face any problems in sourcing water. To
improve the utilization efficiency of water resources,
the Group and all its employees have laid emphasis on
water conservation and are dedicated to saving every
drop of precious water resource by various efficacious
ways. Specifically, to improve the utilisation efficiency
of water resources, the Group requires employees to
adhere to the water saving principles and posts banners
in operating regions.

The Environment and Natural Resources

As a leading logistics group, we believe, in the
logistics services operation, it is of vital importance
to reduce both logistics transportation and impact on
the environment. We try our best to deliver the same
quantity of goods with minimum packaging materials,
storage area, transportation means and the shortest
distance, so as to reduce resource consumption and
GHG emission.

A.3.
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Climate change leads to an increasing intensity of
extreme weathers across the world, which caused bad
transportation condition. The Group acknowledges the
impact of climate change on the operation and devoted
resources to alleviate the influence. Prior to predictable
extreme weather, drivers are given training on how
to cope with emergencies and the Group keeps close
contact with clients for their understanding. In addition
to the climate-related risks that the Group faces, the
Group has paid attention to the potential environmental
impacts during its transportation process including
both energy consumption and emissions, and been
conscious of the urgency to upgrade its fleet towards
a more eco-friendly mode through effective vehicle
management and the adoption of a higher standard
in the procurement of vehicles for transportation with
regard to emission control.

The Group is currently working on the establishment of
sustainable development framework by environmental
awareness building and SDGs evaluation under the
context of industrial trend and business nature. Hence,
the Group initially selected “Target 3: Good Health and
Well-Being for People”, “Target 9: Industry, Innovation,
and Infrastructure” and “Target 11: Sustainable Cities
and Communities” as its prioritised targets in the value
chain management and proactively took corresponding
measures to contribute to global sustainability.
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VI. SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY VI 2R EFEN
Employment and Labour Practices EBEREIER
B.1. Employment B.1. &%
The Group views talents as its most valuable assets AEBBASRAZEBENEER
and the key driving factor in ensuring the success and EERNMAFEERNEERHH
sustainable development of the Group. E-o
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The Group’s human resources policies fully align with
the applicable employment laws and regulations in
Hong Kong and the PRC, such as the Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the
Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China ({FZEA
REFIHE)E) ), and the Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China ((PEARLFELSAEE
7%)). To make sure that the relevant internal policies
are fully in line with the latest laws and regulations,
the Group’s human resources department reviews and
updates corporate documents in talent management on
a regular basis.

During the recruitment process, the Group strictly
adheres to the principle of democracy, openness,
impartiality and excellence, and values candidates’
personal capability and innovative thinking. All
applicants shall undergo a series of rigorous selection
process, including written examination of professional
skills, comprehensive ability tests and supervisor
interview before they are officially hired.

Besides, the Group sets periodicity plans and budgets to
run performance evaluation. When there is a vacancy,
we will take proactive initiatives to promote our junior
employees and cultivate them into management talents.
We outline career development path for the junior
staff, offering promotion and pay raise for outstanding
employees who have served the Company for over three
years.

The salary composition, in line with previous years,
is divided into monthly fixed income, salary, expense
subsidy, monthly bonus and floating salary. To motivate,
reward, and recognize our existing employees who have
made huge contributions to the Group, compensation
reviews and salary adjustment are regularly conducted
with reference to the overall market conditions, inflation
rate, profitability of the Group and employee’s past
performance.
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Meanwhile, any termination of employment contract
would be strictly based on reasonable and lawful
grounds. The Group prohibits any kinds of unlawful or
unreasonable dismissals.

The Group arranges reasonable working hours and
rest periods for its employees. In addition to basic paid
annual leave and statutory holidays stipulated by the
local governments, employees are entitled to additional
leave benefits such as marriage leave, paternity leave
and compassionate leave.

As an equal opportunity employer, the Group is
committed to creating a fair, respectful and diverse
working environment by promoting anti-discrimination,
diversity and equal opportunity in all human resources
and employment decisions. We have developed the
Guidance on Professional Conducts ({BZIRSFHES]))
and prohibit employees from discriminating or insulting.
Training and promotion opportunities, dismissals and
retirement policies are determined irrespective of
employees’ gender, race, age, disability, family status,
marital status, sexual orientation, religion beliefs,
nationality or any other non-job-related factors in all
business units.

The Group’s equal opportunities policy enforces zero
tolerance to any workplace discrimination, harassment
or victimization in accordance with the relevant
government legislations, ordinances and regulations.
The human resources department is responsible for
monitoring the implementation of the above regulations.
Employees can report any discrimination and harassment
during work. Also, the Group provides employees with
fairness-related training, so that female employees are
fully aware of their rights and interests and improve
their self-protection awareness.
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Benefits and welfare

We focus on the well-being of employees and offer
them with various benefits, including medical subsidies,
physical examinations, festival subsidies and so on.
Through bulletins, emails, trainings and meetings,
employees and managers maintain timely and smooth
communication.

During FY2019, the Group was in full compliance
with relevant laws and regulations in relation to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, welfare and other benefits that have
a significant impact on the Group.

Health and Safety

The Group believes that health and safety at work
involves both the protection of employees from
occupational hazards and the promotion of employees’
well-being. To provide and maintain a safe and clean
working condition for employees, the Group has
established strict internal safety and health policies,
which are in line with the relevant laws and regulations
in Hong Kong and the PRC, including but not limited
to:

o Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China (P EA BEHME 25 £ FE)%)),

e [aw of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases

(P EA LR H 8% D)), and

e Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurance ({T
BRE1ED)).
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As a logistics company, employees’ safety and well-being
are always the priority of the Group’s consideration. The
Group has established a comprehensive mechanism and
stringent safety and labour practice standards, namely
Occupational Health Management System ( (B%Z 62 B &
EHIE)), to minimise the risk of accidents at workplace
and enhance employees’ health and safety awareness.
24-hour emergency hotline and the Emergency Response
Plan ({ZREEE{FEZTEZ)), which covers a wide range
of incidents and calamities, are also set to ensure the
coordination among all functional departments in an
emergency.

We have established internal health and safety
management committee to ensure the occupational
safety of employees. The safety management committee
formed by the managers of various departments
is responsible for the prevention and control of
occupational diseases, managing work-related health
issues, organising safety trainings and reporting to the
directors of the Group. Meanwhile, the Group obtained
the OHSAS 18001 occupational health and safety
management system certification and the 1SO9001:2008
quality management system certification to ensure the
safety of operating region.

In addition, the Group prohibits smoking and drinking
liguor in workplaces, carries out the cleaning of air-
conditioning systems and disinfection treatment of
carpets, and conducts safety inspection regularly
with an aim to protect employees from occupational
hazards. The Group regularly inspects the fire
protection facilities to ensure that the fire protection
facilities are not damaged or expired and the fire exits
are unblocked. The Group has hosted emergency
exercise annually and set safety signs to enhance
employees’ safety awareness. The Group targets to
achieve accident-free workplace environment. Regular
occupational trainings are held by the Group to enhance
the safety awareness of employees.
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Case study

Drivers play an essential part in the daily operation
of the Group. To lower the occupational disease
risk and enhance the safety awareness of drivers,
the Group has established Drivers Safety Plan and
promoted its implementation within the Group.
Workplace safety training were organised to give
instructions of how to use the emergency equipment
and how to avoid potential danger. Furthermore, the
Group keeps updating the fleet facilities with safety
systems to track and detect any accidents and help

drivers escape from a hazardous situation.

During FY2019, the Group was not in violation of
any of the relevant laws and regulations in relation to
providing a safe working environment and protecting
the employees from occupational hazards that have a
significant impact on the Group.

Development and Training

The Group considers a suitable and customised package
of training programmes to both its newly hired
employees and experienced workers to be beneficial
to the Company in its development. Thus, the Group
organised a number of trainings that cover numerous
subjects during the year under review in accordance
with its internal policies, such as ‘Staff Handbook’.
Normally, a complete training package is provided
to new hires, introducing the corporate culture,
organisational structure, and occupational health and
safety (OH&S), while non-scheduled profession-oriented
courses are offered to experienced staff according to
corporate and individual needs.

To further enhance the professional skills of its
employees and meet the Group’s development
goal, employees are highly motivated to attend
external trainings and take professional qualification

examinations.
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Total Employees’ Training Hours
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B.4. Labour Standards

In FY2019, the Group abided by the Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China ({
EARATMES
and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC to prohibit

’%)) and other related labour laws

any child and forced labour employment. To combat
illegal employment of child labour, underage workers
and forced labour, the Group’s human resources
department requires all job applicants to provide valid
identity documents to ensure that they are lawfully
employable prior to confirmation of any employment.
It is also the responsibility of the Group’s human
resources department to monitor and guarantee the
compliance of corporate policies and practices with the
relevant laws and regulations that prohibit child labour
and forced labour. Once the Group has identified any
case which fails to comply with the relevant labour
laws, regulations or standards, the relevant employment
contract will be immediately terminated and the relevant
employees responsible for the management of human
resources will be disciplined accordingly.

In FY2019, the Group was in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations in relation to the prevention of
child and forced labour that have a significant impact
on the Group.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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As a socially responsible enterprise, it is critical and vital
for the Group to maintain and manage a sustainable
and reliable supply chain that makes minimal negative
impacts on the environment and society. The Group
has not only implemented relevant policies regulating
its practices in daily operations in order to fulfil its
environmental and social responsibilities, but also given
serious attention to the mitigation of the environmental
and social risks that may affect its value chain. Each of
the operating subsidiaries within the Group monitors
the quality of its suppliers and ensures the supply chain
practice on a strict and continuous basis.

When choosing suppliers, the Group has established the
Supplier Conduct Code ((HtERTTAZERID)), requiring
suppliers to abide to operate in an ethical manner,
which includes fair treatment of employees, protection
on environment and integrity. Social and environmental
risks are also taken into consideration, such as operating
license, product quality and environmental impact. The
procurement department tracks potential supplier’s
product quality, experience, service quality, financial
statement and operating stability to assess suppliers.

We are dedicated to reducing the impact of supply
chain on the environment and advocating green
procurement. The Group refuses to use suppliers
who cause environmental pollution and tries to use
environmentally-friendly product. Besides, the Group
has a qualified supplier list that will be reviewed
annually through four main aspects, namely regulatory
compliance, employee rights, health and safety and
environmental protection. To reduce the social risk, the
Group keeps close contact with suppliers to monitor the
compliance of laws and regulations.
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We have always been committed to becoming an
expert in China’s integrated logistics and supply chain,
keeping abreast of market development needs, actively
optimizing business layout, and innovating management
service models. In FY2019, the Group found no
disregard to the laws and regulations in the PRC
relating to product/service quality, health and safety,
advertisement, labelling and customer privacy.

Within the warehouse area, we have established a 24/7
security inspection system which aims to ensure the
safety and security of the goods. The Group also carries
out special inspections on a seasonal basis.

The enhancement for the roof helps prevent rainfall
and snow leakage and protect the goods from sunlight
exposure. Clean paths are kept at both ends of the
goods racks to maintain smooth passage between
the working area and the storage area, so as to
ensure the safe use of working trolleys and improve
operation efficiency with the implementation of relevant
management regulations.

In order to prevent goods from containing hazardous
substances, at the time of storing the goods, we obtain
written documents such as packing list and inspection
report of the goods and carry out unpacking inspection
as much as possible.

As an integrated logistics service provider in China, we
provide one stop integrated logistics services for the
customers. As more and more companies have concerns
on the environmental impact of their supply chains,
the Group has obtained an Environment Management
System Certificate to illustrate that our accredited
service is qualified for clients’ requirement on supply
chain.
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To ensure the safety of goods during transportation,
video monitoring system is implemented to inspect the
train’s roof and use electric chain block to effectively
prevent accidents that are liable to occur due to manual
operation of chain block. The Group also uses screw-
thread steel to prevent skidding of the vehicle during
snowy days in winter.

We check the water tanks, storage batteries, engine
oil, fuel oil and tires of the vehicles on a daily basis,
carry out sanitary inspection on a weekly basis, and
perform unscheduled maintenance every month and
regular maintenance every quarter, so as to ensure that
all vehicles are absolutely safe. We observe and analyse
the physical and psychological conditions of the drivers
through the morning assemblies every day and adjust
work arrangement as necessary. In addition, we have
also installed GPS systems on the vehicles, enabling us
to locate the vehicles and goods in real time.

We have a cargo tracking system for clients to
track their goods. By the use of the cargo tracking
system, we are able to obtain instant information of
cargo transport status with an aim to improve our
logistics transportation services. Regarding automobile
warehousing, we track the logistics status of the
finished automobiles and components by using
monitoring systems.

The Group has always been customer-oriented and
committed to providing comprehensive services to
the satisfaction of the customers. We place great
importance on customer opinions, and have therefore
formulated and implemented a series of customer
service management systems and actively communicate
with customers.

During the year under review, the Group received no
complaints about the service quality and the customer
satisfaction was high according to the customer survey.
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Advertising

Due to the special nature of our business, no public
advertisement is conducted, yet many new customers
have been referred to us by word-of-mouth, where
customers who are satisfied with our products and
services share their experience with others around them.

Privacy matters

The Group values clients’ information and complies with
relevant laws and regulations to ensure that the rights
and interests of customers are strictly protected.

During the year under review, to protect client’s
privacy, the Group has established specified information
management department to safeguard clients’ privacy
and company data. This department is responsible for:

e  Establishing a network data center to ensure cyber
security, and help customers protect their personal
data and identify, report fraud and mitigate losses;
and

e Developing information technology security
initiatives, including risk management and technical
incident recovery plans.

The Group also signed confidentiality agreement
with relevant parties to ensure the confidentiality of
information.

Anti-corruption

To maintain a fair, ethical and efficient business and
working environment, the Group strictly adheres to the
local laws and regulations relating to anti-corruption
and bribery, irrespective of the area or country where
the Group conducts its business, such as the Law of the
PRC on Anti-money Laundering ((# % A R 7B = %45
ED).
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The Group fully acknowledges the importance of
maintaining integrity at working environment and
requires employees to sign a letter of integrity. Plans
and training for management, ethics and policy
compliance that are in line with the Group’s strategy
are established and organized for cultivating employees’
awareness of anti-corruption. Whistle-blowing policies
are also well implemented in the Group to monitor any
corruption.

During the year under review, the Group was not in
violation of any of the relevant laws and regulations
in relation to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering that have a significant impact on the Group.

B HEREARS
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Community HE

B.8. Community Investment B.8. HtEKRE

We understand that the business development of
the Group is closely related to employees and local
community. Due to the nature of its business, the Group
understands its role in disaster relief as we have enough
resources to transport necessary materials. During the

BFYRA > AEEMEBERREEER
MEMtERTAE - AREBEE
R BPEERHERTEXALE
WE - Fit RS BERAMEERITTE
BER - REBEFEN  HMEHE

year under review, we have made plans on dealing with EHAARALESIH G RAZEZER
emergency situations, such as natural disasters or social BETEl -
chaos.

Case study ESlIaRis

We are fully aware of our role in helping those in
need in an emergency, which is to transport supplies
to the affected area by natural disasters or other
serious accidents. The Group participates in national
or regional emergency management organizations
involved in coordinating disaster response and
achieves disaster relief assistance through providing
supplies or other necessary equipment transport.
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Al A N/
TPEERHE
The Company believes that stringent corporate governance
practices can enhance credibility and transparency and are in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company. The Company
has established a complete set of code on corporate governance
practices — “Handbook of Corporate Governance Practices”
pursuant to the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules. Save
as disclosed below, the Company has complied with all the
requirements of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the
reporting year, save for the deviation of Code A.2.1 and Code A.6.7.

SECURITIES TRANSACTION BY THE DIRECTORS

The Group has adopted a code of dealing in securities by the
Directors of the Group, which was formulated in accordance
with Rules 5.48 to 5.68 of the GEM Listing Rules for the purpose
of setting out its own required standards for assessment of
the conduct of the Directors in dealings in the securities of the
Group. Upon enquiries made to each Director by the Company,
all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the code of
dealing in securities by the Directors.

THE BOARD

The Board of the Company comprises 9 Directors which includes
1 executive Director, 4 non-executive Directors and 4 independent
non-executive Directors, among which, Yang Weihong is the
Chairman and executive Director; Li Jian, Peng Bo, Yang Xiaoping
and Zheng Yuying are non-executive Directors; Cheng Xinsheng,
Japhet Sebastian Law, Peng Zuowen and Zhou Zisheng are
independent non-executive Directors, details of the members
of the Board are set out under the section headed "Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management”.

The Board of the Company is responsible to the shareholders in
general meetings, and to exercise the functions granted by the
general meetings and the articles of association (the “Articles”).
The major responsibilities of the Board include formulating the
business plans and investment advices of the Company, convening
general meetings and signing resolutions proposed at the general
meetings, formulating and reviewing the corporate governance
policies and practices of the Company, reviewing and monitoring
the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management, reviewing and monitoring the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct and Handbook of Corporate Governance
Practices applicable to employees and directors, and reviewing

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report of the Company. The interests
of shareholders and the Company is the primary concern for
every member of the Board. Directors should always comply
with the relevant laws and regulations in a dedicated manner.
The management of the Company is responsible to the Board,
to exercise the board resolutions and report to the Chairman
and the Board in respect of the operation of the Company in a
timely manner. The management timely provides the updated
information to the member of the Board by delivery of monthly
business report and statements, which set out the performance,
financial position and prospects of the Company, the evaluations
that are fair and easy to understand, etc.

All the independent non-executive Directors appointed by the
Company have extensive experience in finance or enterprise
management and other professional areas. Acting in a careful
and detailed manner, independent Directors also need to
safeguard the interests of the Company and the shareholders by
providing independent advice relating to connected transactions
and material issues of the Company and providing professional
recommendations for the long-term and stable development of
the Company’s business.

The Directors are subject to a term of office of 3 years and shall
be eligible for re-election upon expiry of the term in accordance
with the Articles. The Board considers that the non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors could
maintain a reasonable balance with the executive Directors of
the Board, so as to safeguard the interests of the Company and
its shareholders. The non-executive Directors and independent
nonexecutive Directors perform their responsibilities of developing
the Company’s policies by providing constructive opinions.

During the reporting year, the Company complied with the
requirements of Rules 5.05(1) and (2) and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules. As of the end of the reporting year, the Board of
the Company comprises 4 independent non-executive Directors,
among which Cheng Xinsheng has the competent professional
qualification in accordance with the requirements of Rule 5.05(2).
The independent non-executive Directors appointed by the
Company represent at least one-third of the Board members.

After reassessment of the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors by the Company in January 2020, the
Company considered that each of the independent non-executive
Directors has complied with all independence guidelines set out in
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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There is no financial, business, family or material relationship
among the Board members.

A comprehensive training was provided for each new Director
of the Company after his/her appointment, to ensure he/she
would understand the operation and business of the Group and
be fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations as a
Director. The Group provides briefings, site visits, seminars and
other professional development activities to all Directors, so as
to enhance his/her awareness of the relevant GEM Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements as well as the latest
developments in the business of the Group. During the reporting
year, the Directors complied with Code Provision A.6.5 by the
following ways:

Director

Executive Director HITES

Yang Weihong T ETAL

Non-executive Directors FHITES

Li Jian FE(FR2019F
(appointed on 10 May 2019) 5H10HEZ(E)

Peng Bo 3

Tse, Theresa YY i EOE(R20194F
(resigned on 10 May 2019) 55104 FHE)

Yang Xiaoping /N

Zheng Yuying e S

Independent Non-executive BYFYITES
Directors

Cheng Xinsheng TR

Japhet Sebastian Law Priyv&an

Peng Zuowen TAEX

Zhou Zisheng Aa

The Board held 14 Board meetings in 2019 to discuss and decide
on material strategies, material operating issues, financial issues
and other matters as required in the Articles. The Company has
kept the detailed minutes of the relevant meetings.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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The attendance of the Board members during the Year is set out #EFE@KENRAFEEFEZHLEOT -
as follows:

Audit  Remuneration Nomination

Committee Committee Committee General
Board Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Bz ENZER HHzEg RzZE8
L EE LE EE BRRAE
Number of meeting attended/Number of meeting held during tenure (Attendance)
Directors SELEHE EHNERETHE (LER)
Executive Director HiTEs
Yang Weihong BE 14/14 (100%) N/A 1@ N/A T ER 1/1/(100%) 4/4 (100%)
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Li Jian "o g 9/9 (100%) N/A TER N/A FER N/A TiE 3/3(100%)
(appointed on 10 May 2019) (F2019%54108
BZA)
Peng Bo Mot g 12/14 (86%) N/A TER N/A FER N/A T8 2/4.(50%)
Tse, Theresa YY Mete3 HH g 5/5 (100%) N/A TER N/A TER N/A TER 1/1(100%)
(resigned on 10 May 2019) (F2019%F54108
Ft)
Yang Xiaoping BN 14/14 (100%) N/A T N/A TER N/A T 4/4 (100%)
Zheng Yuying EiEs 14/14 (100%) N/A T iE A N/A TR N/A TiE 4/4 (100%)

Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BIF#{TES

Cheng Xinsheng Bt 14114 (100%) 5/5 (100%) 5/5 (100%) N/A TEA 474 (100%)
Japhet Sebastian Law B 14/14 (100%) 5/5 (100%) 5/5 (100%) 171 (100%) 4/4(100%)
Peng Zuowen PIEX 14/14 (100%) N/A PR 5/5 (100%) 1/1 (100%) 4/4 (100%)
Zhou Zisheng "' Bl 14/14 (100%) 475 (80%) N/A RER N/A NEm 4/4.(100%)
Note: MiEE -
1. Mr. Li Jian was appointed as a non-executive Director at the 1. Z{# % A& M2019F5H5 108 £ 17 820194
2019 annual general meeting held on 10 May 2019. ElREEAEAS FEZFIEHTESRK -
2.  Ms. Peng Bo appointed Mr. Zheng Yuying to attend 1 2. &L+ LZFEFELELFEIRER
extraorinary general meeting, 1 annual general meeting and ARG IABRRBEFAGR2NEESS
2 board meetings. Those 4 attendances were not included in 2 AR ABEERI AT LT E
Ms. Peng Bo's attendance. Ms. Peng Bo did not attend the eyt tHREAARRRELESHES
meeting in person due to her personal reasons, which is not = E R B ST RMESCAG.7 ©

in compliance with Code Provision A.6.7.

3. Ms. Tse Theresa YY resigned from the position of non- 3. S E B/ \EMX2019F58 108 £ 7782019

executive Director at the 2019 annual general meeting held FERERATAS FETIENITEETRS -
on 10 May 2019.

4. Mr. Zhou Zisheng appointed Mr. Cheng Xinsheng to attend 1 4. FEERLECEFRRHELELFEINERZ
audit committee meeting. The 1 attendance was not included ZEeeH  ZIARALBERTAFER
in Mr. Zhou Zisheng's attendance. Mr. Zhou Zisheng did not EHEMEER - BERAERREARRER
attend the meeting in person due to her personal reasons, e E e S R REESTRECAG.T ©

which is not in compliance with Code Provision A.6.7.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of the chairman
of the Board (the “Chairman”) and the chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the chief
executive should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Having considered the need of the Company’s business
development, the Board is still of the opinion that the combination
of the roles of Chairman and general manager (“General
Manager”) can effectively formulate and implement the strategies
of the Group, and make appropriate decisions which are in the
interest of the shareholders as a whole. Moreover, Mr. Yang
Weihong has extensive experience in enterprise management
and has been director of various companies responsible for the
management issues. From 11 May 2018 to the date of this report,
the roles of Chairman and General Manager were assumed by Mr.
Yang Weihong. The Board considers that, at this moment, it is not
necessary to separate the roles of Chairman and General Manager.
However, the Board will continue to review the effectiveness
of the corporate governance structure of the Group in order to
decide whether the roles of Chairman and General Manager
should be separated.

At the fourth meeting of the fourth session of the Board of
the Company held on 20 March 2018, Mr. Yang Weihong was
appointed as the General Manager of the Company, details of
which were set out in the announcement of the Company dated
20 March 2018.

At the annual general meeting convened on 11 May 2018, Mr.
Yang Weihong was appointed as an executive Director of the
fourth session of the Board of the Company and elected as the
Chairman at the seventh meeting of the fourth session of the
Board of the Company convened on the same day.

TERM OF OFFICE AND RE-ELECTION

The terms of office of the Directors of the Company (including
independent non-executive Directors) are 3 years. All current
Directors will hold office until the expiry of the fourth session of
the Board. The Directors shall retire upon expiry of their terms of
office and shall be eligible for re-election.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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THE COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Each of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company has specific terms of
reference in place, with the authorities and responsibilities of
each committee clearly defined which have been published on the
websites of the GEM and the Company.

The Company has set up an audit committee pursuant to the
requirements under Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules and
the "Guidelines for the Establishment of Audit Committees”
prepared by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and its duties and responsibilities have been
properly laid down in writing under the requirements of Rule
5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The audit committee currently
comprises Mr. Zhou Zisheng (chairman), Mr. Cheng Xinsheng
and Mr. Japhet Sebastian Law (all being independent non-
executive Directors), among which Mr. Cheng Xinsheng
has the relevant professional qualification and financial
experience. The members of the audit committee convene
meetings regularly with the management and external
auditors and review the internal audit report and the
quarterly, interim and annual results of the Group. The
audit committee reviewed the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 and recommended
approval to the Board. In 2019, the audit committee held a
total of 5 meetings to review the financial information and
the risk management and internal control system etc. of
the Company. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Company complied with the requirements of Rule 5.28 of
the GEM Listing Rules in respect of the audit committee.
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The Company has set up a remuneration committee in
accordance with the requirements of Rule 5.34 of the GEM
Listing Rules and its duties and responsibilities have been
properly laid down in writing under the requirements of Rule
5.35 of the GEM Listing Rules. The remuneration committee
currently comprises Mr. Japhet Sebastian Law (chairman),
Mr. Cheng Xinsheng and Mr. Peng Zuowen (all being
independent non-executive Directors). The remuneration
committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and
structure for all Directors, Supervisors and senior management
of the Company and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy,
reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives, and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management. In 2019, the remuneration committee
held 5 meetings. For the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Company has complied with the requirements of Rule
5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules in respect of the remuneration
committee.

The Company has also set up a nomination committee
which is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy, identifying individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and selecting
or making recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships, assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and succession of Directors. The nomination
committee currently comprises three members, with Mr.
Yang Weihong being the chairman and Mr. Japhet Sebastian
Law and Mr. Peng Zuowen being the members. A majority of
the nomination committee members are independent non-
executive Directors of the Company. In 2019, the nomination
committee held 1 meeting and executed the provisions
on the nomination of the Directors under the Articles and
the policies, procedures and criteria of the Procedures for
Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a Director.
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The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) on 26 March 2019, which sets out
the selection criteria and procedure when considering
candidates to be appointed or re-appointed as a Director.
The Nomination Committee shall consider the following
criteria in evaluating and selecting candidates for
directorship:

3 Character and integrity;

. Qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant
to the Company’s business and corporate strategy;

° Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a member of the Board;

° Board diversity policy and any measurable objectives
adopted for achieving diversity on the Board;

o Requirement for the Board to have independent
directors in accordance with the GEM Listing
Rules applicable to the Company and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with
reference to the independence guidelines set out in
the GEM Listing Rules; and

. Other views that are appropriate to the Company’s
business or as suggested by the Board.

The procedure of nomination by the Nomination
Committee is summarised as follows:

o The Nomination Committee reviews the
structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
periodically and make recommendation on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy;

3 When it is necessary to fill a casual vacancy or
appoint an additional director, the Nomination
Committee identifies or selects candidates as
recommended to it, with or without assistance
from external agencies or the Company, pursuant
to the criteria set out above;
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If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee shall rank
them by order of preference based on the needs
of the Company and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable);

The Nomination Committee makes recommendation
to the Board including the terms and conditions of
the appointment; and

The Board deliberates and decides on the
appointment based upon the recommendation of
the Nomination Committee.

The procedure of re-appointment of Director at

shareholders’ general meeting is summarised as follows:

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

In accordance with the Articles, every director shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and shall be eligible for re-election
at the shareholders’ general meeting;

The Nomination Committee shall review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the
retiring Director. The Nomination Committee
shall also review the expertise and professional
qualifications of the retiring Director, who
offered himself/herself for re-appointment at
the shareholders’ general meeting, to determine
whether such director continues to meet the criteria
as set out above; and

Based on the review made by Nomination
Committee, the Board shall make recommendations
to shareholders on candidates standing for re-
appointment at the shareholders’ general meeting
of the Company, and provide the available
biographical information of the retiring Director in
accordance with the GEM Listing Rules to enable
shareholders to make the informed decision on the
re-appointment of such candidates at shareholders’
general meeting of the Company.
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According to the Articles, shareholders who individually or
in aggregate holding 5% or more of the total number of
voting shares issued by the Company may make a written
proposal to the shareholders’ general meeting to nominate
the candidates for board of directors, but the number of
the candidates shall comply with the Articles and shall not
exceed the number of candidates to be selected.

The Board will from time to time review the Nomination
Policy and monitor its implementation to ensure its
continued effectiveness and compliance with regulatory
requirements and good corporate governance practice.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In order to improve the efficiency of the Board and corporate
governance, the Company recognises the diversification at the
Board level as an important element in maintaining competitive
advantage. The Board diversity policy of the Company is beneficial
for enhancing the performance of the Company. According to the
Board diversity policy of the Company (“Board Diversity Policy”),
the selection of candidates for the Board will be based on a range
of diversified categories, including but not limited to age, cultural
and educational background, race, professional experience,
skills and knowledge. All appointments to the Board shall follow
the principle of meritocracy, taking into account objectively
the benefits of diversification of members of the Board when
considering the candidates.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to
implement the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives
from time to time to ensure its appropriateness and ascertain the
progress made towards achieving those objectives. Current Board
members have various educational backgrounds and expertise,
diverse perspectives and competencies in areas which are relevant
and valuable to the Group, including accounting, strategic
planning, business development and management.

LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance coverage
for the Directors and senior management since May 2019.

TRERRE

REBEARER  EBFBLAHFAEAR
BITEINBRAERDEBED 2HIN
EHBRRAUAERRESAARRAE
REEESHREA - BRANABUEN
ABRABENRTE  LETFEZREEA
8o

EZeBTERNMEREEARERZE
e AHERBERITZ AR L EREERTE
RRHPEERER -

EEESLBE

RRAEFGNUERREEER  ARRABERE
FEBEMNZTILARRRFEBNERTE -
ARRZEEFEZTTEBRBHEAARBNE
RaRR% - REARRAEESZ TEBR(E
ERZUEHR])  MEEEE ANESIEZ KT
ZlLEBREE  BRETRNER XXk
HESR k- BEER RIS -EF
ERELZEHUBARS BRA - LEEBAR
REBtENEEENEZ TR

ExelZERAERAERR  UETEFSZ
TEBE - UETREHZERR  BREGERE
LEEERZEERNEE -REBEEEGKE
ETRAHEESMNEEMND  ABZTRT RN
AEBERBLERESAEEHENE SN BEE
it BERRE  FBERRILEE -

EEREREEABCEERR

ARFIER2019F5EAEERARERAS
SHESBEETRR

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2019

57



58

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2019, the Supervisory Committee comprised 6
members, of whom 3 are shareholder representative Supervisors,
1 is independent Supervisor and 2 are employee representative
Supervisors. The responsibility of the Supervisory Committee is
to monitor the Board and its members and senior management
so as to protect the interests of the shareholders. In 2019, the
Supervisory Committee had monitored the financial position and
the legal compliance of the operations of the Company and has
conducted due diligence review of the senior management by
convening meetings of Supervisory Committee and attending
Board meetings and general meetings. It has duly performed its
duties in a detailed and prudent manner.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment,
maintenance and review of the Group's internal control system
to safeguard shareholder investments and the assets of the
Group. The internal control system of the Group aims to facilitate
effective and efficient management which in turn minimizes the
risks to which the Group is exposed. The system can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against misstatement or
loss.

The Group recognises that good risk management is essential for
the long-term development of the Group's business. Management
is responsible for the establishment, implementation, review and
assessment of the sound and effective internal control system
underpinning the risk management framework. After taking into
full account of the relevant requirements under the GEM Listing
Rules relating to risk management and internal control, the
management continued to improve its existing risk management
and control framework. All employees are committed to
implementing the risk management framework into the daily
operation.

The Board highly emphasized on internal control and continued
to adopt various initiatives to control and monitor the business
of the Company and prevent potential risks. The Company has
established internal audit function, which performed an audit on
the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group
and its subsidiaries during the reporting year. The audit covered
all the material aspects of internal control, including financial
control, operational control and compliance control as well as risks
management.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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Objectives of risk management and internal control

The objectives of the risk management and internal control
framework of the Group are to identify, evaluate and manage
the risk of the Group and achieve the Group's strategic objectives
within the acceptable safety levels. The Group continued to
enhance system construction and adopted the OA system to
establish and consolidate the logic relationship of the internal
authorization system, so as to control and mitigate the risks.
Meanwhile, the Group adopted a three-line risk management
approach to identify, analyze, assess, mitigate and handle risks.
The first line of defence is that our department staff/frontline
employees must understand that their roles and responsibilities to
identify, assess and monitor risks associated with transactions. The
second line of defence is the Group’s management that provides
independent oversight of the risk management activities of the
first line of defence. It ensures that risks are within the Group’s
risk capacity and that the control of the first line of defence is
effective. As the final line of defence, the audit committee of
the Company, with the advices and opinions from the external
professional party (such as the external auditor) on one hand and
annual review by the internal audit function on the other hand,
ensures that the first and second lines of defence are effective
internally and externally.

Procedures and internal control for handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Company has adopted the GEM Listing Rules and the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (“SFO") to handle and disseminate inside information.
The Company ensured compliance in respect of the handling
and dissemination of inside information by adopting a series of
measures including enhancing identification and confidentiality
awareness of inside information, prohibiting unauthorized use
of inside information and giving notice of lock-up period and
securities dealing restrictions to the Directors and employees.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has
made announcements on inside information in accordance with
the GEM Listing Rules and the applicable laws and regulations.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting:

The shareholder(s) (either independently or jointly) holding 3% or
more (including 3%) of the total number of the Company’s voting
shares shall be entitled to propose temporary proposal(s) 10 days
before the convening of the shareholders’ meeting and in writing
to the Company. The Company shall notify other shareholders
within 2 days upon receipt of such proposal(s), and include in
the agenda for the meeting the matters in the proposal(s) that
fall within the scope of functions and rights of the shareholders’
general meeting and with a clear topic of discussion and a specific
matter to be resolved.

Shareholders requesting the convening of an extraordinary general
meeting or a meeting of shareholders of different classes shall
proceed in accordance with the procedures set forth below:

(1) two or more shareholders holding a total of 10% or more of
the shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting sought
to be held may sign one or more written requests of identical
form and substance requesting the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting or a meeting of shareholders
of different classes and stating the subject of the meeting.
The Board shall convene the extraordinary general meeting
or the meeting of shareholders of different classes as soon
as possible after having received the above-mentioned
written request. The shareholding referred to above shall
be calculated as of the day on which the written request is
made.

(2) if the Board fails to issue a notice of such a meeting within
thirty days after having received the abovementioned written
request, the shareholders who made such request may
themselves convene the meeting within four months after
the Board received the request. The procedures according
to which they convene such meeting shall, to the extent
possible, be identical to the procedures according to which
general meetings are to be convened by the Board.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy (the
“Dividend Policy”). The Company endeavours to maintain sufficient
operating capital to develop and operate the Group’s business,
and to provide stable and sustainable returns to its shareholders.

In deciding whether to recommend dividends and determining the
amount of dividends, the Board will consider the performance,
working capital, cash position of the Group and other factors that
the Directors deem relevant at the time.

The declaration and payment of dividends of the Company are
also subject to restrictions of the PRC Company Law and the
Articles and any other applicable laws and regulations. The Board
will also constantly review the Dividend Policy and reserves the
discretion to update, revise, modify and/or cancel the Dividend
Policy at any time. The Dividend Policy will not in any way
constitute a legally binding commitment of the Group in relation
to its future dividends and/or will not in any way render the
Company obligated to declare dividends at any time or from time
to time.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH THE SHAREHOLDERS

The Board intends to encourage and maintain on-going
communication with the shareholders through various channels.
The Company’s annual general meeting provides a good
opportunity for the Directors to meet and communicate with
the shareholders. All Directors shall use their best endeavors to
attend the annual general meeting so as to reply enquiries of
the shareholders of the Company. In respect of any discloseable
and significant matters, the Company makes timely, accurate
and complete disclosure in newspapers and websites specified
by the relevant regulatory authorities pursuant to the disclosure
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules in order to safeguard
the right to information and participation of the shareholders. The
Company has established a specialised department responsible
for investor relations. Placing strong emphasis on communication
with investors, the Company has arranged a number of
general meetings with shareholders and organised site visits for
shareholders so as to enhance investors’ understanding of and
confidence in the Company.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of accounts for each financial period by the management, and
issuing appropriate announcements in accordance with the GEM
Listing Rules for disclosure of all information necessary for the
shareholders to assess the financial performance and other matters
of the Company.

The Company has appointed HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
as the international auditor of the Company for the year 2019.
Fees for audit and non-audit service provided to the Group by the
above-mentioned auditor for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to RMB1,072,800 and zero (there was no non-audit
service provided) respectively.

The Directors of the Company are responsible for preparation
of the financial statements which can truthfully and fairly reflect
financial positions of the Company and its subsidiaries pursuant to
the International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance in Hong Kong.

The statements made by the independent auditors of the
Company on their responsibilities for the financial statements are
set out in the independent auditors’ report in this report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages an external service provider to provide
secretarial service and has appointed Mr. Lo Tai On (“Mr. Lo") as
company secretary. Mr. Lo has confirmed that for the Reporting
Period, he has attended not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training, and will continue to perform and discharge
the duties of a company secretary under the GEM Listing Rules.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

In accordance with its business development, the Company
amended the Articles during the Year to change the company
address to ” Third Floor Office Building, No.39 Bohai Road, Tianjin
Economic Technological Development Area”, add “scrap steel”
and “cars” items to the business scope, and remove operating
projects that have been pending for many years and are no longer
in use, delete the “acquisition of grain” item, and modify the
corresponding clauses in the Articles. Such amendments to the
Articles were approved by the Directors at the Board meeting held
on 29 January 2019 and the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 26 March 2019.

After the end of the reporting period, the Company proposed
to amend the Articles and such amendments were set out
in the circular of the Company dated 3 February 2020. Such
amendments to the Articles were approved by the shareholders
of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting and class
meetings held on 20 March 2020.

The new Articles is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

GENERAL MEETINGS

The general meeting of the Company has the highest authority.
A total of 4 general meetings were held in 2019. The Company
convened an annual general meeting on 10 May 2019 to consider
and approve the resolutions relating to Directors’ Report for 2018
and Report of the Supervisory Committee for 2018. The Chairman
of the Board and the members of each committee attended the
annual general meeting held in 2019, so as to answer questions
raised by shareholders. In addition, chairman of the Independent
Board Committee has attended the annual general meeting held
in 2019 to answer questions related to connected transactions
raised by shareholders. The Company highly values the functions
of the general meeting as it is considered to be a direct and
effective communication channel between the Board and investors
of the Company, and thus encourages all shareholders to attend
the general meetings. The Articles have laid out provisions in
respect of the rights of the shareholders including the rights to
attend, to receive notices of, and to vote at general meetings.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and audited

consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of comprehensive
logistics services in China, mainly including supply chain solutions
and materials procurement and related logistics services.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Company during the Year and
a discussion on the Company’s future business development are
provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” of this
annual report. Description of possible risks and uncertainties that
the Company may be facing can be found in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis”. Also, the financial risk
factors and capital risk management of the Company can be
found in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements. An
analysis of the Company’s performance during the Year using
financial key performance indicators is provided in the section
headed “Financial Review” of this annual report. In addition,
discussions on the Company’s environmental policies and
performance, key relationships with its employees, customers,
suppliers are contained in the section headed “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” of this annual report. The
Company’s compliance with relevant laws and regulations which
have a significant impact on the Company is contained in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual
report.

RESULTS

The financial highlights of the reporting period are set out on
page 6 of this annual report. Discussion and analysis of the results
and financial position of the Group are set out on pages 7 to 19
of this annual report. The consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income is set out on page 96 of this
annual report.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) are set out on pages 96 to 100 of this annual
report.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
AND DIVIDENDS

As of 31 December 2019, profit and total comprehensive
income attributable to the equity holders of the Company was
approximately RMB9,070,000. The Board does not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019
(corresponding period of 2018: nil).

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the reporting period and details of the
distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2019
are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements
prepared in accordance with the IFRSs.

STATUTORY RESERVE FUNDS

Details of the statutory reserve funds are set out in Note 22(a) to
the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of movements in properties of the Group and the
Company during the reporting period are set out in Note 14 to
Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

There was no material contract between the Group and the
controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries during the Year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary including the results and the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is set out in
the section headed “Financial Summary” of this report.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

During the Year, the Company had neither made any investment
for establishment of any new company nor increased or withdrawn
any capital to or from its invested subsidiaries or associates.

CAPITALISED INTERESTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company had no
capitalised interest (2018: nil).
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SHARE CAPITAL

During the reporting period, there was no change in the
Company’s share capital. Details are set out in Note 21 to the

consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the Articles
which requires the Company to offer new shares in proportion to

existing shareholders.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS
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The Directors and Supervisors in office during the Year and up to  RAZ

the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Director
Yang Weihong (Chairman)

Non-executive Directors

Li Jian

Peng Bo

Tse, Theresa YY (Resigned on 10 May 2019)
Yang Xiaoping

Zheng Yuying

Independent Non-executive Directors
Cheng Xinsheng

Japhet Sebastian Law

Peng Zuowen

Zhou Zisheng

Supervisors
Xu Jianxin

Fan Shuyu

Han Wanjin
Wang Yonggan
Wu Gang
Wang Linlin

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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Date of
appointment

BEZEWEH

11 May 2018 72018454111

10 May 2019 #2019%5810H

9 July 2018 72018F7H9H
12 May 2017 A201745H812H
12 May 2017 7A201745H12H
11 May 2018 201858111

12 May 2017 72017453128
12 May 2017 72017453121

12 November 2018 7420184118128

12 May 2017 R201755H12H

12 May 2017 72017§5H12H
12 May 2017 2017457 12H

12 November 2018 72018511 H12H

12 May 2017 #2017458128
12 May 2017 72017457128
13 June 2017 7201746 A13H
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors the annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules, and confirmed
that all the independent non-executive Directors of the Company
are independent persons.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and Supervisors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company.

None of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for contracts amongst companies of the Group, no other
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which
the Company or its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent
company was a party and in which a Director or a Supervisor of
the Company or an entity connected with the Director or the
Supervisor has or had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Company has not entered into any contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company at any time during the Year.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR,
SUPERVISOR OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Ms. Peng Bo, a non-executive Director, was appointed as a non-
executive director of Binhai Investment Company Limited (a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock code:
2886)) with effect from 27 September 2019.
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Save as disclosed above and as at the date of this report, the
Company is not aware of any change in the information of
director, supervisor or chief executive required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules.

ENVIRONMENT POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Group abides by the local laws, regulations and guidelines
issued by the government authorities and puts great emphasis
on environmental protection during the course of operation. The
Group made efforts to improve logistics efficiency, optimized
transportation routes and transportation modes, promoted railway
and waterway transportation due to less discharge of pollutants,
and strictly adhered to the principle of recycle and resource
conservation, especially the recycling of packaging materials.

Our main stakeholders include the customers, suppliers and
employees. We enhance communication with the stakeholders
through day-to-day interactions, enabling us to understand and
satisfy their respective needs. We place great importance on
the feedbacks of our customers, and improve the quality of our
services and maintenance work based on these advices. We also
recognize the importance of our relationship with the suppliers
and the employees. We have established a trust relationship with
our brand suppliers. We provide various trainings and benefits
for our employees to develop their potentials, and move quickly
to solve any potential work issues for them. Further details on
the environmental policy and performance are set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report which forms a part
of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and senior management since May
2019 in respect of legal actions against its Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into during the Year or subsisted at the
end of the Year.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
REMUNERATION AND THE FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and the five highest paid individuals are set out in Note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements of this report.

The remuneration offered to the Directors and senior management
shall be determined based on, among other things, individual
experience, responsibility and time devoted to the Company.

DIRECTORS', SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCATED CORPORATIONS

As of 31 December 2019, none of the Directors, Supervisors
or chief executives of the Company had any interest and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), which were (a) required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
the Directors and Supervisors are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) recorded in the register required
to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

As of 31 December 2019, none of the Directors, Supervisors or
chief executives held any beneficial interests in the equity interests
of any member of the Group, or had any right (whether legally
enforceable or not) to subscribe for or to nominate others to
subscribe for any securities in any member of the Group, or had
any interest, directly or indirectly, in any assets acquired or leased
or proposed to be acquired since 1 January 2019.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
PERSONS HOLDING INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Directors, Supervisors and chief
executives of the Company, as at 31 December 2019, the
following persons had interests or short positions in the shares and
the underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
disclosed to the Company pursuant to the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or had, directly or indirectly, been
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meeting of the Company; or which were required to be recorded
in the register specified in Section 336 of the SFO pursuant to
such Section:

Long position in shares of the Company
ERARBZHR

FERRERADARS K E
EROFEEZERAXENAL

BARABES  EERERTERABMA  R®
2019 12A3MBUA FATHEREBEES LR
RBIZEXVELE2 R3D BB 2 AKX AMA AR HE 2
RAER G ARG 2 =X B - HEHEL
MERENBE—UBRIRARRBRERS HIE
7R Z AR AT ES %k A 2 e
SRR B M HE K] 5533616 8 50 BRI sZ I FIT
s Mo ERmIOAE

Approximate
percentage of

Approximate
percentage of

Capacity
7

Tianjin TEDA Investment Holding Co., Ltd. Beneficial owner
REFERBERERAF ESREA

Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Investment
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.
FARZEE(LR)ERAA

Beneficial owner

EERAA

Chia Tai Land Company Limited
ERENWERAA

Beneficial owner

EERAA

Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited Beneficial owner

REBRRERARAR EEREA

Hong Kong Topway Trading Co., Limited Beneficial owner

EEMRESARAR BEERAA

The National Council for Social Security ~ Beneficial owner
Fund of the People’s Republic of China E##HA A
FEARLNBEZEMLE
REE¢HRES

Number and
class of shares
(Note 1)
ROHE
RE5
(H=E1)

150,420,051 (L)
Domestic shares
150,420,051 H%(L)
WER

77,303,789 (L)
Domestic shares
77,303,7898%(L)

RER

28,344,960 (L)
Domestic shares
28,344,9608% (L)

RER

20,000,000 (L)
H shares
20,000,000/%(L)
Hi%

10,000,000 (L)
H shares
10,000,000 (L)
HIR

8,931,200 (L)
H shares
8,931,2008%(L)
HIR

shareholding in
the same class
of shares

RE—EHR G
EREMABEIL

58.74%

30.19%

11.07%

20.36%

10.18%

9.09%

shareholding to the
Company'’s total
issued share capital
BEAD
ERTRAEH
FREFAESL

42.45%

21.82%

8%

5.64%

2.82%

2.52%

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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On 7 June 2013, Tianjin TEDA Investment Holding Co., Ltd. and
Tianjin Economic and Technological Development Area State Asset
Operation Company transferred 28,344,960 and 77,303,789
domestic shares of the Company held by them to Chia Tai Land
Company Limited and Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Investment (Beijing)
Co., Ltd., respectively and completed the transfer of the shares. So
far as is known to the Directors, chief executives and supervisors
of the Company, as at 31 December 2019, the deemed interests
of Chia Tai Land Company Limited, Chia Tai Pharmaceutical
Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd. and their associates under Part XV of
the SFO were as follows:

Capacity
5t

Beneficial owner
EnHEEA

Chia Tai Land Company Limited
EREMARAT

Interest of corporation controlled by
a substantial shareholder

IRRRNZ LB RS

Fortune (Shanghai) Limited
ER(LB)ERAR

Charoen Pokphand Group (BVI) Holdings Interest of corporation controlled by

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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201356 A7H » REREREERER A A
MRFLEBERMFAZEREEBEEELE QTS R
Fris B AR RINE #%28,344,9600% 277,303,789
BRERETAEMBRA R RIEARERE (L
TOERRDF  RIDBFPFETK - BEARRE
FFETBRABRESHMA  M2019612A4
318 - ERBHBR AR - FAREERELR)
BRAFREBEATRES KRS GKIIEXVED
HTORIEERET ¢

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the same class
of shares

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding to the
Company's total
issued share capital
AN
BRTRELEH
FRESAEDL

Number and
class of shares
(Note 1)

R 8B R &R
(K1)

RE—ERIKRH
BREFNEI L
28,344,960(L) 11.07% 8%
Domestic shares

28,344,960(L)

NER

28,344,960(L) 11.07% 8%
Domestic shares

28,344,960(L)

NER

28,344,960(L) 11.07% 8%

Limited
EREEBVIERAR AR

CPG Overseas Company
Limited

Charoen Pokphand Group Co., Ltd.
MEEEARAR

Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Investment
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.
ERBERZE(ER)ERAA

Sino Biopharmaceutical Limited

PEANHEERAF]

a substantial shareholder

TERRNZ D EE R

Interest of corporation controlled by
a substantial shareholder
FERROZ R EE RS

Interest of corporation controlled by
a substantial shareholder

TERRNZDEE R

Beneficial owner
EREEA

Interest of corporation controlled by
a substantial shareholder

ITERROZ AR

Domestic shares
28,344,960(L)

28,344,960(L)
Domestic shares
28,344,960(L)

28,344,960(L)
Domestic shares
28,344,960(L)
NER

77,303,789(L)
Domestic shares
77,303,789(L)
NER

77,303,789(L)
Domestic shares
77,303,789(L)
WER

11.07%

11.07%

30.19%

30.19%

8%

8%

21.82%

21.82%
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Note:

1. The letter “L" denotes the shareholders’ long position in the
share capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed in this report, so far as is known to the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executives of the Company, as at
31 December 2019, no other persons (other than the Directors
or chief executives or supervisors of the Company) had interests
or short positions which were required to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO; or had, directly or indirectly, been interested in 5% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meeting of the
Company and/or any subsidiary of the Company; or which were
required to be recorded in the register specified in Section 336 of
the SFO pursuant to such Section.

SHARE APPRECIATION RIGHTS INCENTIVE
SCHEME

As at the date of this report, the Company has no arrangement
for such plan.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the reporting period, the percentages of income of the
Group from sales of goods and provision of services to major
customers to the turnover of the Group are as follows:

Tong Fang Global (Tianjin) Logistics Co., Ltd.
(AARBRKRB) W RERAR)

Tianjin Baisen International Trade Co., Ltd.
(REARBEBEESERAR)

Tianjin Binhai Tengfei Logistics Co., Ltd.
(RBAGRERMRERRAR])

Tianjin Anli Metal Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
(RETMZMEBEEARAT)

Tianjin Xiging District Materials Recycling Company
(REMASTRYE LQIKRAT])

Five largest customers in total

None of the five largest customers above is a connected person of
the Group pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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During the reporting period, the percentages of expenses of the
Group arising from the purchase of goods and services from major
suppliers to the cost of sales of the Group are as follows:

Hebei Logistics Group Energy Development Co., Ltd.
Crit¥in =B RFEFR A F)

Chengde JianLong Special Steel Co., Ltd.
(RIERERRINER AR

Tangshan Wenfeng Shanchuan Wheel Hub Co., Ltd.
(B Z2 )meFaRATR)

Tianjin Guoji Dongtai Co., Ltd.
(REEERERERAA)

Chongging Jiachuan Sanjie Transport Co., Ltd.
(EEE/=RERERAF)

Five largest suppliers in total

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major
suppliers or customers.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, management shareholders or substantial
shareholders of the Company or their respective associates has
interest in business that competes or may compete with the
businesses of the Group or has any other conflicts of interests
with the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into continuing connected transactions
with the following entities which are regarded as connected
persons of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules as of 31
December 2019.

1. Toyota Tsusho Corporation, which holds approximately 36.2%
interest in Tianjin Fengtian Logistics Co., Ltd. (“Fengtian
Logistics”, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company),
is a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company.
Under the GEM Listing Rules, Toyota Tsusho Corporation is a
connected person of the Company.
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2. Tedahang is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
On 5 January 2017, Chia Tai Logistics Limited (“Chia Tai
Logistics”) held 40% of the equity interest in Tedahang and
became a controlling shareholder of Tedahang. Therefore, the
registered capital of Tedahang is owned as to 60% by the
Company and 40% by Chia Tai Logistics. Therefore, Tedahang
is a connected subsidiary of the Company under the GEM
Listing Rules.

Details in relation to the connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
as follows:

On 26 September 2016, Fengtian Logistics entered into a
logistics service agreement (the “Logistics Service Agreement”)
with Toyota Tsusho Corporation, pursuant to which Fengtian
Logistics agreed to provide logistics services and supply chain
solutions for automobiles and car components to Toyota Tsusho
Corporation, for a term of three years from 1 January 2017 to
31 December 2019. The Logistics Service Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder were in compliance with
the requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules, and
were exempted from the circular, independent financial advice
and the shareholders’ approval requirements. For details, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 26 September 2016.

On 12 May 2017, the Company and Tedahang entered into the
business cooperation framework agreement (the “Meat Sales and
Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which Tedahang would sell
various frozen meat and provide related storage, logistics and
logistics supporting services to the Company, for a term of three
years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019. The continuing
connected transactions are subject to the reporting, annual
review, announcement, circular and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
12 May 2017 and the Company’s circular dated 6 July 2017.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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ANNUAL CAP AND ACTUAL FIGURE OF
NON-EXEMPTED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS OF THE COMPANY

Description of transaction

Logistics Service Agreement
Meat Sales and Purchase Agreement
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BRARRFRREERETZ W
FELREEREF

Annual Cap Actual Figure
for 2019 for 2019
201956 FE LR 20195 B BAEER
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR%T
31,000 15,414
100,000 - (Note)(Hiz%)

Note:

No transaction amount was recorded for the year ended 31
December 2019 since: (i) the Company was unable to obtain
sufficient credit facilities from banks for purchasing frozen
meat from Tedahang, as a result of which the Company had
ceased purchases of frozen meat from Tedahang in the first
half of 2019; and (ii) although the Company had resumed
purchases of frozen meat from Tedahang after the Company’s
re-allocation of funds and the grant of credit facilities from
banks in the second half of 2019, all such purchases were
uncompleted as at 31 December 2019 and would only be
recorded in the books until completion.

The independent non-executive Directors, Cheng Xinsheng, Japhet
Sebastian Law, Peng Zuowen and Zhou Zisheng, have reviewed
the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
they have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or on terms no more favourable
to the connected person than those available to the
independent third parties or on terms no less favourable to
the Company than terms available from independent third
parties (as appropriate); and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements with terms
which are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole.

In addition, the Group has duly complied with the requirements
under Rule 20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” (revised in September 2019) and with reference to
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Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group on pages 73 to 76 of the Annual Report in
accordance with Rule 20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors consider that those material
related party transactions disclosed in Note 36 to the financial
statements did not fall under the definition of “connected
transactions” or “continuing connected transactions” (as the
case may be) in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules which are
required to comply with any of the reporting, announcement
or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
GEM Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements (if any) under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2019, the Company and its subsidiaries
were engaged in litigation or arbitration of material importance
and litigation or claim of material importance was pending or
threatened against the Company and its subsidiaries. Details are as
follows:

On 11 April 2019, the Binhai New Area People’s Court of Tianjin
Municipality accepted the case of contractual disputes between
the Company (as the plaintiff) and Fengxujia Commercial (Wuxi)
Co, Ltd. (B R E X M| 5 A R 2 A (which is a customer of
electronic products of the Company), Shanghai Zhipu Supply Chain
Management Co., Ltd. (/&R ZEHEEERERAF]) (which is an
independent third party of the Company) and Mr. Ni Weimin ({24
) (as the guarantor) (collectively referred to as the “defendants”),
in which the Company demanded the payment of outstanding
receivables of approximately RMB6.46 million by the defendants.
At the same time, the above-mentioned court had approved the
Company'’s application for litigation property preservation, and seized
one unit of property of the guarantor. Court trial of the case is yet
to commence. After making a reasonable assessment, the Company
will not make provision for impairment for the time being as the fair
value of the preserved property as at the date of this report could
cover the Company'’s claim amount involved in such litigation.

On 29 November 2019, the Binhai New Area People’s Court of
Tianjin Municipality accepted the case of contractual disputes
between the Company (as the plaintiff) and Provence Tomato
Products (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (EZ& M BT & A& RCRKE)E R A 7))
(which is a supplier of tomato sauce of the Company), Provence

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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Food (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (EZEEHRGR(KZE)ERLQF) (which is
an independent third party of the Company) and Mr. Liu Yi (2]—)
(as the guarantor) (collectively referred to as the “defendants”),
in which the Company demanded payment of receivables of
approximately RMB8.60 million by the defendants. Court trial of
the case is yet to commence. After taking into account the value
of the property involved in the litigation property preservation and
making a reasonable assessment, the Company has made a full
provision for impairment for such debt.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, or redeemed or sold or
cancelled any listed securities of the Company.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has, up to the date
of this report, maintained the public float required by the GEM
Listing Rules and approved by the Stock Exchange.

TRUST DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2019, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries placed any trust deposits with any financial institutions
within or outside the PRC.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

DISCLOSURE UNDER CHAPTER 17 OF THE
GEM LISTING RULES

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances that would give
rise to a disclosure requirement under Rules 17.15 to 17.21 and
17.43 of the GEM Listing Rules.

By order of the Board
Yang Weihong

Tianjin, the PRC, 27 March 2020
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

EBE % i& =
m= = Y=
Dear shareholders,

Pursuant to the “Company Law of the People’s Republic of
China”,
relevant regulations regarding Hong Kong listed companies,

the articles of association of the Company and the

the supervisory committee of the Company (the “Supervisory
Committee”), under its fiduciary duty, has taken up a responsible
role to work reasonably and cautiously with integrity and diligence
to protect the interests of the Company, its shareholders and staff.

During the Year, the Supervisory Committee duly reviewed
the operational and development plans of the Company, the
supervisors made their best endeavours to attend each Board
meeting and general meeting held in 2019, and provided
reasonable opinions and recommendations to the Board. It
also constantly monitored the Company’s financial status and
administered the code of practices of the Directors, General
Manager and other senior management. The Supervisory
Committee has made stringent and effective supervision on
whether any material and concrete decision made by the
management of the Company is in compliance with the laws
and regulations of the PRC and the articles of association of the
Company, and whether it is in the interests of its shareholders.

Through its efforts made on supervision and inspections during
2019, the Supervisory Committee considered that the members
of the Board, the General Manager and other senior management
of the Company, during the course of business operation and
management, all strictly observed their fiduciary duties, to act
diligently and to exercise their authority faithfully under the
premise of safeguarding the best interests of the Company. They
carried out duties in accordance with the requirements set out in
the articles of association of the Company. During the reporting
period, the Company carried out operations according to the law
with a standardised management style, and its operating results
were objective and true. The Company had an integral, reasonable
and effective internal control system, and its operation decision-
making process was legal. The continuing connected transactions
of the Company have been carried out on fair and reasonable
terms that are in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole, and no violation to the interests of the shareholders
and the Company has been found. To date, none of the Directors,
Supervisors, General Manager and other senior management had
been found abusing their authority, damaging the interests of the
Company or infringing upon the interests of its shareholders and
employees, nor found to be in breach of any laws and regulations
or the articles of association of the Company.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee has exercised supervision over the
execution of the resolutions of the general meeting and considers
that the Board is capable of executing the resolutions of the
general meeting diligently.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the performance and
the economic benefits achieved by the Company in 2019, and has
full confidence in the future development of the Company.

During the Year, the Supervisory Committee of the Company will
continue to perform its duties pursuant to the relevant laws and
regulations by adhering to the fiduciary duties and strengthening
its supervisory work so as to safeguard and protect the interests
of the Company and the shareholders, fulfil its responsibility in an
honest and diligent manner and hence achieve good performance
in every aspect.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Xu Jianxin

Chairman

Tianjin, the PRC, 27 March 2020
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H% EERSAERE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yang Weihong (15 & 41), aged 51, was appointed as the
General Manager of the Company on 20 March 2018 and
was appointed as the executive Director and Chairman of the
Company on 11 May 2018. He graduated from the Department
of Computing Mathematics and Its Application Software of the
Faculty of Mathematics of School of Law of Nankai University in
July 1990 with a science bachelor degree, and graduated with a
master’s degree in public management from Renmin University
of China in 2005 and graduated from Nankai University with a
master’s degree in law (civil law and business law) in 2008. He
served as a staff at the planning department of Tianjin Dynamic
Factory (KZEZ) Wit EIEE) from July 1990 to October 1992, a
clerk at Tianjin Talent Exchange and Service Center (K3 A
AR L) from October 1992 to June 1995, and worked at
the Labor Personnel Bureau of Tianjin Economic and Technological
Development Area from June 1995 to June 2002, where he held
various positions including a clerk at the Employment Agency (¥
S4BT, deputy director of the General Office (presiding), head
of the Labor Protection Supervision Department (4 B {R # B 52
%1, head of the Special Equipment Inspection and Management
Station (FFiERZE#BIEIRUE), head of the Social Security Division
(1t & 1R [ §l), etc. From 2002 to March 2018, he worked for
Tianjin TEDA Investment Holding Co., Ltd. (KEREKREILRER
A7), and held various positions including deputy manager of the
Human Resources Department (presiding), the manager, director
of the General Office and the head of the Party Committee
office, etc. Currently, he serves as the Secretary of the Party
General Branch, Chairman and General Manager of the Company,
the director and a member of the appraisal and remuneration
committee of the board of directors of Tianjin TEDA Investment
Holding Co., Ltd. (RIEFEREERBMR A F), the director of
He Guang Trade and Business Co., Ltd., and the chairman of
Tedahang Cold Chain Logistics Co., Ltd., Tianjin Fengtian Logistics
Co., Ltd., Tianjin Alps Teda Logistics Co., Ltd. and Dalian Alps
Teda Logistics Co., Ltd. (all being member companies of the
Group). He also acts as the director of Tianjin Teda Football Club
Co., Ltd. (REFERHELIFR L R).

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Jian (Z&), aged 40, graduated from Beijing University of Chemical
Technology in 2001 with a bachelor's degree in management engineering.
He served as the Accounting Manager of the Enterprise Management
Department of Beijing Capital Agribusiness Group, the Chief Financial Officer
(CFO) of the Finance Department of Hulunbeier Sanyuan Dairy Co., Ltd., the
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Finance Department of Beijing Taiyang
Pharmaceutical Industry Co., Ltd., the Senior Manager of the Finance
Department of Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Group and the Chief Financial
Officer (CFO) of CPTP Capital. He is currently the General Manager of New
Business Cluster of Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

Ms. Peng Bo (3233), aged 48, joined the Company as a non-executive
Director in July 2018, International Certified Public Accountant, Tax
Accountant and Intermediate Accountant. She graduated from Tianjin
Tanggu Workers' University (RJZ5EHEE T AE2) with major in financial
accounting in 1998; in 2006, she graduated from Party School of the
Central Committee of CPC (R A R EHZ) with major in economics and
management. She served as the manager in the finance department of
Tianjin Teda Gas Co., Ltd. (REFEMRRERETEAF]) and the deputy
head of assets and capital verification task force at TEDA Holding. She
served as the director of Tianjin Teda Gas Co., Ltd. Currently, she serves
as the manager in the asset management department of TEDA Holding
and director of Tianjin Beacon Paint & Coatings Co., Ltd. (KiEEHEZ
#AEMRAR]), Tanjin Teda Assets Operation Management Co., Ltd. (<
EIEEEELEEAMR AR, Tanjin Yixian International Co., Ltd. (X
SRR T 2 E B AR AR, Tianjin Jinbin Development Co., Ltd.
(REEBZRMMN AR AQT) (Shenzhen Stock Exchange stock code:
000897), Tianjin Teda Urban Rail Investment and Development Co., Ltd.,
Tianjin Taifeng Industrial Park Investment (Group) Co., Ltd., and Binhai
Investment Company Limited (Hong Kong Stock Exchange stock code:
02886).

EE  ESEkEREEE

FHTES

ZEELE A05% 0 R2001FRERIER(ET K
2 REEBEIRSTEN - FERAHESED
XEENeHEE THEB=TIAREREE
ARV EBEFEHEE(CFO) - LR K FEEESR
RARMBEMBEFHMBE(CFO) » EAREEEE
HIISEm AR - MR E M TSBE - WIREILE
ARBEIGE (LR AR A R F X RRR AT -

EH Lt 485 - M2018FE7 A MARRDRIKA
FENITES - HRFMERTAD - RISSEta -
FEEHAD o WI1998F REN R EIRMM T A E
B et EE - R2006%F 0 BENFHRHAHRRE
RCEEERE - CEREFERTARETR
RIS ERACEE - RESERBEZEMABIER -
EREREREMREREETARES - RIRME
REZEREETEILE  REREBEEME
AR RERELEEBLEEEARAR - K2
BIUBIBTERBEBRARAR - REZBEER
BBERAG (G AT 000897 @ FIIFEHZH
FT) » REFREWMHEREZRBRAAF - X
ERUTEREE (KB BERARREERES
BAR(RMDRIE : 02886 BEMAXZHE
$ o

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2019

81



82

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

2  ESKeREEE

Mr. Yang Xiaoping (#/)¥), aged 56, joined the Company as
a non-executive Director in December 2012. He is currently the
Senior Vice Chairman of CP Group (also known as “Chia Tai
Group”), the Vice Chairman and CEO of CPG China, Executive
Director and the Vice Chairman of C.P. Lotus Corporation,
CEO of CT Bright Holdings Limited, a Non-Executive Director
of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China Ltd., a Non-
Executive Director of CITIC Limited, the Co-chairman of the
Board of Directors and the Chairman of Related Party Transaction
and Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of China
Minsheng Investment Group, and a Non-Executive Director of
Honma Golf Limited. Mr. Yang is also a member of the 12th
National Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, Vice President of China Rural Research Institute of
Tsinghua University, Vice President of Global Co-Development
Research Institute of Tsinghua University and President of Beijing
Association of Foreign Investment Enterprises. Mr. Yang Xiaoping
graduated from the School of Economics and Management of
Tsinghua University with doctoral degree and has both studying
and working experiences in Japan.

Mr. Zheng Yuying (287 58), aged 41, joined the Company as
a non-executive Director in May 2018, a doctor and a senior
economist, graduated from the School of Economics of Fudan
University (fE B K245 E7T) with a major in Finance. Mr. Zheng
holds a Doctor’s degree in economics of Fudan University, Master’s
degree in management and a Bachelor’'s degree of Engineering
of Tongji University. Currently, he serves as the deputy manager
in the investment management department of TEDA Investment
Holding Co., Ltd. (RERZEHREZEKRBMR AT and the director
of Tianjin Binhai Teda Aircraft Carrier Tourism Group Co., Ltd..
Mr. Zheng is an FRM certification holder and also the member of
Global Association of Risk Professionals (GARP).

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Xinsheng (f2%74), aged 57, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director in June 2014. He is a professor of
Business School of Nankai University as well as a Doctor and Postdoc
of Management. From 2004 to 2005, he was the visiting scholar of
University of Alberta in Canada and the assistant executive editor-in-
chief of Nankai Business Review and was honored with the awards of
outstanding result in social science for several times. In 1994, he became
a fellow member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He was in charge of four research projects in management funded by
National Natural Science Foundation and four projects funded by the
Foundation of the Ministry of Education. He also participated in over
ten key topic projects funded by National Natural Science Foundation,
National Philosophy and Social Science Foundation and the Humanities
and Social Sciences Foundation of the Ministry of Education. He has
published five books and over 50 articles and has a translated work. He
was an independent director of Offshore Qil Engineering Co., Ltd (Stock
Code: 600583, Shanghai Stock Exchange). Mr. Cheng is currently an
independent supervisor of China OQilfield Services Limited (Stock Code:
601808, Shanghai Stock Exchange).

Mr. Japhet Sebastian Law (Z&3(#£), aged 68, joined the Company
as an independent non-executive Director in August 2012. He
obtained his Doctorate degree of Philosophy in mechanical/industrial
engineering from the University of Texas at Austin in 1976. He joined
the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1986. Mr. Law was the
Associate Dean and subsequently the Dean of the Faculty of Business
Administration of the Chinese University of Hong Kong from 1993
until 2002 and retired from the Chinese University of Hong Kong on
1 August 2012. Prior to returning to Hong Kong, Mr. Law was the
director of Operations Research at the Cullen College of Engineering
and director of Graduate Studies in Industrial Engineering at the
University of Houston, and was also involved with the U.S. Space
Program in his career with McDonnell Douglas and Ford Aerospace
in the United States. Mr. Law has consulted with various corporations
in Hong Kong and overseas. He is also active in public services,
having served as a member of the Provisional Regional Council of The
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and
various other committees, and is also active on the boards of profit,
non-profit and charitable organisations in Hong Kong and overseas.
From July 2010 to July 2013, he was an independent non-executive
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2  ESKeREEE

director of Cypress Jade Agricultural Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
00875). From August 2013 to July 2016, he was an independent
non-executive director of Shanghai La Chapelle Fashion Co., Ltd.
(Stock Code: 06116). Mr. Law is currently an independent non-
executive director of Beijing Capital International Airport Co., Ltd.
(Stock Code: 00694), Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 03382), Regal Hotels International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 00078), Shougang Fushan Resources Group Limited (Stock
Code: 00639) and Binhai Investment Company Limited (Stock Code:
02886), being companies whose shares are listed on the main board
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and Global Digital Creations
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 08271), being company whose shares
are listed on the GEM of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. Peng Zuowen (¥4EX), aged 42, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director in November 2018, graduated
in Information Management from Beijing Forestry University (1t
R AR E K E) in July 2000. He is now the General Manager of
Zhongke Dianji (Beijing) Technology Company Limited (F%}25E
dt R)EHELAEBRAR]), the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief
Product Officer of Guoxin Youe Data Company Limited (B{5/8
SERABRAR]), the Secretary of Big Data Applications Specialty
Association of China Software Industry Association, the Specially-
employed Expert of Beijing Forestry University Big Data Application
Engineering Laboratory and the Guest Professor of Internet Public
Sentiment of Communication University of China (Bl {# % X
B EERE)  He had worked as the Deputy Director of the
Information Center of China Flower and Gardening News ({1 El
TEARME B ALY, a newspaper affiliated to the Economic Daily
Newspaper Group (#% A ##FEKE). He is dedicated to three
key areas including the management and the practical application
of big data in various industries, the research and practice
and application of big data empowerment in urban industrial
development, and the construction and operation of smart cities
by new-generation information technologies. As a result of his
contribution to the aforesaid three key areas, he was interviewed
in the CCTV program “Beyond” (CCTV (#B#)#H) and awarded
with the title “China Outstanding Innovative Entrepreneur of the
Year 2017".

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhou Zisheng (B BER), aged 70, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director in June 2014. He is an associate
professor of economics and a fellow of China National Democratic
Construction Association. He once served as the Deputy Secretary and
the Director of Practice Standards Working Committee of Securities
Association of China. From December 2009 to February 2014, Mr.
Zhou served as the independent director of Sihuan Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (PUER £ % J& 15 B R A a)) (Stock Code: 000605,
Shenzhen Stock Exchange).

SUPERVISORS

Ms. Xu Jianxin (fREZ ¥7), aged 55, was the solicitor of Tianjin
Teda Law Firm, the legal advisor of Tianjin Teda Investment
Holding Co., Ltd. and the deputy director and legal advisor of
the office of Tianjin TEDA Investment Holding Co., Ltd and the
chairman of the supervisory committee of Sihuan Pharmaceutical
Company Limited. She was the supervisor of Tianjin Seamless Steel
Pipe (Group) Corporation Limited (K24 4% il & £ B AR 2 7)),
the supervisor of Tianjin Binhai Energy & Development Co., Ltd.
(REBBRERERRMDBRE AT, the head of the Legal Affairs
and Internal Audit Department and the secretary to the board
of directors of Tianjin TEDA Investment Holding Co., Ltd, deputy
secretary of the commission for discipline and director of discipline
inspection office and the secretary to the disciplinary committee
of audit centre of Tianjin TEDA Investment Holding Co., Ltd. and
chairman of supervisory committee of Tianjin TEDA Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 000652, Shenzhen Stock Exchange). She is currently
a director of Bohai Industrial Investment Fund Management Co.,
Ltd..

Mr. Han Wanjin (28 £), aged 54, joined the Company as a
supervisor in November 2018, a postgraduate, senior economist.
He was the office secretary and deputy director of Tianjin Harbour
Second Stevedoring Company Limited, head of office department
of Tianjin Port (Group) Company Limited, deputy director of the
chairman’s office of Tianjin Port Holdings Company Limited (Stock
code: 600717, Shanghai Stock Exchange). He is currently a chief
representative at the Tianjin Representative Office of Tianjin Port
Development Holdings Limited (Stock code: 3382, Hong Kong
Stock Exchange).
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

2  ESKeREEE

Mr. Wang Yonggan (E7KTF), aged 42, joined the Company as a
supervisor in May 2017, is a certified public accountant registered in
China and a tax accountant registered in China. He graduated from
Dalian University of Technology with a Master’s degree in Business
Administration. He was the assistant director and deputy director of
the finance department of Jiangsu Chia Tai Tian Qing Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd, finance manager and assistant finance director of Chia Tai
Pharmaceutical Group, deputy general manager, general manager
and director of Chia Tai Energy Materials (Dalian) Co., Ltd, general
manager of the risk audit department of Chia Tai Pharmaceutical
Group, executive deputy general manager of Tedahang Cold Chain
Logistics Co., Ltd. Currently, he is the general manager and a director
of Tedahang Cold Chain Logistics Co., Ltd..

Mr. Wu Gang (2 4f), aged 54, joined the Company as a supervisor
in May 2017, graduated from Tianjin University of Technology
and obtained a Doctor’s degree from the Business School of
Tianjin University of Finance and Economics. Mr. Wu has extensive
experience in corporate management and capital market operations
with involvement in listing and refinancing of various onshore and
offshore companies. He was deputy director of the office of Tianjin
Li Da Group Co., Ltd, secretary of the board of directors and deputy
general manager of Tianjin Jinbin Development Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 000897, Shenzhen Stock Exchange), chairman of Tianjin Jinbin
New Materials Co., Ltd., chairman and general manager of Tianjin
Jinbin Yadu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd, chairman and general
manager of Tianjin Jinbin Science and Technology Industrial Park
Investment Co., Ltd, assistant general manager of Tsinlien Group and
Tianjin Development Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0882, Hong Kong
Stock Exchange) and secretary of the board of directors of Tianjin
Tsinlien Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. Currently, he is a teacher at
the Business School of Hainan Tropical Ocean University.

Ms. Fan Shuyu (S8 £), aged 40, became a staff supervisor in May
2017, graduated from Tianjin University of Finance and Economics
in 2001 and 2004 with a Bachelor of Science degree and a master's
degree in management respectively. She joined Chia Tai Group in
January 2004 and joined the Company in January 2013. She served
as a deputy general manager of the Company’s finance department
and deputy general manager of internal audit of risk management
department successively. She is now the deputy general manager
of the Company’s Office of the Board and responsible for internal
auditing function of the Company, and acts as the financial controller
of Tianjin Teda Freight Forwarding Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Group.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Wang Linlin (E##f), aged 36, became a staff supervisor
in June 2017. She graduated from the Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law in 2007 with a bachelor’'s degree (major in
law); she also obtained a bachelor’'s degree (major in psychology)
from the Central China Normal University. Ms. Wang passed
the National Judicial Exams of the People’s Republic of China in
2009, and joined the Company in 2010 as a specialist of the risk
management department and legal supervisor of the President’s
Office. She currently acts as the legal supervisor of the legal and
risk control department.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yang Weihong (15 # #L), aged 51, the executive Director
and General Manager of the Company. He is responsible for the
overall management of operation, liaison with major customers
and planning for the future business development of the Group.
Please see his biography set out in the sub-section headed “Executive
Director” above.

Mr. Tang Zhizhong (BZEE), aged 50, graduated from the Department
of Industrial Business Management of Tianjin University of Finance and
Economics with a bachelor’s degree in economics in 1991 and obtained
the master's degree in international shipping and transport logistics from
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2005. From 1991 to 1994, he served
with Tianjin Municipal Bureau of Labor and Social Security as a clerk.
From 1994 to 2002, he was the associate chief officer, chief officer, chief
and vice investigator of the Work Committee of Tianjin Economic and
Technological Development Zone and Free Trade Zone of the Communist
Party of China successively. From 2002 to 2005, he was a vice investigator
of the Administrative Committee of Tianjin Economic and Technological
Development Zone. From 2005 to 2012, he served as head of the business
management department, assistant to the general manager and executive
deputy general manager of Tianjin Fengtian Logistics Co., Ltd.. In May 2012,
he joined the Company as the general manager of the comprehensive
management department. From 2015 to 2017, he served as the vice
president of the Company and the general manager of the comprehensive
management department. He is currently the vice president of the
Company, and the general manager of the headquarters of planning and
development and security and technique department of the Company. He is
also the director of Tianjin Alps Teda Logistics Co., Ltd. and Dalian Alps Teda
Logistics Co., Ltd.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

2  ESKeREEE

Mr. Yu Fukang (AT E EE), aged 48, graduated from the Accounting
Department of Tianjin University of Finance and Economics (K &
B4 B & 5t =2 %) and is a senior accountant. He was finance
manager of Tianjin Feiyan Garment Co., Ltd. (K}ZREZ K H R
2~ A]) from 1997 to 2003 and manager of finance department
of Tianjin Anzhong Electronics Co., Ltd. (K}ZEZHEFE R A7)
from 2003 to 2007. After joining the Group in 2007, he served as
finance manager of Tianjin Yuan Da Xian Dai Logistics Co., Ltd., as
well as accounting officer, deputy general manager of the finance
department and assistant to president of the Company successively.
He is currently the vice president of the Company and general
manager of the headquarters of procurement and logistics in charge
of the headquarters of procurement and logistics and procurement
and logistics management department of the Company. He is also
chairman of Tianjin TEDA International Freight Forwarding Co., Ltd.,
vice chairman of Tianjin Ferroalloy Exchange Co., Ltd., director of
Tedahang Cold Chain Logistics Co., Ltd. and He Guang Trade and
Business Co., Ltd. and supervisor of Tianjin Fengtian Logistics Co.,
Ltd..

Ms. Wu Yanmin (R 88, aged 46, a Master of accounting, intermediate
accountant, certified public accountant, certified tax agent, registered land
valuer, registered real estate valuer, and registered asset appraiser. She
graduated from Nanjing Forestry University with a major in accounting
in June 1994; graduated from Shandong Economics University with a
Bachelor's degree in accounting in July 2001; and graduated from Tianjin
University of Finance and Economics with a Master’s degree in accounting
in June 2011. She was a cashier, accountant and financial officer of
Shandong Jining Pharmaceutical Corporation (LI 54 28 i 28 L g [E
7)), a senior audit manager of the Tianjin Branch of China Audit Certified
Public Accountants LLP; she served as the financial supervisor, the deputy
financial manager, and the financial manager of Tianjin Tifen Industrial
Park Investment (Group) Co., Ltd and served as the chief financial officer
of Ringpai National Chain Veterinary Hospital Management Co., Ltd. She
joined the Company in July 2018 as the financial general manager of the
Company. Since May 2019, she has served as the chief financial officer of
the Company.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B ZBEN RS

31/F, Gloucester Tower BB
HLB Bl #4F & < 6 F 5% 57 A FR A 4§ The Landmark IR
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED 11 Pedder Street 24TH119%
Central BEES
Hong Kong HERTITRE31E

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

TIANJIN BINHAI TEDA LOGISTICS (GROUP) CORPORATION
LIMITED

(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tianjin
Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively refer to as, the “Group”) set
out on pages 96 to 224, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements sections of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B ZHENRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

FARETSEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional REIERIFEEEBERMMELHE - A5 MY
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the AHEIAHIKEBRENETFZAEENSEE - HM
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These REHAHIABEREXTVEAEL)RFILERER
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the MEBZZSEE MIieRZESETESEBELS
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our & o

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Refer to note 2 and note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had gross
trade, bills and other receivables of approximately
RMB1,634,530,000 (2018: RMB1,296,654,000) and
aggregated provision for impairment of approximately
RMB73,118,000.

In general, the credit terms granted by the Group to
the customers ranged between 90 to 180 days (2018:
90 to 180 days). Management applied judgement
in assessing the expected credit losses (“ECL").
Receivables with known financial difficulties or
significant doubt on collection are assessed individually
for provision for impairment allowance. ECL are also
estimated by grouping the remaining trade receivables
based on shared credit risk characteristics and
collectively assessed for likelihood of recovery, taking
into account the nature of the customer, its business
and its ageing category, and applying expected credit
loss rates to the respective gross carrying amounts of
the trade receivables. The ECL rates are determined
based on historical credit losses experienced up to 3
years and are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information such as macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
trade receivables.

We focused on this area due to the impairment
assessment of trade, bills and other receivables under
the expected credit losses model involved the use of
significant management judgements and estimates.

Our procedures in relation to independent professional
valuer’s ECL assessment on trade receivables included:

o Understanding and evaluating the key controls
that the Group has implemented to manage and
monitor its credit risk, and validating the control
effectiveness on a sample basis;

o Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile
of the trade, bills and other receivables as at 31
December 2019 to the underlying financial records
and post year-end settlements to bank receipts;

o Inquiring of management for the status of each of
the material trade, bills and other receivables past
due as at year end and corroborating explanations
from management with supporting evidence,
such as performing public search of credit profile
of selected customers, understanding on- going
business relationship with the customers based on
trade records, checking historical and subsequent
settlement records of and other correspondence
with the customers; and

o Assessing the appropriateness of the ECL
provisioning methodology, examining the key
data inputs on a sample basis to assess their
accuracy and completeness, and challenging
the assumptions, including both historical and
forward-looking information, used to determine
the expected credit losses.

We found that the management judgment and estimates
used to assess the recoverability of the trade, bills and
other receivables and determine the impairment provision
to be supportable by available evidence.

REBBFEMREERNERAF]



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

BIUZHEN RS
KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BEEEHEE )
MEEHEE RPN O AEEREH B
CUY et TS BT el Rl
HLMA SRR E2R19 - B M5 B T B A 2 70 B AT S B

M20195F12A310 - ESBEERBESEKFIE - &
U B HE K H i FE W R IE £ B A R #51,634,530,0007T
(20184 : AR%1,296,654,0007T) K E B & 2584
B ARET73,118,0007T ©

—mE EEERTEFPHEEHNFI0E180
H - (201845 : 90E180H ) - B E A HTEMEE
EBER([EHEEEIE]RERHE - Yo MU RS
H UL A B K BT B A FE U SR IB 2 SR (B B T DAE BT
it BH - EHEEBRDEBREXREERBRER
HEBEHERRFIBBS AT TG - WHRFEKD
WABElE BERERETPRME  HEKRIRKRER]
THEFERFBSANEERERERAREHEERE
X BHEEBEEXIREREIFNESFEEEE
TE o WAHRENRMER RATEEER - flinga2Rs
EEE BEWGRIBEE NN RBKERE -

BB IR BB IEAEREEEREAETNE SR
WoskoR - [EUERE R A BRI EF S RERE
B E A AEREE -

BRHENEF R

. WA N BRECEROBRENEE AT
ERERHEERR

. B EN2019F12 A31 B A B EANE 5
FEMRIA - FEMER IR I E B WK IR M AR R 15 0 I
FEENRITRPERRE

. ARERERFENSNERNESREFIE - B
RIE S ELAD R WO IR B AR K IR FE B A RE L AR
BEBRXRE  WARSHMETFHNERMRRL - R
BRXILEEBRETFOFREIZIME REFF
REFPEMBEERNBERERNBELE &

. AHEEHEEERRETANEE N - BRI
AR RS BUR B A AR (S LB M S B - Rk
EARNEEEREREROBERAEEEMOR

% o

BPEREEERUNEESREFIE  BEREREM

P MK 0 T M S (B 1 1 L B R A
AEBBLH -

ANNUAL REPORT 43R 2019

91



92

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B EE R

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B EE R

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

REE BTSSR R ARIE
NEE#)

s HESRARELESHERNREMIFL
fawm o WIRBPIEGNEREE TR
FHEAZRNIIGENABHOERTHEE N - 1
MAgL B BRENFEQSEHENEL
BEARE - WEMRBR/FEEATHEEN -
QAN BEZHBERETPIREEREIR
BOHFBERERPHABIE - WABKET
B AIRMEEHRIFEREER - TN
R DERBERBERE B HAREN

BAZBE - A RRFEIBRAAELE

¥ EREEASELE -

o HEAHMBHRRNERIBIN B R
WA - BEREER  UREHIBHREE
BRERRBEZZMER -

o B BEEEARERBREBIBNUHERE
7R KBS NEZRE  WEHE TS
BRERER - RMBEEEETNIM
EBMHT BMAREABRAEZZHER
e

BREMERS  BRAREZZESR(EFEE)
EAWEEHE  KELHREREFEREE
TTAR  BREMESETBRETAERAIE
ERERE AR

BfTMAEZZEGELER  BHRMATEHA
B MR ERERER - WEREFEBA
EAEKRAEYERMBLENMERERE
fEE - ARBRIB # 5 5E (WER) -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Shek Lui.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Shek Lui
Practising Certificate Number: PO5895

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020

MR Y Glik

REE BT S  ERRARIE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AEmMEMEERAR

2019 2018
20195 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s AR¥T T ARBTFT
Revenue KA 6 2,716,799 2,613,904
Cost of sales SHE A (2,561,629) (2,480,110)
Gross profit EF 155,170 133,794
Administrative expenses THEX (59,590) (49,039)
Other gain and loss — net HEmias & EE 58 7 41,474 14,721
Loss/gain on change in fair value of REMEL R BEZEN
investment properties &8ss 16 (3,700) 4,100
Impairment loss of trade, bills and other Z 5 EUGKIE « FEUZEIR M E
receivables, net MEW IR EREFE  4.1b i (37,172) (41,028)
Operating profit SRR 96,182 62,548
Finance costs BE A 10 (42,416) (32,134)
Share of profit of investments HRAEREARDY
accounted for using the equity AR 1R 5 A
method 11b 15,793 17,324
Profit before income tax MRETBBLADER 8 69,559 47,738
Income tax expense TSz 12 (26,785) (20,130)
Profit for the year FERF 42,774 27,608
Other comprehensive (loss)/income  Ht2HE (E5iE), WA
Item that will not be reclassified HEgr rgsimoBRBEREN
subsequently to profit or loss: HE :
Equity Instruments at fair value through #EBEMEEWEIE DA
other comprehensive income BEARNEZTH (384) 2,190
Total comprehensive income for the FEXEWAZLE
year 42,390 29,798
Profit for the year attributable to: T 5B TS FEER
Owners of the Company RRBEAA 9,454 2,569
Non-controlling interest e R 33,320 25,039
42,774 27,608
Profit and total comprehensive T5I& 75 EERERR
income attributable to: ZHEKRALLE
Owners of the Company ViN/NSIEZS DN 9,070 4,759
Non-controlling interest eI 33,320 25,039
42,390 29,798
Earnings per share (RMB cents) BRAEMARED)
— Basic and diluted —EARREE 13 3 1
Dividends IR 30 - -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

REBBFEMREERNERAF]

BEPHP REBA R F & R SR A — 8B D ©



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

| IR

As at 31 December

M12831H
2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE ARMT T ARBTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Land use rights T s A 14 - 18,917
Property, plant and equipment M - REREE 15 200,203 161,142
Investment properties wEYE 16 303,000 306,700
Investments accounted for using HRAEREARNRSE
the equity method 11b 226,558 239,151
Equity instruments at fair value FREMBEYEE AL
through other comprehensive income BEARNERTA 11c 60,410 18,500
790,171 744,410
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 18 1,100 1,533
Trade, bills and other receivables B S EWGIE - ERERR
HAh pE U kI 19 1,634,530 1,296,654
Pledged bank deposits EERRITFR 20 127,773 172,591
Cash and cash equivalents Re KB EEY 20 406,614 387,273
2,170,017 1,858,051
Total assets mEE 2,960,188 2,602,461
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EaREE
Equity attributable to owners AAREE AELER
of the Company
Share capital [N 21 354,312 354,312
Other reserves Hh % 22 112,749 107,916
Retained earnings REBEF 23 499,060 494,849
966,121 957,077
Non-controlling interests FEIERERE 118,556 108,859
Total equity s 1,084,677 1,065,936
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AHRPBARAK

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2019 2018
20195 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
st ARETT ARETIT
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Deferred income RIEA 27 4,823 5,177
Lease liabilities/obligation under HEaE MEHERR
finance leases 28 68,326 7,304
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEE & 29 56,997 57,923
130,146 70,404
Current liabilities RBAaE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAMERFRIA 24 501,365 708,353
Contract liabilities AHAEE 25 243,817 202,042
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHRAaRE 8,540 6,072
Borrowings =S 26 957,528 504,520
Lease liabilities/obligation under HEBE BMEMRSEMT
finance leases 28 34,115 45,134
1,745,365 1,466,121
Total liabilities FoN=Fi 1,875,511 1,536,525
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 2,960,188 2,602,461
Net current assets REEEFE 424,652 391,930
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 1,214,823 1,136,340

These consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March

2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

Yang Weihong

Director

EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

REBBFENRE

ZEAHVBREREEHESTZN2020F3/827
BibfE NIRRT - WHRLTATRERES

Zheng Yuying
B
Director

EF

BEPHPT A2 S A T B mR M — 3D

B ERAT



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
HEREBE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 §§2079¢72ﬁ37 HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ROREE AR
Other Non-
Share reserves Retained controlling Total
capital  (Note 22) earnings Total interests equity
HtbitE
Rx (&22) REERF @t FERES aER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARET:
Balance at 1 January 2018 R2018E1 A1 BN E 354,312 100,662 497,344 952,318 103,280 1,055,598
Profit for the year EFREN - - 2,569 2,569 25,039 27,608
Other comprehensive income for the year FEE 2 AEMRA - 2,190 - 2,190 S 2,190
Profit and total comprehensive income ~ FEENREZERARE
for the year - 2,190 2,569 4,759 25,039 29,798
Transfer from retained earnings BRERERA - 5,064 (5,064) - - -
Dividends paid BARE - - - - (19,460) (19,460)
Balance at 31 December 2018 and H20185128318 R
1 January 2019 019F1 518 0ER 354,312 107,916 494,849 957,077 108,859 1,065,936
Adjustment on initial application of BRERERT Bt ENZ
IFRS 16 1655 % = = (26) (26) (23) (49)
201951 B 1BRER(IEE
Balance at 1 January 2019 (restated) 7)) 354,312 107,916 494,823 957,051 108,836 1,065,887
Profit for the year EFRR - - 9,454 9,454 33,320 42,774
Other comprehensive loss for the year ~ FEEMZASE - (384) = (384) = (384)
Profit and total comprehensive (loss)/ ERRFRZE(ER)/
income for the year BARE - (384) 9,454 9070 33320 4239
Transfer from retained earnings ERBRERH - 5217 (5:217) = = =
Dividends paid BERRE - - - - (23,600) (23,600)
Balance at 31 December 2019 H2019E 12831 AR L 354312 112749 499,060 966121 118556 1,084,677
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEMIKIFEEXRZEFA MY EREN—IH

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
E/EJ iz //IL:E%%

2019 2018
2019F 20184
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
B 5E ARBT T ARBTT
Cash flows used in operating activities K& EEfFARERE
Cash generated from operations EEBMEHS 32 (440,318) (256,874)
Interest received BUFE 20,444 13,570
Interest paid BATFE (31,036) (32,134)
Income tax paid BERATSH (25,243) (21,920)
Net cash used in operating activities = @®EBAARERE® L SRR _(297,3%8)
Cash flows from investing activities R&EZFEBHRLHE
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BERRITFITORD 44,818 (7,254)
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  WERRERE
equipment (14,119) (12,668)
Proceeds from disposal of property, Hjﬁi%i W= kR ERTS
plant and equipment FKIA 5,017 5,931
Dividends received from investments }mFﬁHfi SENRBIRE 2
accounted for the using equity Bz S
method 28,386 27,401
Net cash generated from investing KREEBFEES
. kR . Glioee . [
Cash flows from financing activities BEEEBHRLHE
Proceeds from borrowings BRI FT1S50IA 1,439,475 1,278,018
Repayments of borrowings EEER (986,467) (1,093,493)
Proceeds from lease liabilities/obligation THE&E BMEHEET
under finance lease ZFriS5k1A 100,000 -
Repayments of lease liabilities/ HEaE MEMESEMR
obligations under finance lease ZEERIA (98,016) (46,834)
Dividends paid to non-controlling ERIEERER MR E
interests (23,600) (19,460)
Net cash generated from financing BMEEBAFRE TR
At e eeemmmemeemeeeeseeecmmmmeeeeeeemeeeneee- S ey I 118,231
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERRELZEY
cash equivalents ® () BE 19,341 (165,717)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January W1 B1B8EEMELEEY 387,273 552,990
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 B12A31HNRE R
December WEZEEY 406,614 387,273

BEPH B X A% B A DF T TSRk Y —

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited — K2/&/GREMREERHBRATF]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B oI R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912531 HIFFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively refer to
as, "the Group”) are principally engaged in provision of
logistics and supply chain solutions services and trading
and related logistics services in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC").

The Company was established as an investment holding
company in the PRC by its promoters, Tianjin Teda
Investment Holding Co., Ltd. (RKERZEKEIF/RERAR])
("TEDA Holding”) and Tianjin Economic and Technological
Development Area State Asset Operation Company (RJEAL
BEMAEREAEELE QR (“TEDA Asset Company”)
as a joint stock limited company on 26 June 2006. Both
TEDA Holding and TEDA Asset Company are controlled
by Tianjin Economic and Technological Development
Area Administrative Commission (“TEDA Administrative

Commission™).

Pursuant to the Group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”)
in preparation for the listing of the Company’s overseas
listed foreign shares (“H shares”) on the Growth
Enterprises Market (the “GEM") of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Company
became the holding company of the Group in June 2006.
The Company’s H shares were listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange on 30 April 2008.

On 18 November 2011, TEDA Holding entered into a
share transfer agreement with Chia Tai Land Company
Limited (“Chia Tai Company”), while TEDA Asset Company
entered into a share transfer agreement with Chia Tai
Pharmaceutical Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (“Chia Tai
Pharmaceutical Company”). Accordingly, TEDA Holding
and TEDA Asset Company agreed to transfer 28,344,960
(8% of ordinary shares) and 77,303,789 (21.82% of
ordinary shares) domestic shares of the Company to Chia
Tai Company and Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Company
respectively. In 2012, the two aforementioned domestic
share transfers were approved by the relevant state-owned
assets supervision and administration authorities of the
PRC. The registration procedures of the related transfers
have been completed on 7 June 2013.

1.

—REH
REBBFEMREBERNDBERAR (AR
ADEENRBAR (GBI AR D EERN
hEARAMBE ([ E DREREDRIRG
NP ERRAR T RRE R E S AR YRARE
7%

RABHEFBARERERELERBERA
A REERR ) R RGBT 2 = =
BEERLEAR(IRERBEEERR DR
2006%F6 A26 BTE AR Bk 2 AR E =R AR ()
BRATF] - REZEREKEFREREENT]
HREXEEERMNAZEETREZEG([X2F

REREEZES ES

BIEABEER QTGN ETINER(THAR D)
EEBBERSMAR RGBT
GEM ([GEM]) EmimiEf TR R EEH(N =
48]) - ANARIFR2006%F6 AR A AL
& AR] o ARQAIBIHAR 200854 A30H £
B FTGEM 777

RERRBEEASHERAR([IEREH])
MR2011E11A18A £ F — B KR H E # 1H
o MAEMBREE QT EEFRREERE
(ER)ERAR(ERELE ) EE—IER
MEEGE o Bt - RELREXZAER
AERARRED B EKRE # & IE AR %
B NN BN A BR28,344,9600% (38 A% A9
8%) 277,303,789/ (& AR #121.82%) °
20129 - FAMIBEBRNERERD ES
FREERBEEEETEREMNE B
20136 A7THEE RN ELEFEL S
BT ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e BRI ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F
1.

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Directors of the Company
consider TEDA Holding as the immediate holding company

and the ultimate holding company of the Company.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi

("RMB") unless otherwise stated. These financial

statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 27 March 2020.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which is a collective
term that includes all applicable individual IFRSs,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations promulgated by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”), and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and
the Company. Note 2 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

1.

—RER &)

20196128318 » AR A BB HRIERL
R BA RN B E B A T KRR A

7 o

BRIES AR - BRI EFEREAARE
(TARBDZ7 - W FEHHIREX S 7K2020
FIF27TAEE=SROETIE -

A

(a)

EHIZA
EHMBRECIRBEE T BHIRE E
AR TSRS R ] - ARIERK
BHEMZES((HE S ENEZE
& ) B P A 8 A (R B B BR B 5 3R
HER - BB ER(EREsE
A R2REBNGREREELARSHE
AIRE - N ZEEHPBREN
RFEBMRAGEMEH LM R AI([GEM
ETRRAD) REB A BHEG R EAE
B o

BRetENEZ B RMHE TS
MG ERTRRMEREER > YRA
SERARBARNGF R ERERK
AR R A - M2 iRt E A B
FetHRERERMSIHEEAE
BEBENZEVBHRRARKRNE
ST BEREBHER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RIS R =E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % 2079’5#72/5’37 HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
financial instruments and investment properties that
are measured at revalued amounts or fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained
in the accounting policies below. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of IAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.

2. WAEEE#)

BB MR ITIARE LA EER
2 HEESBRTARREMEANRER
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EFRXGHHEEER KBS ERR
BERXANER  TR%EBRREEE
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WU EEEE - EBRM B RE ER
SE25% & B P H) PARR 00 8 AT A R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B OB IS R I T
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31H IFF/E
BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

2.

(c)

(d)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The Group's principal operations are
conducted in the PRC. The consolidated financial
statements have been presented in RMB, which is
the Group’s functional and presentation currency.

Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs")

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
for the first time in the current year:

IFRS 16 Leases
BURR A 15 5 2RI B 1657 HE

IFRS 9 (Amendments)

B B 75 ¥ 5 ZE RN S8 955 (IE R AR)
IFRIC — Int 23

HRM R EREZESREF 235
IAS 19 (Amendments)

e TR 195 (IBETA)

IAS 28 (Amendments)
e Rt YRS 285k (f
IFRSs (Amendments)
AR B 75 ¥R 5 L B (B 5T )

Except as described below, the application of the
new and amendments to IFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied IFRS 16 for the first time in
the current year. IFRS 16 superseded IAS 17 Leases
("IAS 17"), and the related interpretations.

ERIA) N NS

2. WEEE)

(c)

(d)

heER FIBRE
AEEEERNMBRRABIENE
BNERZEREEMEIBEER
BNER(HREERE - A%H
MEREEHHETBEET - SHUB
BRAARBE2H  ARBAAKE
HInEE B MIIREHE -

P& A 3 =T 8 Bk Bt 35 3R o5 2 A (T
BRI R E R |) RET A

RAFE  AEEEXERBELE
AERE((EAGFMAE RN
Al BRI S A RAERT A

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
BEEAEMERIEIERERX

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment
PGBl TR 60 N HEE 1

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
TR - Bk S

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
HBENTNRAER

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015 — 2017 Cycle
20155 220175 BB B TS SR 5 22 Bl 2 S E 2o

BT XXPr &SN - MAFEEAFR]
B R B 7% 5 2 R R EE R 0 AR
SEAFERBEFEHBHRERE LMK
MR/ REZEEHDBERRABRE
EEBEATE -

BRI iR SR RIE 16595 HE

REBNAEE EIRE R BRI B3
SFEAFE 165 - BEMBRELERE
MR E B G ERFN7TREE
(BB EFERIE 175 ) RiERRRE -
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(d)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912531 H1FF/E
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs") (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to
apply IFRS 16 to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying IAS 17 and IFRIC-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease and not apply this standard to contracts that
were not previously identified as containing a lease.
Therefore, the Group has not reassessed contracts
which already existed prior to the date of initial
application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
January 2019, the Group applies the definition of a
lease in accordance with the requirements set out
in IFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract contains
a lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied IFRS 16 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect recognised at the date of
initial application, 1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised
additional lease liabilities and measured right-of-
use assets at the carrying amounts as if HKFRS 16
had been applied since commencement dates, but
discounted using the incremental borrowing rates
of the relevant group entities at the date of initial
application by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(i) transition.
Any difference at the date of initial application
is recognised in the opening retained profits and
comparative information has not been restated.

2. WEEE)
(d) FEFB 7T B PR Bt 7 3R & 2 B ([ B

BB AR ) RASHT A (4

BB AR R 16 ()
AENES
AREDRBTTRE A DY %
H R R B AR E 1 TR R A
BRERESASRBEIRRT
RHARTOARERBAREHA L
BAERY RS RN E6H - RY
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SRR o L - 7K SR S R RS
MESZAEEEENS NETEN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e BRI ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31H IFF/E

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(d)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs") (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
Definition of a lease (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

When applying the modified retrospective approach
under IFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the
following practical expedients to leases previously
classified as operating leases under IAS 17, on
lease- by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the
respective lease contracts:

(i) elected not to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for leases with lease
term ends within 12 months of the date of
initial application;

(i) excluded initial direct costs from measuring
the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application;

(iii) applied a single discount rate to a portfolio
of leases with a similar remaining term for
similar class of underlying assets in similar
economic environment. Specifically, discount
rate for certain leases of properties and
motor vehicle in the PRC was determined on
a portfolio basis;

(iv) used hindsight based on facts and
circumstances as at date of initial
application in determining the lease term
for the Group's leases with extension and
termination options; and

(v) relied on the assessment of whether leases
are onerous by applying IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
as an alternative of impairment review.

2. WEEE)

(d) FE P37 BB B M 3R 5 22 AU (T
BRI ERER ) REFT A (4)

EIBREI 35 2RI E 1655 1HE ()
HENES (&)

TERETEAN(E)

RBIE S RA G E TR PAE A BIR
B REERE 165 - REBH L
AR R B &5 ERIE1 7R D BAK
EHENHEE  RHEEE%E . TIRE
HMESNEENERATIITEES
A

() BETHEEHRAERERAH
1218 7 7 B ey 1H & R R P
BENEBERE

(iy REXEBBEMAENERAEE
ETERMGEEER

(i) HEULERETFEUENEE
MBRLRGHRNEEES ER
E—fRX- ABEWE - F@F
BMmENR AENETHEENNE
FIRMEEEEE

(v ERTAEEAEHTHREN
IBRIBAER  RAERR
EREHEEALR G FLE
R

(v ERBEREEREI7RENA
B HBRERRBEEERR
BEMNBATE FEHEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &[Z2019%12H31HIFFE
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2. RBEE )

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
Definition of a lease (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the
Group has applied incremental borrowing rates
of the relevant group entities at the date of initial
application. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rates applied by the relevant group
entities range from 3.2% to 4.02%.

BB R R F 1655 B ()
HENEZR(E)

EREFA(E)
HERNERABEEBI P EAKEM
g AEERERERABHEEMAM
BEBZTEMNEEHEERFE M
HEEEEEAMEANNETYIEE
ERFENF3.2%%E4.02% °

RMB’000
AR¥T
Operating lease commitment at 31 December R2018F 12 A31B 2L EME
2018 AR 3,420
Contract commence of 1 Jan 2019 M2019F1 A1BMBZEH (516)
Less: total future interest expenses W RRA B 4R (55)
Present value of remaining lease payments, FI#HENRHE  FHEEE
discounted using the incremental MAEK2019F1 18I
borrowing rate and lease liabilities HESBME
recognised as at 1 January 2019 2,849
Add: lease liabilities/obligation under finance o R2018F 12831 AR 2 HE
lease recognised as at 31 December BE BREMEEAF
2018 52,438
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 M2019F 1AM ZHEAE 55,287
Analysis as: DR
Non-current FERED 47,352
Current R E 7,935
55,287
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Definition of a lease (Continued)

2. WEEE)

BRI 3R 2RI F 16551 E ()

HENER(E)

As a lessee (Continued) VEREFN(E)
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own R2019F 1 A1z EREEEREE

use as at 1 January 2019 comprises the following: BIELATIER :
Notes RMB’000
ks FE T

Right-of-use assets relating to operating
leases recognised upon application of
IFRS 16

Add: Reclassification from prepaid lease

payments

Add: Amounts included in property, plant

and equipment under IAS 17

& P B B s i o R R 58
1657 1& FERR RO B AL & 7H

SR EREEE (a) 2,800
o BEMNAEREES
k| (b) 18,917

o RIREIRR g A RIS
175RET A - B

S k]
— Assets previously under obligation - ERIRRERE

under finance leases AEETZ
EE (0 92,194
113,911

By class mERE S

Building BF 86,830
Machinery 23 1,368
Furniture and office equipment REMMAERE 1,186
Motor vehicles B 5,610
Land use right T b fE PR 18,917
113,911
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &[Z2019%12H31HIFFE

2. WEEE)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

BB R 3R 2RI F 1655 HHE ()

Definition of a lease (Continued) MENTEE(E)
As a lessee (Continued) Ve REFN(E)
Notes RMB’000
= FHExT
Impacts on transition BENTE
On transition to IFRS 16, the Group B 2 B PR B  ER S 2R
recognized additional right-of-use assets E165%H - RNEEER
and additional lease liabilities, recognizing REHME A& = IR BB AN
the difference in retained earnings, if HERE  WHERRSR
relevant. The impact on transition is BNHZFE(ERE) -
summarized below: WERFEBENT
For the Group's retained earnings: MAEEHNRBRF] :
Retained earnings as at 31 December M2018F 12 A31HK
2018 RE&F 494,849
Adjustments under IFRS 16 AR 4R B B B 75 i e R R
F165 MR (26)
Retained earnings as at 1 January 7201941 A1 BERE
2019 (Restated) BN (EEHN) 494,823
For non-controlling interests: BLIEIEAR A
Non-controlling interests as at 31 7201812 A31HHIE
December 2018 i 108,859
Adjustments under IFRS 16 AR B B B 75 e 5 2R
F165EH AR (23)
Non-controlling interests as at 1 January 201951 A1 B RIFEE
2019 (Restated) &z (REEF) 108,836
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
X e
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31H IFF/E
BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

2.

(d)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs") (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
Definition of a lease (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)
Notes:

(a) The right-of-use assets in relation to leases
previously classified as operating leases have
been recognised at an amount equal to the
amount recognised for the remaining lease
liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to that lease recognised in the statement
of consolidated financial position at 31
December 2018.

(b) Upfront payments for leasehold lands in
the PRC for own used properties were
classified as prepaid lease payments as at 31
December 2018. Upon application of IFRS
16, the current and non-current portion
of prepaid lease payments amounting
to RMB531,000 and RMB18,917,000
respectively were reclassified to right-of-use
assets.

(c) In relation to assets previously under
finance leases, the Group recategorised
the carrying amounts of the relevant
assets which were still under lease as at 1
January 2019 amounting to RMB92,194,000
as right-of-use assets. In addition, the
Group reclassified the obligations under
finance leases of RMB45,134,000 and
RMB7,304,000 to lease liabilities as current
and non-current liabilities respectively at 1
January 2019.

The following table summarises the impacts of the
adoption of IFRS 16 on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position at 1 January 2019.
Line items that were not affected by the changes
have not been included.

2. WEEE)

(d) FE P37 BB B M 3R 5 22 AU (T
BRI SR E 2R |) RASTT A (4

EIBREI 35 2RI E 1655 1HE ()
HENES (&)

{EREFA(E)
G

(a)

BASBAESENRENFRELE
AHEEREERNIEE B ERERE
Rtk 2 BEIE B R2018F12A31
A& I ISk R A TR A (] 78
NHEENEAEE BEL AR -

REERMENTEBEE T
B E 5 R 201812 A3 H I
HABMNEERIE - ERABRKIB
WMEERE165R%E - ERHHEER
ER R RIERBI DD RARE
531,000 & A R #18,917,0007C
EEMOBEFEREEE -

HRENRREREBTITZEE -
K £ B #2019F1818 H £ A
EETHHBEENEREEAEA
R #92,194,000t EFH » A A FE
FRA#EEEE - o NEBMN2019
FIAEKREHEEAAREK
45,134,0007T & A R %7,304,000
THAREFHBEEHERENRE
BERIIERDERE -

TSR R 4 B B B A SRS A 6
SR AREEN2019F1 A 1H 2 A 8

BRRKRNTE - TRE

FEMIA

BARTIIA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RIS R =E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % 2079’?72/?’37 HIFFE
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

2. mAEE

(%)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued) ERR B SR R 165 E ()
Definition of a lease (Continued) MENTEE(E)
As a lessee (Continued) Ve REFN(E)
At 31 December Recognition At 1 January
2018 Reclassification of leases 2019
M2018% #2019%
128318 BB RS 1A1A
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETTL AREFT AREFT ARETR
Non-current asset FhRBEE
Property, plant and equipment (note 3) %1% - FiE B3R & (HiH3) 161,142 19,448 = 180,590
Right-of-use assets (note 1) FREAEH) - - 2,800 2,800
Land use rights (note 2) TifE R (KiEr2) 18,917 (18,917) - -
Current asset RBEE
Trade, bills and other receivables EHRWGUE - BUEE
REMENRIE 531 (531) - .
Current Liabilities RBaE
Lease liabilities HERRE - 45,134 2,218 47,352
Obligations under finance lease (note 4) BYATEE(T(Mi3F4) 45,134 (45,134) - =
Non-current Liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEEE - 7,304 631 7,935
Obligations under finance lease (note 4) BYATEE F(Mi3t4) 7,304 (7,304) - -
Net assets BEFE 1,065,936 - (49) 1,065,887
Equity and Liabilities EEREE
Retained earnings REEF 494,849 - (26) 494,823
Non-controlling interests RS 105,859 - (23) 105,836
Notes: BEE
) The application of IFRS 16 to leases (1) HERREBEGERE175H S

previously classified as operating leases
under IAS 17 resulted in the recognition
of right-of-use assets of approximately
RMB2,800,000 and lease liabilities of
RMB2,849,000 at the initial adoption of IFRS
16.

Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the
PRC own used properties were classified
as prepaid land lease payments as at 31
December 2018. Upon application of IFRS
16, the current and non-current portion
of prepaid land lease payments amounting
to approximately RMB531,000 and
RMB18,917,000 respectively were classified
to right-of-use assets.

Various fixed assets items under finance
lease arrangements previously presented
within property, plant an equipment of
RMB94,994,000 is now presented as “Right-
of-use assets under property, plant and
equipment”, there has been no change in
the amount recognised.

MhAKEHEHNERARBRIE
AR E 165 BB B RN
B A 75 s YE B 55 1 655 B AR
%Eﬁiﬁ/\ﬁﬁmsoooooﬁ&fﬂ

(2) FBEFERMENTEMES itﬂgﬁ@
B HA AT 2R 2018512 A31B B &
MEAEMLAERE - ERARK
B R E165R% BN
tﬂﬁ ERENRYMIERB DD

2 B4 AR ¥531,0007T M AR EE
18917000755‘*531Eﬁﬁ$féé>§

o

(3) XFIADE WMELZHEZBRE
MEZHETZETEEBE AR
#94,994,0007T IR 71| Al ¥ % - F
EMEEBBE TN 2FERESE ]

REeBIWEEE) -

ANNUAL REPORT

F3R 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
vt B mR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F 12831 H IFF/Z
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.

(d) Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs") (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

RBEE )

(d) FE P37 BB B M 3R 5 22 AU (T
BRI IR E R ) RASFT A ()

EIBREI 35 2RI F 1655 1A ()

Definition of a lease (Continued) HENEZE(E)

As a lessee (Continued) VEBATA (&)

Notes: (Continued) Bz : (&)

(4)  The lease liability on leases previously (4) EARBEESFEIEI7RS

HAMEMENRAIN MERE
EEIJNZINHEEZHEAE
#) A R #545,134,0007T & A R ¥
7,304,0007T 7 B 1E &% &) & 3B
HEERAIHERE/ REHRE
AEINZY - TERABERES

classified as finance leases under IAS 17
and previously presented within ‘Obligations
under finance leases’ of approximately
RMB45,134,000 and RMB7,304,000
as current and non-current liabilities
respectively, now presented in the line ‘Lease

Liabilities/obligation under finance lease’. g
There has been no change in the liability
recognised.

AR ERBEEETENB E2019F12A318 1E
FENKEERBReRE  2BEAREEN

For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating
activities under indirect method for the year ended 31

December 2019, movements in working capital have been
computed based on opening consolidated statement of
financial position as at 1 January 2019 as disclosed above.

New and Amended IFRSs that have been Issued
but not yet Effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not

WEMR2019F1A1HE S BB R KRN E Y]
FREERTE -

B MM E 8 R E B R KRBT Bl
ISR S 2R

A5 B30 SR T A1 FE A A T EARARAE 1 AR AR
BT R] RARIERT BIRR A s ¥R o5 22 A

yet effective:

IAS 1 and IAS 8 (Amendments)

B e E R F 15 R B & 5 RS8R (27T AC)

IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 (Amendments)

BUFR B B S 2ERISE05% - BN @R ERIE395% K
BB B 75 ¥ 5 R RN B2 75 (IERTAR)

IFRS 3 (Amendments)

B R B s e 5 M RN 52 355 (I8 AT AX)

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (Amendments)

BB B 7 HR 5 AR R 55 1 05% M BIRR & et 22 R 2855%
(fB&TA)

IFRS 17
BIFR A #5 i & RSB 1757

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

Definition of Material’
BEAZEE
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform®

MREAENE

Definition of a Business?

EBzER?

Sale or contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

REEEABRENASAERAHEELEITE

Insurance Contracts®

RERA K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RIS R =E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % 2079’5#72/5’37 HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset
acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or
after the beginning of the first annual period beginning
on or after 1 January 2020.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised standards, interpretation and
amendments, certain of which are relevant to the Group's
operations. According to the preliminary assessment made by
the Directors of the Company, no significant impact on the
financial performance and position of the Group is expected
when they become effective except for IFRS 3. Amendments
to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on the
definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for
an integrated set of activities and assets to be considered
a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to
the ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create
outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the business and
continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to
focus on goods or services provided to customers, investment
income or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional fair
value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not
a business. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2020.

In addition to the above new and amendments to IFRSs, a
revised “Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting”
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
“Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework”
in IFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020. The directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

2. WAEEE#)

T R202 0¢1H1E‘£Zf§5§%ﬁ’]¢fﬁﬁfﬁ
X

2 FE2020F1 B 1B 2 BB EE
B sk 2 %2 WEER Z%ﬁ’”\@w‘
REEWEEERR -

3 1202 1@1)%15‘22«%5%&‘%@*3}%??
X

¢ RFERHIEZRFRRMFEIMAER -

AEEEHZETTREBER - 2R
BRI AR ERITIE - AR ETHTEER
SEMKCEERE - BRIBEARRIZEZIEN
P - AEEHYIERE KR TERT
TREARMIENERTE  HRHBHB
R ERIEIFBRIN - BRI B3RS 2RI E
MBI AR ETIRHEMERSEENE
IMEB| - BRTRE - R —RINEEAER
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HEAEE - EXAIAERNR S AR AT
ERABRARBRNER TFE - 85TM
HTHMB2EERT AR NESERKIE
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ARESHELEHRRERT AREAEED
RBENELERER - (BRI TNEMR/EDH
T BEREFARPREHMNERIRE -
BEWRASK B FEBBREFHAEMUA - 11
SN BETIRE T IBE - DFHHESBRER
GEABEEGMN US| AAENARBESEF
AR AESEFEESN—ZIER &
EELBWIEA—BER - $EEE%§
202091 A1 BREENZFES

B bl AT BB B R s a5 YR B RAS BT ARHh -
KIS ET I I M E S ESR B M20185F 1
5 o E12 BIS 5T BB B 765 5 45 22 B o 9 43R
SIEZRRIRIAMER] )IF R 202051 H1HEL
ZHEARNEEHMER  ARRIEETE
Hi - FEFFTAE H A B B ISR 2R FTET
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.

ACCOUNTING POLICY

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated
financial statements, and have been applied consistently by
Group entities.

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities (including structured entities) controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its

returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

EXRETBEME

REZE AU BREMERNEIESTH
%ﬁ%@ 120N - BRIEXBER - LERRER
EHE2RFEERER -

TXFR#HEHBEREREHPBRRATE
HEEERER  TR2REEERERE
o

(a) i?mgifﬁ—
EHMBRRBEEARRARERAR
HfEARMEGER(RELEEBE
B B®E o WEBATER - IR
NEVESERIE

AJEHREBRRITERED

o AEXAFAZLARBHRNEH
FIT 15 O T 2 00 3 ) L B Sl RE )

&
o BENETEERBRNIMEELS
EE

WEFERBERB R il = HZHIE
=7 ﬁ*lﬁizuj:ﬂjﬁ“%( P ARE
SENMFEERSTEIRESR -
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(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &[Z2019%12H31HIFFE
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EADHBEME»)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to
give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights
in an investee are sufficient to give it power,

including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group,
other vote holders or other parties;

. rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

. any additional facts and circumstances
that indicate that the Group has, or does
not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

(a)

] SE /2 )
mEEE(E,

HARBERREHROBREEREEN
REE - BREREREAMTAE
BERENAETEERREHREN
HEAEBE  AKENHREHRE
BN EFEAEERKREHRD
BREREZERABTEELE A&
EEERMAERBEERER ETE
e

o AEERAREENRERHRN
Hit R R ERHAAREREEDN
IR K7 BRI

o AKE - HiKREEFSEAZHE
EALTRANEERSERE

o EHEMAHRHELNEN &

o RFEMFEHLRE(BEELEAMBIR
AREEWBRERA)BRPALAE
EERMEBRL EBEREEERE
BN EMEINETERE
S e

7N R [ 1 JEE A5 BT BB 2 )42 o) B S5 B
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ZHIERZ LA AR AWM E
MAFEARBREEHE QRN
WARFX  BAKBEESERZE
REEAEEREMNBARZEGES
B stAGHEaREMEEEA
RIA e

ANNUAL REPORT 43R 2019

115



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F 12831 H IFF/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. Eké*ﬁﬁﬂgﬁ)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Investment in associates and joint
ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

(a)

(b)

GEEEE)

BEkEMEERANSEKE DY
FENAARIEE ARIFESEES -
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AEE ARFE GRS - IEEEE
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(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RIS R =E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % 2079’?#72/5’375Lt¢/+
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EADHBEME»)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

Investment in associates and joint
ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
or joint ventures are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting, except when the investment,
or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in
which case it is accounted for in accordance with
IFRS 5. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group's
interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the
date on which the investee becomes an associate
or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R M
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F 12831 H IFF/Z
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EASHBEHRE)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

(b)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

Investment in associates and joint
ventures (Continued)

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment
of Assets as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount, Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity
method from the date when the investment ceases
to be an associate or a joint venture, or when the
investment is classified as held for sale. When the
Group retains an interest in the former associate or
joint venture and the retained interest is a financial
asset, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance
with IAS 39. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture at the
date the equity method was discontinued, and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing of a part interest in the associate
or joint venture is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate
or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be
required if that associate or joint venture had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate or
joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity
to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.
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(b)

(c)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912531 H1FF/E
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EADHBEME»)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

Investment in associates and joint
ventures (Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method
when an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate. There is no remeasurement to fair value
upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in an associate or a joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the
gain or loss that had previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
or a joint venture of the Group, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate
or joint venture are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate or joint venture that are
not related to the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Group’s senior management that
makes strategic decisions.

(b) REBELATREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31H IFF/E
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EADHBEHME g
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

(d)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each

(d) 5

REHSEEEEROPERRE

individual group entity, transactions in currencies NZEBINEEEUIINEE(INE)
other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign HEORZER S A BEREEKE

currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated

%13

in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates

prevailing at the date when the fair value was

determined. Non-monetary items that are measured

in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are

7
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recognised in profit or loss in the period in which mNFER - A TIERERIN -

they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency U

borrowings relating to assets under

construction for future productive use,

which are included in the cost of those

assets when they are regarded as an

adjustment to interest costs on those

foreign currency borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions .

entered into in order to hedge certain

foreign currency risks; and

o exchange differences on monetary items o

receivable from or payable to a foreign

operation for which settlement is neither

planned nor likely to occur (therefore

forming part of the net investment in the

foreign operation), which are recognised

initially in other comprehensive income and

reclassified from equity to profit or loss on

repayment of the monetary items.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &[Z2019%12H31HIFFE

For the purposes of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (RMB)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement
or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation that
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed through
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EASHBERE )
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

+ N
RIS F R BT R
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EASHBEHRE)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

(e)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings
held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes
other than construction in progress are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also
include transfers from equity of any gains/losses
on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement
during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, the depreciation rate per
annum is as follows:

Buildings BT
Machinery s
Furniture and office equipment KA
Motor vehicles AE

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.
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(e)

(f)

(9)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &[Z2019%12H31HIFFE
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EADHBEME»)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress represents the direct costs
of construction incurred of property, plant and
equipment less any impairment losses. No provision
for depreciation is made on construction in progress
until such time the relevant assets are completed
and put into use. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within Other gains/(losses) —
net’ in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising
buildings and properties, is held for long-term
rental yields and that is not occupied by the
Group. Investment property is initially measured
at cost, including related transaction costs and
where applicable borrowing costs. After initial
recognition, investment properties are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.
Amortisation of investment property is calculated to
write-off that cost, less estimated net residual value
and accumulated impairment losses, if any, on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
ranging from 20 to 30 years.

Land use rights

Land use rights represent prepaid operating lease
payments for land less accumulated amortisations
and any impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the prepaid operating lease payments for and over
the remaining lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e BRI ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EASHBEHRE)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

(h)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest and dividend income which are derived
from the financial assets and shareholders’ rights
are presented as other revenue and other income.
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(h)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &[Z2019%12H31HIFFE
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EADHBEME»)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

. the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling;
and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial
application/initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in OCI
if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

+ N
RIS F R BT R
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EASHBEHRE)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

(h)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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(h)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &[Z2019%12H31HIFFE
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EADHBEME»)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other revenue
and other income” line item.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
IFRS 9)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment
under IFRS 9 (including trade receivables, and other
receivables. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting period to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m
ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting
period. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting period as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(h) EMIA#E)

EHEE(E)
ERMEEZ D ERAEKTEE)

BAREBEGABB R EMEE
T ERBEKNAFTEIERIAEE
AFAEMEEKENRIEE ABBEM
2HRER DA BEARZEREE
MEA R EBEFABGRAE -

BRARBEFABERZEREER
BEREMRZAABEFNE  EAA
REBEEREHBERBERRPER -
RIEERERZRENERFETE
EoL e B A E R M RERA S
Bt ATEARARE bz R -

& B B2 R 1B (JE A B A 75 2 R
FYFE)

A& ER R BIR B 75 3 5 2R R S 957 5
BEREZEREE(REEHRUGK
AR EAb EUGRIR ) R TR (E B R 1R
MERER BAHREEBRNSEN
BWREHERN - URMREVIAERIEZ
EERBRNEL -

FEMBEREEERESERTADN
BHERRAMERENENEHE
EZEHEEER - AR 1287
HEERBRENNERERRI12EA
NAEEEENBOEHER ZFED
BHEREERND - FHETREARS
BHE L ERERERET  LRE
BEBAFENEE - —REEAMTIA
K 3R B E AT OR B RF 4 DA R R
KA TR E T -

A EMTAME  AEERASE
RI2EABHREEERZ BT ER
BEE BIFERERREERR
RIEE I - AR B iR 7 E B
FEBR FEEEEERFERNE
HIEE BB IR 8 VAR A KA
BHEK 2 TR ER 2 RIRIE N -

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2019

127



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e BRI ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EASHBEHRE)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

(h)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting period with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse

change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RIS R =E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % 2079’5#72/5’37 HILFE
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EADHBEME»)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 90
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS M o

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EADHBEHME g
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

(h)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(o] the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that
the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &[Z2019%12H31HIFFE
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EADHBEME»)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the following

basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the
Group’s trade and other receivables and
amounts due from customers are each
assessed as a separate group. Loans to
related parties are assessed for expected
credit losses on an individual basis);

. Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F 12831 H IFF/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EADHBEHME g
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

(h)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance

account.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as financial liabilities or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &[Z2019%12H31HIFFE
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EADHBEME»)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including bank borrowings,
promissory note, obligations under finance leases,
trade payables, deposits received, accruals and
other payables (excluding receipt in advance) and
amounts due to non-controlling interests) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at
the date when derivative contracts are entered into
and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e BRI ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EASHBEHRE)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

(h)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in the profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &[Z2019%12H31HIFFE
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EADHBEME»)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can
be measured reliably.

Inventories

Inventories which consist of cargos are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using actual cost. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. In
the consolidated and entity balance sheet, bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE
AP RR TR
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F
3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EASHBEHRE)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

U]

(m)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issuance of new
ordinary shares are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the
Company’s equity share capital (treasury shares),
the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes)
is deducted from equity attributable to owners
of the Company until the shares are cancelled
or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are
subsequently reissued, any consideration received,
net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs and the related income tax effects,
is included in equity attributable to the Company’s
equity owners.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates. Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #{Z2019F 1231 HIFF/E
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EADHBEME»)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Company
if:

(i) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Company if
that person:

(a) has control or joint control over the
Company;
(b) has significant influence over the

Company; or

(c) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or of a
parent of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EADHBEHME g
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

(o) Related parties (Continued)

(ii) An entity is related to the Company if any

of the following conditions applies:

(a)

(b)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

the entity and the Company are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of the group of which the
other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Company or
an entity related to the Company.
If the Company is itself such a plan,
the sponsorship employees are also
related to the Company;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (i);

A person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a
group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services
to the group or to the group’s
parent.
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(o)

(p)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #{Z2019F 1231 HIFF/E
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EADHBEME»)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or he influence by, that person in their dealing with
the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or
obligations between related parties.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e BRI ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EASHBEHRE)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

(p) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint arrangements, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally
the Group is unable to control the reversal
of the temporary difference for associates.
Only where there is an agreement in place
that gives the Group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference not
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31HIFF/E

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(ii) Deferred income tax (Continued)
Qutside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
on deductible temporary differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint arrangements only to the extent
that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

(iii)  Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net
basis.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right- of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the
tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies IAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at
initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EASHBERE )
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 =+ Ty
R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F 12831 H IFF/Z

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. Etﬁﬁﬁk%mg(%)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

Employee benefits

Payments to a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme are dealt with as payment to defined
contribution plan which are charged as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling
them to contribution.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to
the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the income statement over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred income and are credited to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the expected
lives of the related assets.

Revenue and other income
Revenue from contracts with customers

Under IFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e
when “control” of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.

(q) BEEF

(r)

(s)

A B 2R B IR AR KR M AT 8IS SR T E R
Fﬂi%ﬁﬂ KEFEINREE - NMEEE
REBRBAZEEAREHRIEFRX ©

BENEBRRNERZARYE T A
R-BEEEERBERAMNLIARER
HIRBmELNFRESBREDFE
Bt o

BENRBREREREBARRET
BHR -

B ARG
EEBREMESRGMA - AXE
BT A AN SR - IR R
BAR(EERER -

BRKANBFHEAEREERE I
NHE B A EBEE B/ KR8 HI
ARBA K HER -

Y% - WEMREABOBRFMEL
ERBIEWAGT ASERB AR - WA
BERZRNMEEEENEERFHA
FTAMARK °

WA R B Aty 2

EF&EHKZE
IRIBEIFR B RS ER 155 A%
BN TERBHEER (RS EENE
THEEEMIRB 2 EHE g E
BB ERUA -

BHOEEERAEZE IR (1
Bk IR ) — R ABER Z AR
Bk o

KEBGREMREBRABERAT]



(s)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &[Z2019%12H31HIFFE
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EADHBEME»)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group’'s performance as the Group
performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with IFRS 9. In contrast,
a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
A contract asset and a contract liability relating to
a contract are accounted for an presented on a net
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SXG b
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019%F12H31H I F/Z
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)

For contracts that contain more than one
performance obligations, the Group allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of raw materials is
recognised when control of the products
has transferred, being at the point the
products are delivered to the customer and
the customer has accepted the products,
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the customer’s acceptance of
the products.

Revenue from these sales is recognised
based on the price specified in the contract,
net of discounts, returns and value added
taxes.

A receivable is recognised when the
products are delivered and the customers
accept the products, as this is the point in
time that the consideration is unconditional
because only the passage of time is required
before the payment is due.
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(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &[Z2019%12H31HIFFE
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EADHBEME»)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

Sale of services

Revenue from rendering of logistics
services for finished vehicles, supply chain
management for automobile components
and parts, warehousing services and related
logistics services for steel trading are
recognised upon the completion of services
due to the short duration of the service
period.

For sales of services, revenue is recognised
in accounting period in which the services
rendered, by reference to stage of
completion of the specific transaction and
assessed on the basis of actual services
provided as a proportion of the total service
to be provided.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate
is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of
the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F 12831 H IFF/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. Etﬁﬁﬁk%mg(%)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income
in profit or loss on a systematic basis in
the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are
initially recognised as deferred income
and subsequently recognised in profit or
loss upon on a systematic basis over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

Dividends income from equity
instruments

Dividend income from unlisted equity
investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.

Dividend income from listed equity
investments is recognised when the share
price of the investment goes ex-dividend.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912531 H1FF/E
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EADHBEME»)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

Leases (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if it conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising
from business combinations on or after the date
of initial application, the Group assesses whether
a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under IFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms
and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application
of IFRS 16 in accordance with transitions
in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components, including contract
for acquisition of ownership interests of a property
which includes both leasehold land and non-lease
building components, unless such allocation cannot
be made reliably.

The Group also applies practical expedient
not to separate non-lease components from
lease component, and instead account for the
lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 =+ Ty
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F 12831 H IFF/Z

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. Etﬁﬁﬁk%mg(%)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

(t)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

The Group as a lessee (upon application
of IFRS 16 in accordance with transitions
in note 2) (Continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of motor vehicles and
properties that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight- line basis or another systematic basis over
the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and
° an estimate of costs to be incurred by

the Group in dismantling and removing
the underlying assets, restoring the site
on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories.

Except for those that are classified as investment
properties and measured under fair value model,
right-of- use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying
leased assets at the end of the lease term are
depreciated from commencement date to the end
of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property,
plant and equipment”, the same line them within
which the corresponding underlying asset would be
presented if they were owned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #{Z2019F 1231 HIFF/E
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EADHBEME»)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application
of IFRS 16 in accordance with transitions
in note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

Lease payments included in the measurement of
the lease liability comprise:

o fixed lease payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an

index or rate, initially measured using the
index or rate at the commencement date;

o the amount expected to be payable by the
lessee under residual value guarantees;

. the exercise price of purchase options, if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the
options; and

. payments of penalties for terminating the

lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise
of an option to terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/ j: %\
GRipy e eIk

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019%F12H31H I F/Z

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. Eﬁﬁ*ﬁ%mgﬁ)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

(t)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

The Group as a lessee (upon application
of IFRS 16 in accordance with transitions
in note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in
market rental rates are initially measured using
the market rental rates as at the commencement
date. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets, and are recognised as expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes
a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use assets) whenever:

. the lease term has changed or there is a
change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes
in market rental rates following a market
rent review/expected payment under a
guaranteed residual value, in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate.

Lease liabilities are presented as separate line item
The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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(t)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #{Z2019F 1231 HIFF/E
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EADHBEME»)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application
of IFRS 16 in accordance with transitions
in note 2) (Continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or
more underlying assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for
as a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease incentives from lessor by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-
use asset. When the modified contract contains a
lease component and one or more additional lease
or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F 12831 H IFF/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. Etﬁﬁﬁk%mg(%)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

(t)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

The Group as a lessee (prior to adoption
of IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019)

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value
at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as
a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets,
in which case they are capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs
(see the accounting policy). Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which they
are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed.
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(t)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #{Z2019F 1231 HIFF/E
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EADHBEME»)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (upon application
of IFRS 16 in accordance with transitions
in note 2)

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract
is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the commencement
date at amounts equal to the Group’s net
investment in the leases, measured using the
interest rate implicit in the respective lease.
Initial direct costs (other than those incurred by
manufacturer or dealer lessors) are included in the
initial measurement of the net investments in the
leases. Interest income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group’s net investment outstanding
in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term except for investment properties measured
under fair value model. Upon application of IFRS
16 on 1 January 2019, variable lease payments
for operating leases that depend on an index or a
rate are estimated and included in the total lease
payments to be recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as income when they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB Rk MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019%F12H31H I F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. Ekﬁﬁﬂz%mg(fﬁ)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

(t)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

The Group as a lessor (upon application
of IFRS 16 in accordance with transitions
in note 2) (Continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease
components, the Group applies IFRS 15 to allocate
the consideration under the contract to each
component. Non-lease components are separated
from lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments from
lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an
operating lease as a new lease from the effective
date of the modification, considering any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the original
lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.
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(u)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912531 H1FF/E
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EADHBEME»)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (prior to adoption
of IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019)

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recognised as receivables at the amount of the
Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of
the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e BRI ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F

4. FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

The Group’s major financial assets and liabilities
include trade, bills and other receivables, pledged
bank deposits cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other payables, borrowings and lease liabilities/
obligations under finance lease. The risks associated
with these financial assets and liabilities include
market risk (interest rate risk and foreign currency
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a) Market risks
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the
PRC and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with
respect to RMB, Japanese Yen (“Yen")
and Euro Dollars (“Euro”). Foreign
exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations.
The management do not expect
the net foreign currency risk from
these activities to be significant and
hence, the Group do not presently
hedge the foreign exchange risks.
The Group periodically review liquid
assets and liabilities held in currencies
other than the functional currencies
of the respective subsidiaries to
evaluate its foreign exchange risk
exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2019, if RMB had
weakened/strengthened by 10%
against the USD with all other
variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have been
RMB806,000 (2018: RMB1,315,000)
higher/lower.
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(ii)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RIS R =E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % 2079’5#72/5’37 HIFFE
4. FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risks (Continued)

Cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk through the impact
of rate changes on interest bearing
financial assets and liabilities, mainly
bank balances and cash and bank
borrowings. It is the Group’s policy
to keep its borrowings at floating
rate of interests so as to minimise
the fair value interest rate risk.
The Group currently does not use
any derivative contracts to hedge
its exposure to interest rate risk.
However, management will consider
hedging significant interest rate risk
should the need arise.

The sensitivity analysis below
has been prepared based on the
exposure to interest rates for interest
bearing bank balances and variable-
rate bank borrowings at the balance
sheet date and on the assumption
that the amount of assets and
liabilities outstanding at the balance
sheet date was outstanding for the
whole year.

If interest rates on bank balances
and variable-rate bank borrowings
had been 100 basis points (2018:
100 basis points) higher/lower
and all other variables were held
constant, post-tax profit for the
year will increase/decrease by
about RMB7,181,000 (2018:
RMB4,950,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e BRI ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F
4,

FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

Credit risk

Majority of the Group’s revenue is received
from individual customers in relation to
logistics and supply chain service for finished
automobiles and materials procurement and
related logistic services and are transacted in
cash or credit. The Group's trade receivables
arise from logistics and supply chain service
for finished automobiles and materials
procurement and related logistic services.
As at the end of the year, the top ten
debtors approximately of 94% (2018: 93%)
of the Group’s trade receivables balance.
In view of the history of business dealings
with the debtors and the sound collection
history of the receivables due from them,
management believes that there is no
material credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding receivable balance due from
these debtors saved for the debtor related
to the impaired trade receivable disclosed
in the below. Management makes periodic
assessment on the recoverability of the trade
and other receivables based on historical
payment records, the length of overdue
period, the financial strength of the debtors
and whether there are any disputes with the
debtors.

Individual credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are
due within 90 to 180 days from the date of
billing.
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(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31HIFF/E
4. FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for
trade receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical
credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

(i) Provision of trade receivables

On that basis, the provision of trade
receivables as at 31 December 2019

BRERER#)

4.1 BEREMEZEZE)

(b) 1=EmEEE)
AEERBREERE2HEHNEE
BERRABBERE)NSE
FTEE S EUCGRIARM BB -
AEEMNBEEERBRERETR
TREFPDMHEBEREAZET
R WERBABK N EEIE
BERYENTEEIREPE
BiFE—FED -

() EBEZREWFURERE

UL E E o R2019%F12
A3188E 3 RIGIEERE
BEMAT :

Simplified approach

Blert
More than ~ More than
Tdaybut 1 year but
less than less than  More than
General 1 year 2 years 2 years
model Nopastdue  pastdue  pastdue  pastdue Total
1XEY BIERE ADRSE
31 December 2019 2019124318 —RER Rt ME DRE bia ait
Expected credit loss rate AR EHEER 0.037% 1.15% 4.05% 0.02%  65.24%
RVMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETL ARETR ARETT ARETRL ARETR ARETR
Gross carrying amount BREE
- Trade receivables -BHENFE 153202 185872 8,166 4570 88588 440,398
Provision Efe 56 2,136 330 1 57,794 60,317

During the year ended 31
December 2019, the Group provide
RMB12,303,000 impairment
allowance on credit-impaired
debtors. (2018: Nil)

& =20196F12A8318 1
FE - AEERDIRAEN
FEW RS EHRREREAR
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=)

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2019

159



160

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F

4. FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4.

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

RERER®)

=EmpE ()

(i) Provision of trade receivables (i) EBZEWGEREE)
(Continued)
Simplified approach
EemE
More than ~ More than
Tdaybut 1 year but
less than less than
General 1 year 2 years
model  No past due past due past due Total
BEHEA ek
TRED BI5E
31 December 2018 2018F12A318  —fKiER Pl iNES DRUF G
Expected credit loss rate ~ TBEi{EEBIER 0.04% 0.20% 14.12% 31.39%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARSI
Gross carrying amount BEEEE
~ Trade receivables -BHRWFIE 192,546 308,208 747,896 15,413 664,063
Provision BE 71 612 20,879 4,838 26,400

The reconciliation of provision of
trade receivables as at 31 December

2019 was as follows:

HR2019F 12 A31HHE 5 & U 7108 #
HBEEROT -

RMB’'000

AREEFIT

As at 1 January 2018 7201841818 7,381

Provision for the year FNEE 19,949

Written off for the year F N (930)
As at 31 December 2018 and M2018F12A318 &

1 January 2019 20191 A1H 26,400

Provision for the year FNEE 46,220

As at 31 December 2019 201912 H31H 72,620

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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4. FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &[Z2019%12H31HIFFE

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Provision of deposit and other

BRERER#)

(b) 1=EmEEE)
(i) EEREMERFIRRE

receivables
Deposit and other receivables o kA M ENRFIE
The provision for deposit and other M2019F12A31E Wik €
receivables as at 31 December 2019 T LAt i U SRR B
RMB’000
ARBTT
As at 1 January 2018 201851 H1H 1,421
Provision for the year FREE 476
Written off for the year F Y (1,370)
As at 31 December 2018 and 20185 12H31B K
1 January 2019 20191 H1H 527
Impairment loss reversal for the & ABEIFHERIE
year (29)
As at 31 December 2019 F2019512A31H 498
Provision of prepayment (iii) FEAFRERE
Prepayment TEfSFE
The provision for prepayment as at 201912 A31H & 78 1+
31 December 2019 RIAEE
RMB’000
ARBTFT
As at 1 January 2018 720181818 787
Provision for the year FREE 20,603
Written off for the year F I EH (787)
As at 31 December 2018 and R2018%F12A318B &
1 January 2019 20191 A1H 20,603
Impairment loss reversed for FRELREEE
the year (9,019)
Written off for the year F M (11,584)
As at 31 December 2019 201912 HA31H 0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
X e
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31H IFF/E

4. FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(iii)

Provision of prepayment (Continued)

Net impairment loss on trade, bills
and other receivables recognized in
profit or loss

During the year, the following gains/
(losses) ware recognized in profit or
loss in relation to impaired trade,

RERER®)

(b) 1=EmEEE)
(iii) FEMFRRE(F)
R 18 5 HE AR 4 B 5 JE WK
B~ B R R A M IEW K
TE B (B 1R F AR
FA - CHBEESEUK
H - MR K H At UK
AR B E NERIA T KE,

bills and other receivables (EE)
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR T AREEF T
Movement in loss allowance B ZREWFIE « FEU
for trade, bills and other E IR R H A FE G
receivables ITHRE BB E
(46,220) (41,028)
Reversal of previous BARERERD
impairment loss 9,048 -
(37,172) (41,028)

M FHENER R E M EEERA
M &= = ERBAE -

Maximum exposure to credit risk before
collateral held or other credit enhancements.

Maximum exposure

BeRR
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AREFTT
Credit risk exposure relating to ~ BEABEBXRINEBERHN
off balance sheet items EER A
— financial guarantees —IIBHER 34,182 47,576
At 31 December M®12A831H 34,182 47,576

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited —~ XF&SFEVRERMRMDER AR



(c)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &[Z2019%12H31HIFFE

4. FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. BAIEEBEEIR @)
Liquidity risk (c) HBELER
In the management of the liquidity risk, EEBEEELEE T E 0 AE
the Group monitors and maintains a level EERLMABERSRIBSESE
of cash and cash equivalents deemed MIEEBER AT NEMNNER
adequate by the management to finance BEMFAKE  WRERDR
the Group's operations and mitigate the ERFHTE . TIEBEPET
effects of fluctuations in cash flow. The EZWEABN  BERETED
management monitors the utilisation of P,
bank borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants.
The following table details the Group’s TRFVWAEESRHEBBER TS
remaining contractual maturities for its KB ERE R - BRAYIR IR
financial liabilities. The tables have been EERREEESCASHARBE
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash BRI R ERE o 7K IEF
flows of financial liabilities based on the BRASEERE -
earliest date on which the Group is required
to pay. The tables include both interest and
principal cash flows.
The Group KEE
Over Over
3months 6 months
Weighted but not but not Total
average  lessthan  morethan  more than Over  undiscounted Carrying
interestrate 3 months 6 months 1 year Tyear  cash flows amount
B8R #EAEA AR
i TR BFEE  BAEE it
HaHE =R ~ER - BE-f a8 BEE
%  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMBOOD  RVBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBIQD
% ARMTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARBIR
Nor-dertive inancil labiites {762 BER
As at 31 December 2019 2019512318
Trade and other payables BARANEATE 51550 130,000 - - T0550 501,004
Borrowings R 4.8% 565,912 314 182,01 = 971,697 957,528
Lease liabiltesiobligations 158/ HERERR
under finance lease 125% 9303 9,303 9,309 55,804 8119 102,441
Finandil guarantees HBER - - 11,3% 2,788 34,182 -
1,150,802 363,017 202,114 78592 1795125 1560973
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
X e
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31H IFF/E

4.

4.1

FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved) 4. BIBREEIE#)
Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 BEREBEZEE)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) HEEZERE)
Over Over
3 months 6 months

Weighted but not but not Total
aerage  lessthan  morethan  more than Over undiscounted Carrying
interestrate ——~ 3months 6 months 1 year Tyear  cash flows amount

BBZRA  AENRA R

e N3 e B i it
ik ZfER A -£ -£ g FaE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARETT ARMTT ARETR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR

Non-derivatve financial abities ~ SE744BBE
As at 31 December 2018 RM018E12A318

Trade and other payables EAREMENTE 538 381938 68,246 17 (:%1)]
Borrowings 3t 5.208% 136,059 9251 87447 - ST SME
Obligations under finance lease BEREER 5.225% 1338 13241 26,0 54,905 107,691 52438
Finandil guarantees HHER - - 11,3 3418 45576 -
404,745 489,430 393,289 89087 1376551 1,262,485

4.2

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure regularly. As part of this review, the
directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as
bank borrowings.

The Group monitors it capital structure on the basis
of gearing ratio. The Group’s gearing ratio (ratio
of borrowings (including borrowings and lease
liabilities/obligations under finance lease) to total
equity) is approximately 98% (2018: 52%). There
were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital
management during the year.

2 EXERER

AEEERAER  ARRAEEE
ERME R B EEEEE A
HEBSEBRBAEBTE 28
REREEE - AEEERERE -
FEATRERTE -

RAREZEHRNERNEE - EH
BAEF R EFEEELAKAR
HEBRHEAFRZAR - REBEES
ZHEHEBER AEEKEBRRMNK
B BITHRARERERITERNT
A FEEBREBEAERE -

AEBEREXAABLERERAA
R - AEENEABELE(E
F(REEREHAEARE/ BERE
) EBEDEEMLE) BK98%
(2018%F : 52%) - TN * AEEWE
NERRBEYIFTE -

REBBSFEMREBRNERAT



(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31HIFF/E
4. FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

Fair value of financial instrument

The fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined as follows:

(i) the fair values of financial assets
and financial liabilities with standard
terms and conditions and traded on
active liquid markets are determined
with reference to quoted market
prices; and

(i) the fair values of other financial
assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The carrying amount of other financial
assets and liabilities carried at amortised
cost, approximate their respective fair values
due to the relatively short-term nature of

these financial instruments.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis
of financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair
value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based
on the degree to which the fair value is
observable as at 31 December 2019 and
2018.

BRERER#)
4.2 EXEREEZ)

(a) £HTANAIEE
SREERSRMBEZAAEE
EBEHMT :

() EBAREGERREHLRS
ERBTSEEZREE
REe®aE oS Em
BHEEEAAEBE &

(iy HthemEERSBREEZ

N EBETIREEAIER
EREOMZ ERRMEE
RHAETE ©

I-H

;

BREHERAI R AW EREE
rBEZERERESEBZAR
BERE RRAAZEEZRMIA
BRSNS -

RAGIBRRRTRRZ AR
B E

TRIBREVI S RRELZAAE
BxtEZ SR T AD - WRE
A R ABE 20194 2018412
RA31BZABREERRERE—
E =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F

4. FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

(a) Fair value of financial instrument
(Continued)

Level 1 fair value measurements are
those derived from quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are
those derived from inputs other than
quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements
are those derived from valuation
techniques that include inputs for
the assets or liability that are not
based on observable market data

4.

RERER®)
4.2 EXEREE(E)

(a) EETAREEE)

o E—F: AABEENE
HARMS LEREERE
BZRE(TEERER)F
HZARBERE -

s FZE: AAMBEMENNE
HE—EBAZHREAIN - 7]
BR(AMER)LHEE(A A
ERBLH)BEMEEER
BEAEZBABEFHZ

DRBEE -

s FZE: AnEEFENE
HEEILIFERABRTS
BB EESRBEIHAH
BR(TABERBAZRE)Z
MERMEH 2 AR BB

=

(unobservable inputs). =)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE B fa= =
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR AREFT ARETR
31 December 2019 2019%12A318

Equity instruments at fair value through BEBEMZENERALAER

other comprehensive income DB R T A - - 60,410 60,410

31 December 2018

20185124318

Equity instruments at fair value through BEBEMEZEAYNERALAER

other comprehensive income

JIfRMESTA

- - 18,500 18,500

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912531 H1FF/E

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 2 to the financial statements,
the directors are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The followings are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

EEER
ERIR

HET R FHBEEEZEE

ERBIINTBHREME2c AEBEEK
REF - ARBEFARARRE A RIRPHER
T?Zﬁ%&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂj HIE - EE R

o BRAGET MR BRRIIRBBELR K
Eﬁﬂﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁ%ﬁZl%{’Fﬁ - ERERARER
RN FbET -

I E A RARBBRRERE T AEN - g

uﬂmﬁ’ﬂ uﬂ%;ﬂ”ﬁﬁf RIMHIEELER
CAIBRERT ReEZHRAER e

aﬂ#j.ﬁfﬂ’ﬂ RIHRERRRABAELER
» AVE VR & IE 7T AR AN R 2K AT Ao e

=7
578\ °

P& P & 5t BSR4 A B M T

U TRARBEENEAAEE S BORE
P T O B 15 ek R SR RO 2 BRI A AR
BEARFEZERAME - P RAAFERIN -

TR & E EHIR
REEHR - LA AR REAMA TR
A=X2HF  BEFHEEARAR - MEHK
THMRFERNEEMEERAELRER
ABNERREWT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5 EES€:HUEERABHBEEEZE
ERIR )

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(a) Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL
for the trade, bills and other receivables. The
provision rates are based on internal credit ratings
as groupings of various debtors that have similar
loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on
the Group’s historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that
is reasonable and supportable available without
undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are reassessed
and changes in the forward-looking information
are considered. In addition, trade, bills and other
receivables with significant balances and credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and
the Group's trade, bills and other receivables are

disclosed in notes 19.

(b) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in

which such determination is made.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

THABEEZETERR(E)

(a)

(b)

B Z BRI RRIE BERRE
AEEERBERMETEE 5 BUK
HNE ZREFIR - BRERKREME
WE - BiBRENABEEFTRGE
REBREUBARANSEEE AN
DH)MIE - BBRHEERAEENB
FEHE  WEEDAE AT XN
AAMELEEN  BFTBEOKA
HEN - REERSESAH - BHFTH
BEBRMBRANE - AEBRIEME
BERmEL - I BREREHRK
EERENESRBKR - BRERE
KREMERFEANRAEEBEES T
BT -

BHEEEENBREHGHFNELR
R - FAEHREEBEIAEE
BHRWHR - BRRERE MR
IR BRI 195 5E -

g
AEBEABMZERZEZERZMAE
B o O TE B 2 TS B A B
FIEHEEHE - FZ2RXHREY
HOAABELSEVBEE - A&
EREHELFTEHMBEIFREN
fE - BRYBEYRRBEREECR
T WMZEFEZRETHEREAR
MGz BIR ZEEZRBTE
MIGEE A MR FRLERSHE
ERAE-

REBBSFEMREBRNERAT
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(d)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31HIFF/E
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5 EES€H¥ERFTBEHEEZE
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

The Group assesses whether there are any
indicators of impairment for an asset at the end
of each reporting period. The asset is tested
for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
When value in use calculations are undertaken,
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the asset is allocated will
be required. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. A change in the estimated future cash flows
and/or the discount rate applied will result in an
adjustment to the estimated impairment provision
previously made.

Useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment

In determining the useful life and residual value
of an item of property, plant and equipment, the
Group has to consider various factors, such as
technical or commercial obsolescence arising from
changes or improvements in production, or from a
change in the market demand for the product or
service output of the asset, expected usage of the
asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care
and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar
limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of the
useful life of the asset is based on the experience
of the Group with similar assets that are used in
a similar way. Additional depreciation is made
if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual
values of items of property, plant and equipment
are different from the previous estimation. Useful
lives and residual values are reviewed at the end
of the reporting period based on changes in
circumstances.

ERRE)

THBRETERR(E)

() YW¥ BERIEAREHEELER
(]

AEERERERRIEEERTSH

ABAKEOE gAAEEFER
B-stEEREER  ARAFTEIER
BEMNRSELEUNERER- 4
AHEREER  AREARFREE
EBUMERARASRE  WHEE
BAEMBRE  UAEZSEREN
BNRE - A RKRERER X
PRERMBMRENES  SEBCBEM
ETHRE R SAIE L RHE -

(d) #3 - BE KR 0T A F & 5 R T 6
=1}
AEEEBEEME BERREBEED
IRFEHENGEERERZ AR
o PIEREHAAREE - EYH
BEMREHRERIRBNTSERE
EMoIMORMABHEER  EEMN
BHAZ EHELRE EENR
BERBEAREREERERXFE
RiHE - BENTAFHEENNE
B R E E RS RS &N A
st o W% - BERREREB MR
AR A B R, SH R EEE R A
EfAE - BIZAIE NI E - AIREHR
RHEEEINEREMNREAERES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/ j: %\
GRipy e eIk

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019%F12H31H I F/Z

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5. Egﬁ—fﬂﬁmﬂﬂﬁﬂlﬂii
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

Impairment of inventories

The Group makes provision for inventories based
on an assessment of the net realisable value of
inventories. Allowances are applied to inventories
where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the net realisable value is lower than the cost
of inventories. The identification of slow-moving
stock and obsolete inventories requires the use of
judgement and estimates on the conditions and
usefulness of the inventories.

Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are included in the statement
of financial position at their fair value, which is
assessed annually by independent qualified valuers,
after taking into consideration all readily available
information and current market environment. The
methodology and assumptions adopted in the
property valuation are mentioned in note 16.

ERR@)

LG EE-LIA0 )

(e)

(7)

FEBE
AEBERBEHEFE N ZHFEMNTGE
AHRFEREE - ﬁﬁfiﬂ$1¢j€f§iﬁ%
BRI EFEANERFEERFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RIS R =E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % 2079’5#72/5’37 HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group reports two operating segments; these are
managed independently by the responsible segment
management bodies in line with the products and services
offered and the distribution channels and customer profiles
involved. Components of entity are defined as segments
on the basis of the existence of segment managers with
revenue and segment results (profit before income tax
less interest income, finance cost and corporate expenses)
responsibility who report directly to the Group’s senior

management who make strategic decisions.

Principal activities of the Group’s two reportable segments
are as follows:

Logistics and supply chain service for finished automobiles
and components — Provision of logistics services and
supply chain management, i.e. planning, storage and
transportation management for finished automobile and
components;

Materials procurement and related logistics services —
Sales of raw materials to customers comprising principally
trading companies and provision of related services
of transportation management, storage, warehouse
supervising and management.

The investments accounted for using the equity method
mainly carry out provision of logistics services, supply
chain management and agency service for electronics
components; and provision of cold warehouse operating
and logistic services.

6.

7o EBE #

REBWEED BN SMARE  ZEFD A
B RN BERARIRATIRM A E MR MR
USRS ERENEFPASBIINE
B EBRERBIRFERRERANARE
HEBIPRARNAEESREREREUA
M3 BB 5 48 (B TS B A MR R S A -
BEXARRBRF)BEND HBEEAN
EEEHDR -

REBEMERT 2RO G2 ETEEHBNOT
MEERE TR REYRRG — =Y

ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ%%%@’%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&g
BAERE - R RERERE

MERBLREEDRRE -NEIERESHR
AZBEPHERMMERIERER &
7 SREEMNEEFEBERG

%%%E%A%M&éigﬁﬁ#%ﬁ%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A OH I s HR R i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F 12831 H IFF/Z

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

6. DEER#)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BZ2019512A31HLEE
Logistics
and supply
chain service Materials
for finished  procurement
automobiles  and related Reportable
and logistics segments All other
components services subtotal segments Total
RERER
SHHtEE NERBR TER it}
WRERE  EENRRE ARt Ht A3 Ehy
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARET T ARET T ARBT ARBT T
Revenue WA 1,239,104 1,400,126 2,639,230 91,705 2,730,935
Inter-segment revenue AEEEEA - (8,346) (8,346) (5,790) (14,136)
Revenue from external customers ~ REMFEFHRA 1,239,104 1,391,780 2,630,884 85,915 2,716,799
Time of revenued recognition LON FE
At a point in time WE— e 1,239,104 1,391,780 2,630,884 85,915 2,716,799
Segment results PEEE 99,385 (12,815) 86,570 (3,975) 82,595
Share of results of investments FRABREARNEGRE
accounted for using i
the equity method 15,793
Unallocated other income RATEMYA 20,444
Unallocated corporate expenses RAEAARE (6.857)
Finance costs BAKA (42,416)
Profit before income tax BRETERLALET 69,559
Income tax expense FEREY (26,785)
Profit for the year FERT 4,774
Other information: EEr
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH (18,832) (512) (19,344) (5.871) (25,215)
Income tax expense FERAT (27,435) 589 (26,846) 61 (26,785)

All of the Group’s revenue from contracts with customers
is generated in the several locations based on where goods
are sold. All revenue contracts are for period of one year
or less, as permitted by practical expedient under IFRS 15,
the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contacts
is not disclosed.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited K288 E Wi

AEERNHERRNSERBELEREERAH
Wik - PIEREA WA EBE—F  REEK
MBBERNFISHAANAITEREIE AR
BEOIREZERBITEONZZER

B ERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BHRERNE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31HIFF/E

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEER#)
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ018512A318LEE
Logistics
and supply
chain service Materials
for finished  procurement
automobiles and related Reportable
and logistics segments All other
components services subtotal segments Total
REEER
THHHEE  DRRER 2R figs]
nRk%  BEDRERS AEG At it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARMTR  ARETR  AREBTR  ARETR

Revenue O 996,834 1,565,943 2,562,777 104,023 2,666,800
Inter-segment revenue 7 HREYA - (12,419) (12,419) (40,477) (52,896)
Revenue from exteral customers REMBEFHRA 996,834 1,553,524 2,550,358 63,546 2,613,904
Time of revenue recognition W AR ]
At a point in time RE—FH 996,834 1,553,524 2,550,358 63,546 2,613,904
Segment results PEEE 70,542 10,788 81,330 (25,425) 55,905
Share of results of investments FRAEREARNEGRE

accounted for using E<

the equity method 17,324
Unallocated other income RATEMYA 13,570
Unallocated corporate expenses RAEAARE (6,927)
Finance costs BAKA (32,134)
Profit before income tax BRETERLALET 47,738
Income tax expense FEsiES (20,130)
Profit for the year FERA 27,608
Other information: EHER
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH (8,771) (340) (9,111) (11,050) (20,161)
Income tax expense FrERRR (18,475) (276) (18,751) (1,379) (20,130)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e BRI ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F
6.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Sales between segments are carried out based on mutually
agreed price. The revenue from external parties reported to
the senior management is measured in a manner consistent
with that in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

Total segment assets and liabilities are not disclosed as
they are not regularly provided to and reviewed by the
Group’s senior management.

Over 90% of the Group’s operations and non-current
assets are located in the PRC, and over 90% of the
Group's revenue of the external customers is attributed to
the PRC. Therefore, no analyses of geographical segment
is presented for the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018.

6.

oEER#)

2 EPERHE TR MER BRI © [
SREEEREREIBELHRAZES
HHESLEMEEBAR BT AFE -

WEKBEDONMEELRBERRE  HRA%TE
EEABWFENRHETARESREEE
KAREERRN -

REEIO% A FEBRIFRBEEHUR
FE - BAREEBIO%RAINFES WA
TIREFRE - Bt WEMEBZE2019F &
2018F 12 A3 BIEFE2FME D EDHT ©

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T T AREFTT

Customer A ZPA 1,121,594 875,262
Customer B =FB - 391,878
Customer C BFC 314,629 -

REBBFEMREERNERAF]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BHRERNE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31HIFF/E

OTHER GAIN AN LOSS - NET 7. HttEREE - F8
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREEF T
Waiver of other payable A0 B Ath FET 5RIE 19,956 =
Government grant (note) B Eh (B EE) 718 125
Interest income from Bank, joint REIRIT - BEDEREMA
venture and other receivable qEEx PN PN 20,444 13,570
Net foreign exchange gains R Y= 313 932
Net loss on disposal of property, HEMZE - BRER&EL
plant and equipment FEE (333) (253)
Others Hith 376 347
41,474 14,721

Note: Government grant represents subsidies and awards
from local government authorities for the Group’s

PYEE - BRATHERGFE M 07 BUR # B R AR S 1 e 3
i 3 [ 46 7 B B JRR 7 % 11 0O B e R

contribution to the development of the local B o
economies.
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. BFEBFISF

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging:

BRATEBATEN S IRIA T RIA |

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREFTT
Auditors’ remuneration = ERRTEN & 1,760 1,760
Cost of materials purchased B E R AR 1,375,222 1,546,845
Subcontracting charges DB H 959,042 706,940
Employee benefits expenses (Note 9)  {& B & F|F sz (M5£9) 139,563 138,063
Depreciation of property, ME - WENRERETE
plant and equipment 14,675 15,187
Depreciation or right-of-use assets HREEETE 10,009 -
Transportation pEET 21,465 9,198
Fuel #RE 10,659 10,990
Operating lease charges LEAES - 3,133
Lease liabilities charges HEaEIL 10,432 -
Business tax BEN 9,033 8,731
Amortisation b5 531 531
Others H A 68,828 87,771
Total cost of sales and B E AR R AT B X 425
administrative expenses 2,621,219 2,529,149
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 9. EETAREX
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARETT
Wages and salaries TENEGS 91,995 91,475
Employer’s contribution to pension RIKEFTEEEH-K
scheme 44,362 43,597
Others Hith 3,206 2,991
Total employee benefit expense EEBFMAZ 4% 139,563 138,063
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET AREEF T
Director's fee EEEE 650 589
Other emoluments: EMEE
— Salaries and allowances — ¥ KoERL 826 868
— Performance related bonuses —1RRIBEE RN TEAT = -
— Retirement benefit scheme —RREFIFT B
contributions - -
1,476 1,457

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RRATE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 &[Z2019%12H31HIFFE
9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued) 9. EEEFNMEX &)

The remuneration of every director and the chief ZEERESITHRABREE20194F
executive For the year ended 31 December 2019 is 12A31BIEFENFHFMNT :

set out below:

Retirement
Salaries Performance benefit
Directors and related scheme
Fees allowances bonus contribution Total
BRE  EAER
EShe HEREM RHORAL  HEER fit

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR

The Chief executive and director: ~ HETHABREZR

Yang Weihong BHRIAL - 826 - - 826
Non-executive directors: FHiTES:
Li Jian (appointed on 10/52019)  ZR (72019455108

(Note f) BZ) (FrEf) EY) - - - 32
Peng Bo (2 50 - - - 50
Yang Xiaoping BN 50 - - - 50
Zheng Yuying gFE 50 - - - 50
Tse, Therese YY (resigned on HEA(R2019E55108E

10/5/2019) (Note g) f£) (Mizrg) 18 - - - 18

Independent non-executive directors: B FFHITES :

Cheng Xinsheng BHE 150 - - - 150
Japhet Sebastian Law EXH 150 - - - 150
Peng Zuowen FAEX 150 - - - 150
Zhou Zisheng EIEE - - _ _ _

650 826 - - 1,476
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
vt B mR M T
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F
9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued) 9.

(a)

Directors’

emoluments (Continued)

and chief executive’s

The remuneration of every director and the chief

executive for the year ended 31 December 2018 is

set out below:

EBERAMELZ

(a) EBERBETHAEME(Z)

BEERESTRAEREZE2018F

12A318 L FEMEBOT

Retirement
Salaries  Performance benefit
Directors and related scheme
Fees  allowances bonus  contribution Total
igies RAET
BEhe HeRE  BRmfA RN At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTR AREBTT ARETR ARET:
The Chief executive and director: BETHABRES
Zhang Jian (resigned on 20/3/2018) RE(M2018F3A208
(Note ¢) R (Fi3Ec) - 332 - - 332
Yang Weihong (Note d) Tt (Fi3Ed) 536 - - 536
Non-executive directors: FHTES
Yang Xiaoping U 50 - - - 50
Cui Xuesong ESI(72018F1 598
(resigned on 9/1/2018) B 26 = = = 26
Zhang Wang (note ) oRHE (Fiste) 18 = = = 18
Tse, Therese YY HEA 50 - - - 50
Zheng Yu Ying HFB(R2018E5A118
(appointed on 11/5/2018) EZf) 32 - - - 3
Peng Bo ZE(R2018FTHIRE
(appointed on 9/7/2018) Zf) 2 - - - 2
Independent non-executive directors: BUNTES:
Japhet Sebastian Law B4R 150 - - - 150
Cheng Xinsheng (i 150 - - - 150
Zhou Zisheng B - - - - -
Chia Pun Kok BRE(R2018F6A15A
(resigned on 15/6/2018) R 69 - - - 69
Peng Zuowen ZHEX (720185118128
(appointed on 12/11/2018) BZf) 20 . - - 20
589 868 - - 1,457

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &[Z2019%12H31HIFFE

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued)

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group For the year ended 31
December 2019 include one (2018: one) director
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments payable to the

9. EERAMAX &

HE2019F12A31B L EEAEH
BEERFHORERALZHR  Eh—F
(2018F : —HB)REF - HMeER
LT ERE o REIE2019612A31
HILFERERMN T THE (20184 « Y

remaining four (2018: four) individuals during the ZIANTEIEHROT -
year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows:
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREEF T
Employees EB
— salaries and allowances —¥re KoERL 3,672 3,126
— performance related bonus — IR RIBBE AL - -
— retirement benefit scheme —iRRTEFIFT B
contribution 174 _
3,846 3,126

Zhang Jian was the chief executive and also the
executive director of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2017. He had resigned on 20
March 2018.

Yang Weihong is appointed the chief executive and
also the executive director of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Zhang Wang is re-designated from non-executive
director to executive director and Chairman on 20
March 2018.

Li Jian was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 10 May 2019.

Tse Theresa YY had resigned the position of non-
executive directors on 10 May 2019.

RENEHZE2017F12831HIEFES
BEARNBZITHAHFNITES - #
TA20184E3 A20HRIE ©

BEAREZE2018F12A31HILEE
EZTAITHRAHFNITES -

RAL R2018F3H20H B IF#nITE =
FEEBRITEEHRERF -

FEP2019F5F10H EEZ T AIEH

TEE-

S E BN 2019F5 8108 B IEHTT
BE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AP RR TR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued) 9. EEEFNMEX 2

The emoluments of the Group’s senior management AEESREEEMSRANMT :
fell within the followings bands:

Number of individuals N
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBTT
Emolument bands B < 4% B
Approximately RMB380,000 - # AR #380,0007T —
RMB1,000,000 AR#1,000,0007T 3 3
Approximately RMB1,000,001 -  #JAR#¥1,000,0017T—
RMB2,000,000 AR #2,000,0007T 1 1

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the IRIEHFEEIR  NEFBAE TLETEEMBUT
Group participates in various defined contribution  4B#ZMIETHFTERSETE - BT Lt BFEH
retirement plans organised by municipal and 4p » KREBFRH N ELAZABYEARSEN BE
provincial governments for its staff. The Group HftEKBNREE °

has no other material obligation for the payment

of pension benefits associated with these plans

beyond the annual contributions described above.

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. @& KA

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET R AREEFIT

Interest on borrowings wholly AR —FRBEHEERED
repayable within one year IEEGORYES) 31,036 25,897
Interest on finance lease MEBERE - 6,237
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEFE 11,380 -
42,416 32,134

180 Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited  K3/& 8T EREBIHDBR AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B OB IS R I T
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912531 H1FF/E

11a. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES Ma. AN B ATNRE
(a) Subsidiaries (a) MIEBAF
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as T AR2019612A31BEEMER
at 31 December 2019: TGS
Proportion of
Proportion of Proportion of  ordinary shares
Place of ordinary shares  ordinary shares held by
Incorporation directly held heldby  non-controlling
Name of and kind of Registered by parent the Group interests
Company legal entity Principal activities capital (%) (%) (%)
§id A5E FER
AL ERiE & BEs
HERER BER BER FLE
AEER BREY it HRES ff(%) if(%) BB
Tianjin Fengtian Logistics Co, Ltd, Ching, limited liability Transportation of finished vehicles USD8,645,600 5% 5% 48%
company and supply chain management
senvices
RRERTRERAT 8 FRELLT BEERRRERERRR BEUSS00ET
TEDA General Warehouse Co,, Ltd. Ching, limited liability Warehouse operations and logistic ~ RMB80,000,000 100% 100% -
company senices
RERSERELARNARRAY  PE ARAELY SRALRORER AFR80,000,0007
Tianjin Yuan Da Xian Dai Logistics Ching, imited liabliy Logistc services RMB20,000,000 100% 100% -
(o, Ltd. company
RETARRORERAT 8 FRELLT i ARE20000,0007
He Guang Trade and Business Co, Ltd. ~ Hong Kong, imited fiabiity  Intemational trading 1$100,000 100% 100% -
company
MAEERRAT B ERAMLLT angs 100,000
Tianjin TEDA Freight Forwarding Ching, limited liability International transportation RMB50,000,000 51% 51% 49%
(o, Ltd. company agency services
REREAR SERERRAT of - BREELT AEERERE ARES,000,0007

ANNUAL REPORT 43R 2019 181



182

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31H IFF/E
11a. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

The total non-controlling interest as at 31
December 2019 is approximately RMB118,556,000
(2018: RMB108,859,000) of which approximately
RMB120,787,000 (2018: RMB109,309,000) is for
TFL. The non-controlling interests in respect of
Tianjin TEDA International Freight Forwarding Co.,
Ltd. is not material.

Summarised financial information on
subsidiaries with non-controlling interests that
are material to the Group

Set out below are the summarised financial
information for TFL.

Ma R BRATNRE &)

M2019F 12 A3 AEERER B ST
495 AR ¥118,556,0007T (20184 ¢
AR #108,859,0007T) - EFHAR
#120,787,0007C(20185F : A R ¥
109,309,0007T ) 2K B K E L H 7 °
EHRREREABREEREARAA]
MWIEERESTEBEAX

KEHAEEBEANFEREZR
BB 1 AIf B EEIHE

TXEFRFELRY R E R
Eo

Summarised statement of financial position AR RBE
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET R ARBFIT

Current RE

Assets BE 379,386 334,134
Liabilities afs (206,363) (172,694)
Net current assets REBEEFE 173,023 161,440
Non-current assets ERBEE 78,616 66,288
Net assets FEE 251,639 227,728

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

REBBFEMREERNERAF]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31HIFF/E
11a. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Summarised financial information on

Ma. R BLATNKRE &)

KEHEXEEBEANFEREZER

subsidiaries with non-controlling interests that W18 22 Al B AR E ()
are material to the Group (continued)
Summarised statement of profit or loss and BmRHEMEERAREE
other comprehensive income
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Revenue WA 1,239,104 978,249
Profit before income tax B B 45 250 A& A 100,844 73,133
Income tax expense FriSfiF X (27,435) (18,475)
Profit and total comprehensive SFERFREZEMWBAELE
income for the year 73,409 54,658
Total comprehensive income DT IEERE R
allocated to non-controlling SEW AL
interests 35,236 26,236
Dividends paid to non-controlling 215 JF#E AR AE 2 % 2.
interests 23,600 19,460
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F
11a. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 11a.RMEBATNKRE %)

(Continued)
Summarised financial information on BEYHAEEBEANHF LR EZL
subsidiaries with non-controlling interests that W18 22 A B A FIHLE ()
are material to the Group (continued)
Summarised statement of cash flows REeERERYPE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBTT
Cash flows from operating RETHHRESRE
activities
Cash generated from operations @SR E 113,879 19,905
Interest received 2FE 1,555 =
Income tax paid B ETSHR (24,941) (21,067)
Net cash generated/(used in) BESEE B ()
from operating activities BE&FRE 90,493 (1,162)
Net cash used in investing RETBFARSTHE
activities (9,010) (5,783)
Net cash used in financing RETBMARSEE
activities (58,937) (40,542)
Net increase/(decreased) in cash BekReEEY
and cash equivalents Rl ) F5m 22,546 (47,487)
Cash and cash equivalents at FReRREeEEY
beginning of year 218,428 265,915
Cash and cash equivalents at FREASRBRESZEEY
end of year 240,974 218,428
The information above is the amount before inter- i ER AR REIKEATAEEE -

company eliminations.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

REBBFEMREERNERAF]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FrE BRI ot

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of

financial position are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &[Z2019%12H31HIFFE

11b. SRR EARNKE

REHHBRRRERO SR T

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

The Group rEE AR¥T T ARBFT
Associates /NS 35,493 37,569
Joint ventures FoR/NE] 191,065 201,582
At 31 December M®12A31H 226,558 239,151

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement

RAHER LRE M2 HWARERN LN

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are as T
follows:

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR® T AREFT
Associates /N 7,660 10,047
Joint ventures N WNC] 8,133 7,277
For the year ended 31 December HE1N2AMBILFE 15,793 17,324
2019 2018
201945 2018%
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETR AREEFIT
At 1 January M1 A1 37,569 35,923
Share of results of associates i) /NI 7,660 10,047
Dividends received B2 AR 8 (9,736) (8,401)
At 31 December M12A31H 35,493 37,569
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g e
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31H IFF/E
11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR

USING THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(a)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

Investment in associates (Continued)

Set out below are associates of the Group as at
31 December 2019, which, in the opinion of the
directors, are material to the Group. The associates

11b. KA EARNKRE &)

(a) REEZEDBNIRE (FE
TXEFAEBR2019612A318E
ERAEAEBEANBENT T
SR A B N R AR AN B AL R AN R ]

as listed below have share capital consisting solely HEEFANTBERANX MK
of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the BRHBARNBEFZEEME -
Group; the country of incorporation or registration
is also their principal place of business.
Nature of investment in associates as at 31 R2019F 12A31 HREE 2 Al R E
December 2019 ME
Proportion
Place of of ordinary
business/ shares
Registered  country of directly held  Nature of the Measurement
Name of company capital  incorporation by parent relationship method
§AF
g% EiERE
w8/ LER
DRER dMEx  RIMER Ll BEME HEREE
(%)
Directly held:
BREE
Tianjin Port Gangwan RMB30,000,000  China 40%  Carrying out the Equity
International Automobile Group's automobile
Logistics Co., Ltd. ("Gangwan storage and related
Automobile”) Services
REEBERRAZMRER  ARME30,000000T HE 40% HRAEERSRERN R
RABEARED) RAABRE
Tianjin Tianxin Automobile RMB5,000,000  China 30%  Carrying out the Equity
Inspection Services Co., Ltd. Group's vehicle
("Tianxin") inspection services
RERERIERARBRE  ARES5000000T  PE 0% RAKEGZERE  #x

ERAR(TRE])

The associates of the Group are private companies

and there are no quoted market prices available.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the

Group’s interest in the associates.

i

REBNEBERABELARR - AEAET

ﬁ%?ﬁﬁiﬁ%%ﬂ?ﬁ%@?ﬁ% wARRE 2 AR

KEBGREMREBRABERAT]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BHRERNE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31HIFF/E

11b. KA EARNKRE &)

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

Summarised financial information for associates

Set out below are the summarised financial
information for the associates of the Group which
are accounted for using the equity method and the
share of the profits are material to the Group.

BELNANBENEE
TIINHAEERAEDEARARE
EENEAEEMEBEANBEQ
AN BERBE -

Summarised statement of financial position BBk R E
Gangwan Automobile Tianxin
BERE x&
2019 2018 2019 2018
2019% 20185 2019% 20184
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT
Current ik
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEEY 75,162 85,743 13,677 13,138
Other current assets it RBEE 1,082 1,082 86 587
Total current assets TEEENE 76,244 86,825 13,763 13,725
Current liabilities nBaE (4,691) (5,895) (2,101) (8,514)
Total current net assets ARBEERE 71,553 80,930 11,662 5211
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,94 3,627 7,322 7277
Net assets EEFE 74,494 84,557 18,984 12,488
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31H IFF/E
11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR

USING THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

Summarised financial information for associates

11b. KA EARNKRE &)

BE AN B RS ()

(Continued)
Summariesd statement of profit or loss and BERkEMEEEKAME
other comprehensive income
Gangwan Automobile Tianxin
BERE P
2019 2018 2019 2018
2019% 20185 2019% 2018%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT ARET TR ARETTT
Revenue ON 68,397 85,248 24,561 24,385
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (749) (614) (1,342) (1,416)
Interest income FBUA 1,391 1,033 75 82
Profit before income tax BRATEBATRR 19,039 26,130 8,666 9,878
Income tax expense FIERAY (4.761) (6,617) (2,170) (2,404)
Profit and total comprehensive ~ EERFIR2ERA
income for the year g 14,278 19,513 6,496 7474
Dividends received from associates B 2\ 7JUELH
RE 9,736 - - 8,401
Reconciliation of summarised financial BB ERBLER TR
information
Reconciliation of the summarised financial Fr 2 7\ 81 15 & RHt 22 ea pA Bt i A |4
information presented to the carrying amount of its mEREE Z RIS ED
interest in associates
Summarised financial information MR ERBIE
Gangwan Automobile Tianxin
BERE P
2019 2018 2019 2018
2019% 20185 2019% 2018%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT ARET T ARETTT
Opening net assets at 1 January MABNFIEE
M 84,557 65,044 12,488 33,016
Profit and total comprehensive FRETIRZERA
income for the year 2% 14,278 19,513 6,496 7,474
Dividend RE (24,341) - - (28,002)
Closing net assets at 31 December W12 A31BHER
EEFE 74,494 84,557 18,984 12,488
Interest in associates NNl 29,798 33,823 5,695 3,746

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited —~ XF&SFEVRERMRMDER AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &[Z2019%12H31HIFFE

11b. KA EARNKRE &)

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

2019 2018

20195 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R AREFT

At 1 January MM A1HR 201,582 213,305
Share of profits of joint ventures  E/HA &R ALEF 8,133 7,277
Dividend received B AR B (18,650) (19,000)
At 31 December MW12A31H 191,065 201,582

Nature of investment in joint ventures as at 31

R2019F12H31 HREE R FHKRE

December 2019 E3=1
Place of % of
business/country  ownership Nature of the Measurement
Name of company Registered capital  of incorporation interest relationship method
EEnE/ER FERER
DRER EMER  RINER Aol BEME FEEE
Tedahang Cold Chain Logistics ~ RMB200,000,000  China 60% Carrying out the cold  Equity
Co., Ltd. ("Tedahang") (note) warehouse operating
and logistic services
RET(RR)LEMRERAT ARK2000000007T HH 60% REGEGELESE s
(TZRER ) () RnR%
Tianjin Alps Teda Logistics Co., USD6,240,000  China 50% Carrying out the Equity
Ltd. ("Tianjin Alps") supplying chain
management services
REREMBEHNRERAE 624000051  FE 50% REgELeHEE  #5
(TRZMEEL]) EERG
Dalian Alps Teda Logistics Co., USD2,400,000  China 50% Carrying out the Equity
Ltd. ("Dalian Alps") material procurement
logistics and supply
chain management
services
REREMREMMRERLT  240000%7  HE 50% RESELENERE #a
(TREMERE]) MR EEREE
TR

The joint ventures of the Group are private
companies and there is no quoted market price
available.

Note:

The Group holds 60% of the registered capital
of Tedahang, and controls 60% of the voting
power in the general meetings. However, under
the shareholders’ agreement, the major financing
and operational decision of Tedahang should be
unanimously approved by the Group and other
ventures. Therefore, Tedahang is regarded as a joint
venture of the Group.

AEENRERBBILARA  XE
AHETIE -

G

A B 2R (T60% M A A -
B A @ 47 160% 13 TR < AR T -
RIERE Y - RETEAME REHE
REBRE AR E R AT A ) — B
o B FETHEARRENOAE
AT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F

Summarised financial information for joint

ventures

Set out below are the summarised financial

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

11b. KA EARNKRE &)

BERABERHE

AT AHRNEENSE R ERABER

information for joint ventures of the Group which EANRNAEEREE -
is accounted for using the equity method:
Summarised statement of financial position AR RBE
Tedahang Tianjin Alps Dalian Alps
RET REmELS rERELE
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
2195 20185 20198 2018% 20195 20185
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETnT  AR%TR  ARETR
Current 78
Cash and cash equivalents RERREZEN 5792 2,865 131,71 170430 39,726 44,197
Other current assets ErEEE 25,970 16,624 97,153 104,814 66,306 84,710
Total current assets THEELE 31,762 19,489 234,874 275,244 106,032 128907
Borrowings (&3 (11,394) (11,394) - = (4,186) (4,118)
Other current liabilities EiiEaE (198,428) (166,442) (72,409) (55,582) (@2,127) (59.436)
Total current liabilities TEEEEE (209,822) (177.836) (72,409) (55,582) (46,313) 63,554)
Net current (liabilities)/assets ~ 8(5f&)/4EFE (178,060) (158,347) 162,465 219,662 59,719 65,353
Non-current E il
Total non-current assets FRHEERE 279,326 294,563 93,916 33451 1,675 8,575
Borrowings (3 (22,788) (40,99) (604) (1,049 - -
Other non-current liablities EERBaE (11,581) (13,145) > - = -
Total non-current liabilties EhkraaEeE (34,369) (54,141) (604) (1,049) - -
Net non-current assets FRBDEEFE 244,957 240422 93312 32,40 7,675 8,575
Net assets BEFE 66,897 82,075 255,777 252,064 67,394 73,928

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

REBBFEMREERNERAF]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &[Z2019%12H31HIFFE
11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 11b. AR EABENERE %)

USING THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

Summarised financial information for joint
ventures (Continued)

Summarised statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income

Tedahang
RER
2019 2018
20195 2018%
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR

BB ANBAREE(E)

BEREMEERAREE
Tianjin Alps Dalian Alps
REMEEE REMBEE

2019 2018 2019 2018

20195 2018F 2019F 2018%
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARETR

Revenue 0N 68,686 118,591 473,508 497,981 219,986 253,405
Depreciation and amortisation  #1E R (12,463) (13,921) (2,697) (2,204) (1,124) (1,254)
Interest income MEHA 65 67 1,282 1,049 - -
Interest expense IS4 (11,534) (10,563) - - (163) (65)
(Loss)/profit before BRATER A (BR)/

income tax gl (15,178) (22,482) 39,727 45,153 7,075 11,468
Income tax expense R - - (10,414) (11,567) (1,909) (3,522)
(Loss)/profit and total EE(FR)/ Bk

comprehensive (loss)/ 2H(FR) /KA

income for the year fam (15,178) (22,482) 29,313 33,586 5,166 7,946
Dividends received from  HAEAFKEMH

joint ventures RE - - 12,800 16,000 5850 3,000

The information above reflects the amount
presented in the financial statements of the joint
ventures adjusted for differences in accounting
policies between the Group and the joint ventures.

Reconciliation of the summarised financial
information presented to the carrying amount of its
interests in the joint ventures are as follows:

ERERRREERFHBERRAZ
JIMERE YR AEEERAE QR
ZEEFBERNERIFH AR -

2P BEMBERERAE AR
RS MAREE FRFEEANT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

X e

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31H IFF/E

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

Summarised financial information for joint
ventures (Continued)

11b. SREAE R

EARAKRE #)

BERAHBERBE(E)

Summarised financial information B E B E
Tedahang Tianjin Alps Dalian Alps
REf PN:= ) X REMEES
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
2019% 2018F 20195 2018 20195 2018%
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TRE AREBTT ARETn ARETT ARETR ARETR
At 1 January R1A1H 82,075 104,557 252,064 250,478 73,928 71,982
(Loss)profit for the year  EE(E5i8) /&7 (15,178) (22,482) 29313 33,586 5,166 7,946
Dividend 4] = = (25,600) (32,000) (11,700) (6,000)
At 31 December R12A31H 66,897 82,075 255,777 252,064 67,394 73,928
Interest in joint ventures  RAERAMNER 40,138 49,245 127,889 126,032 33,697 36,964
Fair value adjustments on ~ LI/EREARDE -
land use rights, property,  FER&REL
plant and equipment AABERE (10,659) (10,659) - - - -
Carrying value FEE 29,479 38,586 127,889 126,032 33,697 36,964
At the end of reporting period, the jointly RS IR - AT B AR EE
controlled entities do not have any outstanding WARALE

contingent liabilities.

REBBFEMREERNERAF]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &[Z2019%12H31HIFFE

11c. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

M. EBEME2EKRZRAAEBE

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE IR ERT A
INCOME
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®T T AREFT
Non- current assets JEREEE
Unlisted equity investment (Note (a))  FF_EmiiEzi% & (ME(a)) 60,410 18,500
Total FEE 60,410 18,500
Note: 5T

(a)

Upon application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018,
the unlisted equity investment are reclassified
from available-for-sale financial assets. As at 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the fair
value of the unlisted equity investment is arrived
on the basis of a valuation carried out by an
independent professional valuers.

(a)

20181 A1 A FE FA BIBR B 7% 3R &5 2E Bl
FORiE - FELTREREGAHIEES
EEEHHLE - H2019F128318 K
2018F12H31H » IELEMERKREN R
ARBEDERBLEEGHEMETHE
EmEL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

X e
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31H IFF/E
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Taxation in the Consolidated Statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as below:

12. FRI8%iAX

BHESEIEMEEBARABBENT

2019 2018

2019 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T T ARBTT

Deferred tax: RIEFIA - (926) 1,025
Current tax: PRC Enterprise Income Tax BNEAF{ 1B : FBIDZEFTER

Provision for the year FAEE 27,420 18,937

Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR 291 168

PRC Enterprise Income Tax R ERTISH 26,785 20,130

Under the prevailing tax law in the PRC, the Enterprise
Income Tax rate of the Company and the subsidiaries is
25%.

No provision for the Hong Kong Profit Tax his been made
for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 as the
Group has no assessable profit arising in Hong Kong.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No.7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March
2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million
of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The Directors considered the amount involved upon

implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

BRIERITHREAFE - AR REKBAFZ
TERGRHEE25% °

HZE2019F %2018F12A31HIEFE - &
RAEBW ENEBELEREFHMN - Bt
MERE SRS EE -

20183 A218 « & EE@iE2017
FRBUSET) (BIR)GHIER) ([EHIE
=) Sl AMBABIFIE R EHIE o EHIE
EKM2018F3A28HEZEN AERE - WHE
HREER - REMBHIFISHERGE -
AEREEAEENE2E BB THEMEIZ
8.25% M EME - MBBE2ABB LN G
F81216.5% BT R BT o TRFE RN AR A
SR EGENEEE BN &N HEER
16.5% HY £t — B R -

EEZRA - BEMANSEHRAEMSRNE
MY AHYBRRABEATE -

REBBFEMREERNERAF]



12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BHRERNE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31HIFF/E

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 12. FAIEHE X (&)
The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs REBRBRAEMINEMNMNHIBHEEBAHE
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the A EEANNETORRAEELE B
weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the MENEENT -
consolidated entities as follows:
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFT
Profit before income tax R PS5 A& A1 69,559 47,738
Tax at the official income tax rate of & B HFTEHHE25% &
25% and 16.5% (2018: 25% and 16.5% (20184 : 25% &
16.5%) 16.5% )T EHITIA 17,383 11,446
Tax effect of: LAFIEE M TE
— Associates’ and joint ventures’ —BERTREENTIER
results reported, net of tax FECNRTIE) (3,948) (4,331)
— Expenses and income not deductible — AT $0 sk B R L 2
or taxable for taxation purpose sz R A 4,303 8,210
— Tax effect of tax losses not — RERIBBEENN G E
recognised 9,682 3,612
Unrecognised temporary differences  RHER LI 14 =58 (926) 1,025
— Under-provision in respect of prior ~ —BAFEEETRE
years 291 168
Income tax expense FrigfiF = 26,785 20,130
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F

13.

14.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

13. 5RER

BRERBNTIRFARNRAER ARIGR
FMEBRAB BT EBIRINEFIEGHE -

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Earnings ZF
Profit attributable to owners of the RAEER AR
Company 9,454 2,569
Number of shares (thousands) BROHE (FR)
Weighted average number of ordinary FiztEERREAR K #EZF|
shares for calculating basic and i = &9 & AR hnfE 19 28
diluted earnings per share 354,312 354,312

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, diluted
earnings per share are the same as the basic earnings per
share as the Company did not have any potential dilutive
ordinary shares outstanding during the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.

LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease payments and their net book values are
analysed as follows:

HARARRNEE20199F &2018F 12 A31
AEFEETEFAELBEEERRETE
Hh o BELE2019F 22018 12 A31H LEF
EEREERFEGRERBFER -

14, b fiE A #E

ARER L0 BEOEE AR ELRE
& - HEEHESTMT -

2018

20184

RMB’000

AREFT

At beginning of the year REA) 19,448
Amortisation charge for the year FAEHETH (531)
At the end of the year REFLR 18,917

Note:

All the land use rights of the Group are situated in the
PRC and are amortised over their lease periods. As at initial
application of IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, net carrying
amount of RMB18,917,000 was reclassified to right of use
assets under property, plant and equipment the land use
rights have remaining lease periods ranging from 27 to 38
years (2018: 28 to 39 years).

REBBFENRE

GEX

AEEAE LHEAEONRFRE - WiRHE
THEHER - W2019FE1A1BEERER
BB RREERFEI6HE FRFEARE
18,917,000 EEF N HEME - BE KEZE
BTHEREEE - tinfE AEFSMNTEE R
275385 (20184 : 28FE39F )15 -

B ERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HIBRRHAIE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 &[Z2019%12H31HIFFE
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 9% - BEKRRE

Furniture
and office Motor Construction Land

Buildings ~ Machinery  equipment vehicles in progress use rights Total
FERMA

g e Rk RE  EEIR iHERE it
RMB'O00  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TL ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARMTR

The Group e 3]
Cost AE
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1A 223,956 27352 26,963 58,657 1,241 - 338,169
Additions HE 3,853 35 2,329 1,840 4,611 - 12,668
Disposals RE (206) (2,752) (2,088) (3,880) (4,995) - (13,921)
At 31 December 2018 %‘20W8¢12ﬂ315 ) 227,603 24,635 27,204 56,617 857 - 336,916
Adjustments upon application  F\TE R EIPRET 3R 5 8
of IFRS 16 F16TRIFLRE 2,266 - - 3,708 - 26,321 32,295
At 1 January 2019 (restated) 7201951 1R(EE7) 229,869 24,635 27,204 60,325 857 26,321 369,211
Additions HE 31,809 64 5450 3,967 6,285 - 47,575
Disposals RE (351) (1,436) (7112) (6,938) (3.813) - (13,250)
At 31 December 2019 #2019%12 4318 261,327 23,263 31,942 57,354 3,329 26,321 403,536
Accumulated depreciation  Z3HTE
At 1 January 2018 201851718 83,713 21,501 20,404 42,706 - - 168,324
Charge for the year ERTH 9,622 633 1328 3,604 - - 15,187
Disposals RE (69) 247 (1,872) (3319 - - (7,737)
At 31 December 2018 R2018512 4318 ) 93,266 19,657 19,860 42,991 - - 175,774
Adjustments upon application A& B EIRET 45 8
of IFRS 16 F16% R IELDE 1443 - - 1,731 - 7,404 10,578
At 1 January 2019 (restated) 720191 A1 (SE3) 94,709 19,657 19,860 44722 - 7,404 186,352
Charge for the year ERR T 14216 570 3277 6,621 - 531 25,215
Disposals RE - (1,283) (644) (6,307) - - (8.234)
At 31 December 2019 #2019%12A318 108,925 18,944 22,493 45,036 - 7,935 203,333
Net book values REEE
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12 4318 152,402 4319 9,449 12,318 3,329 18,386 200,203
At 1 January 2019 (restated) 72019515 1R (&EE7]) 135,160 4978 7,344 15,603 857 18917 182,859
At 31 December 2018 #2018512 4318 134,337 4978 7,344 13,626 857 - 161,142
Note: MfsE -
During the year ended 31 December 2019, depreciation B E2019F12A318 EF 5 HEMAX
expense of approximately RMB25,216,000 (2018: #) 7 A K 125,216,00070 (20185 = A K #
RMB15,000,000) has been charged in ‘Cost of sales’ and 15,000,0007T ) B AT SHERA I - AR
approximately RMBNil (2018: RMBNil) in ‘administrative BT (20185F : ARKZL)EB1THHX]
expenses’. kR -
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Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

(Continued)

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant
and equipment)

Buildings ~ Machinery

55 Hz
RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTTE  ARETR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
X e
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31H IFF/E

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15.9% - BERS®E )

EHEEE (T AW - BB KRR E)

Furniture
and office Motor Construction  Land Use
equipment vehicles in progress rights Total

DERME AE EEIR  1MERR it
RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR

As at 1 January 2019 #2019F151A

(restated) (%5
Carrying amount BEE 86,830 1368
As at 31 December 2019 #2019%12A31H
Carrying amount BEE 25,260 =
For the year ended BR019E1N2BNALEE

31 December 2019
Depreciation charge HERR 6,836 =

Expense relating to short-term S 83 & R HN & N fER
leases and other leases AR BRELAE165A
with lease terms end within i 1218 A RERNHE LA
12 months of the date of ~ EBBHEX
initial application of IFRS

16
Additions to right-of-use assets FEEREEE(Hi2)
(Note 2) . 31,074 -
Less: Transfer to PPE W BRENE -
BRR#E (86,008) (1,368)
Note 2:

Amount includes right-of-use assets resulting from business
combination, lease modification, reassessment/exercise
of extension/termination options, payments for leasehold
land, excluding those classified as investment properties.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has investment
properties under finance leases with net book value of
approximately RMBNil (2018: RMB9,056,000), buildings
under finance leases with net book value of approximately
RMB37,816,000 (2018: RMB86,008,000), machinery under
finance leases with net book value of approximately RMBNil
(2018: RMB1,368,000), furniture and office equipment
under finance leases with net book value of approximately
RMBNil (2018: RMB1,186,000) and motor vehicles under
finance leases with net book value of approximately
RMBNiIl (2018: RMB3,632,000).

1,186 5,610 = 18917 113911

= 1321 = 18,386 44,967

= 3173 = 531 10,540

3,068

S 2,516 = S 33,790

(1,186) (3,632) = S (92,194)
MisE2 -

e WREALKAN WEEH - BT
1/ AT6EE AR LR ABAE - T LS T
EANERRAE - T REDBAREWEA
A%

MR2019F12A31H  AKBEURERE
HENKEEMENEAFEOARES T
(20184 : A R #9,056,0007T ) * AR &
HERENEFONEROFEROARYE
37,816,0007C(20184F : A R #£86,008,000
7o) LRt EEER AN ESENREFER
HAREZI(2018%F + AR ¥1,368,000
L) LB EHERENRARPAETRE
MR FEANARBZTIIL(2018F : AR
#1,186,00070) R IABE A ERF A/ /TEH
RAFEANARESIL(2018F : ARM
3,632,0007T) °

REBBFEMREERNERAF]
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16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31HIFF/E
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15.Y¥ - BENKZRE )

(Continued)

During the current year, the Group leases properties for
self-own use and a motor vehicle for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed term of one to three
years, but may have termination option to terminate
the leasing agreement of motor vehicle after one year.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

RAFEER  AEBHEMEFERARIEE
MERANEE BEANU—E=FMEE
HIRRATSL - BB LT —F R
MEMERZ - HEMKIEERIER L
B BREETRGERRGS - REEHEE
HIR LAHE T RO ENRER - AEE
FER A KM ERILETE S XA R HITTE
Ml e

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. RE Y %
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTFT
At the beginning of the year RE &SRR 306,700 302,600

Net (loss)/gain arising from change in &REWEALBEEHEL

fair value of investment properties 2 W(E8) W FaE (3,700) 4,100
Balance at end of year RF RIS 303,000 306,700
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e BRI ot

= Ut
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F

16. REWE 2

16.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no unprovided
contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance
(2018: Nil).

All investment properties of the Group are warehouses
located in the PRC.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at
31 December 2019 and 2018 has been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out by Peak Vision Appraisals
Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected to the Group.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties was
determined based on the income capitalisation approach,
which involves estimating the rental incomes of the
property and capitalising them all on appropriate rate to
produce a capital value.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, their current
use equates to the highest and best use of the properties.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has lease investment
properties under finance leases with net book value of
approximately RMBNil (2018: RMB9,056,000).

At each financial year end, the management of the Group
will (i) verify all major inputs to the independent valuation
report; (i) assess property valuations movements when
compared to the prior year valuation report; and (iii) holds
discussion with the independent valuer.

Changes in level 3 fair values are analysed at each
reporting date by the management of the Group.

The Group’s policy is to recognize transfers into and
transfer out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the

transfer.

N

AREE
R2019F 128318 ' AEBIWEEBAR

EEREENRBESOMERE(2018%F -
m) o

Ay

AEBWMARENERUNTENER -

REB 20194 M2018F12 A31HHIIRE
MERNDRBEDERBELAEKEEME
REEETHBERA R (BAEERERE)
FTErTROfEE M E BN -

AEBREMENDABEIRBRAER
LITAREE - ERSREFDERNESBA
KA s E WA E L R E AL IAR
BAREE-

HEZENENAAEER - ZFVENK
BhRERRSEERRAE

R2019F 128310 AEBUARERE R
ENHEREVENRAFEAPNDARES
70(2018%F : AR#9,056,0007T) °

REMBFREFER - AEEEREBZ
BB EREMBEZZRAER  (i)FHE
HFFERHERSEBENDEGBEZS &
(i) BB S (R ERDHET TR &

AREEREREBEASNEZGAAME
HR -

M

AEEZBER/NEHER 2 BERER IR
BE(CEARRRIABEERZBALRSE
& oo

REBBSFEMREBRNERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &[Z2019%12H31HIFFE

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Details of the Group’s investment properties and

information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31

December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

16. REWHE #)

AREBEMN2019F K20185FE12 A31 B B %
BYERANLBESHEROFBOT ¢

Valuation
technique(s)

Fair value of and significant Relationship
investment Fair value unobservable of unobservable
properties hierarchy inputs inputs to fair value

BEEE
HERNREESE WAHBE
RENELNEE DRBESR EBEBARE AREENBER
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETT
Investment 303,000 306,700 Level 3 Market unit rent, using the Assuming that the yield
properties in PRC direct market comparables stand, the increase in the
and taking into account market unit rent would
of location and other result in an increase in
individual factors, of range  market value.
from RMBO0.18 sg. m. to
RMB1.8 sq. m. per day
(2018: RMBO0.2 sg. m. to
RMB1.9 sq. m. per day).
R BEEIREME 303,000 306,700 E3# MSEMHAS  RAEET BRREIEZESIE [

mSEAAEHS  TAE
HE -

BRI AR S Wt &Y
FE B R EAERE X -

FHBSNTEEH KA
RE018TEFFHTAKA
R¥1.87L(2018%F : &H
HENTEERRKARE
02TEBTHTRARE

1.97L) °

Market yield, taking into  Assuming that the market
account of yield generated value stand, the increase
from comparable in the reversionary yield
properties and adjustment  would result in a decrease
to reflect the certainty in fair value.
of term income secured
and to be received of 9%

(2018: 9.5%).
MSRER - FRATELR BRMESSIE  AE

MEMELOREEIE BREXFES AREE
HAB AR A R B -
WERTH BRI A RV RETEIE

HEEERI%

(20185 : 9.5%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e BRI ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F

=TT

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. REW X (%)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorized PERAARBESERIE=ZRAZANEE
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: SFEHER
Total
@t
RMB’000
Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 RH2018E1 1A WEREE AREFT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 7201841 81 BHERMEE 302,600
Fair value changes NREEEE 4,100
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 And
1 January 2019 F20184F12 4318 &2019%1 A1 BHEREE 306,700
Fair value changes AREEE (3,700)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 M2019F 12 A31BMEREE 303,000
The Group believes that any possible changes in the input REEMRE @ BABUEGEREEIR 2 A
values would not cause significant change in fair value of BT ERIRENELAABELEEKX

investment properties. HE) o

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited —~ XF&SFEVRERMRMDER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BHRERNE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31HIFF/E

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 17.€®MIT A
2019 2018
2019% 20185
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets measured at amortised cost: RAENATENSREE
— Trade, bills and other receivables, excluding —-BE5RNE  BUEE
prepayment to suppliers REMEKTE(TRE
BN ERTR) 738,753 807,797
— Pledged bank deposits —BERRITER 127,773 172,591
— Cash and cash equivalents -HeRREEEN 406,614 387,273
Total st 1,273,140 1,367,661
Equity Instruments at fair value through other ~ EBEMEEARER AL EEYIF
comprehensive Income MEmIA 60,410 18,500
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREEFTT
Financial liabilities SRIEE
Financial liabilities measured at HHEK AT ENERAE
amortised cost:
— Borrowings — &R 957,528 504,520
— Lease liabilities/obligations under -HEAE/ MEMERR
finance lease 102,441 52,438
— Deferred tax liabilities —REHEER 56,997 57,923
- Trade and other payables, — 85 REMPERFRIE
excluding deposits from customer (TMEREEPII& R
and statutory liabilities ETEEE) 501,004 705,527
Total @it 1,617,970 1,320,408
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F

18. INVENTORIES 18.
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARMETT
Others Hih 1,100 1,533
1,100 1,533

No significant inventory is stated at net realisable value as

at 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

19. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

R2019F 128318 ' MIEEANGFEZA
BIFEYIR(20184F « #|&) o

19.8EZRUNRE - BREERE
ftb FE UL R IR

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AREFTT
Trade receivables 2 5 WG IR 440,398 664,063
Less: allowance for impairment B ORERHE (72,620) (26,400)
367,778 637,663
Bills receivables (note (b)) e Z= % (B RE(b)) 347,552 1,950
715,330 639,613

Other receivables, deposits and Hih W RIE - T2 Kk
prepayments TEfSFRIE 23,921 168,711
Less: allowance for impairment R E R (498) (527)
738,753 807,797
Prepayment to suppliers 4 FE RS TR SR IR 710,406 509,460
Amount due from joint venture JEW & & EEFRIA 185,371 -
Less: allowance for impairment W ORERE - (20,603)
Prepayment to suppliers-net M FE R TR BB — F R 895,777 488,857
1,634,530 1,296,654

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

REEBFEDR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &[Z2019%12H31HIFFE

TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes:

(@) The balance of the Group’s trade and other
receivables are denominated in Renminbi.

(b) The bills are non-interest bearing bank acceptance
bills with a maximum maturity period of 180 days
(2018: 180 days).

(0 The Group allows an average credit period ranging
from 90 to 180 days (2018: 90 to 180 days) to its
trade customers.

The following is an aging analysis of trade and bills
receivables (before allowance of impairment) based on
invoice date on date of revenue recognised at the end of
reporting period:

19.E53RKNAE - EREERE
fth FE UK FRIE (47)
B EE -

(@) AEENEH K E it & YR IE ARG IA
ARBIIE -

(b) ZEZBETIAFBRITEALES - 5 H
B&&A180H (20184 : 180H) °

(@ AKEETHESEFNTHEESEN
F902180H (201845 : 90E180R) «

RBESHREZRUREARBRERE
CRIER MR ZRN R B RS ER R
HmBREC AT AN

2019 2018

20195 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET AREEF T

0 - 90 days 0Z90H 426,973 359,818
91 - 180 days 91E180H 149,445 32,792
181- 365 days 181%365H 6,977 62,829
Over 365 days 3658 LA | 204,555 210,574
787,950 666,013

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer.

Details of assessment on expected credit loss are set out in
Note 4a.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

REMEIAHFEFH  AEESHHEER
FPOEEBERIEEEPHNEERE -

BEHEEEBRNFEF BRI 4 o

200 RERFEE/BYRCEFR
T

2019 2018

20195 20184

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETT AREFIT

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERe 406,614 387,273
Pledged bank deposits (note (c)) BERIRITFR(MFECQ) 127,773 172,591
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&I BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31H IFF/E

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 20. B¢ REBESZEYERCEEHE
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (Continued)

(a)

(0

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

The Group’s bank balances and cash denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of
the relevant group entities were as follows:

1TER®@)

() AEBEAEHEEERINGEEE AN
ERHENRITESRERESNT

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

Currency: B
- US Dollars —%7T 8,062 13,152
— Japanese Yen —A 3 5
— Euro Dollars —BTT - 290

Bank balances carry interest at market rate, the
effective interest rates of the bank balances during
the year are as follows:

(b) MITHEBEBWHHERFE  KAFER
TTREBNERN XM

2019 2018
20194 20184

Effective interest rate (per annum) EEFIE(F L)

0.3%-1.3% 0.39%-1.50%

Pledged bank deposits represents pledge to
banks to secure bills payable of approximately
RMB290,000,000 (2018: RMB445,012,000) issued
by the Group.

As at 31 December 2019, the pledged bank
deposits carry fixed interest rate of 1.3% (2018:
fixed interest rate of 1.5%) per annum. The
pledged bank deposits will be released upon the
settlement of relevant bills payables.

Renminbi is not a freely convertible currency and
the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject
to the exchange restriction imposed by the PRC
government. Cash at banks earn interest at floating
rates based on daily bank deposits rate.

REBBFENRE

(00 BEEMBRITFERERABITIELD 2K
B UERAEEE BN ENERE
49 A R #290,000,0007T (20184 = A
R#445,012,0007T) °

MR2019F 12 A31H - BEERRITFER
1#1.3% (2018%F : EEFFE1.5%) 2
EEFFEE - BEERBITFERE
IEERE RN RIRRERRER -

() ARBTIEERS GREELE
& 78 % o B RS 5 0 #0 S B 5 40
R - $RITRERIRIEE BBTERA
SREET BRI BERFE -

B ERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BHRERNE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31HIFF/E

21. SHARE CAPITAL 21. R
2019 2018
20195 20184
Domestic Domestic
Shares H-shares Total shares H-shares Total
RER Hi% @5t RE R HAR w@st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR%Tn AR%ETr ARETT ARETT AR®TR
At the beginning and the  REFIREL
end of the year 256,069 98,243 354,312 256,069 98,243 354,312
22. OTHER RESERVES 22, Hitbf#
Share Statutory Other
premium reserves reserves Total
(Note a) (Note b)
RoEE REARE HibvkiE @t
(PfffzEa) (F=Eb)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR¥ETT AR¥ETT ARETRT
At 1 January 2018 20181 A1H 55,244 86,032 (40,614) 100,662
Transfer from retained earnings EHRARBER - 5,064 - 5,064
Other comprehensive income Hi2HEEA - - 2,190 2,190
At 31 December 2018 and M2018F12A318 %

1 January 2019 20191 A1H 55,244 91,096 (38,424) 107,916
Transfer from retained earnings HEEREET - 5,217 - 5,217
Other comprehensive income Hip2EBA - - (384) (384)
At 31 December 2019 #2019 124318 55,244 9,313 (38,808) 112,749
Notes: ffzE -

(a) Statutory reserves (a) ZEEQAES
Reserve fund and Enterprise expansion find BESRIPEREES

According to the relevant PRC rules and their
articles of association, appropriations from net
profit should be made to the Reserve Fund and the
Enterprise Expansion Fund. The percentages to be
appropriated to the Reserve Fund and Enterprise
Expansion Fund are determined by the respective
board of directors. Upon approval, the Reserve
Fund can be used to offset accumulated losses or
be converted into capital.

RBHEMERER R ESFOEIZMAA
MANABEFBEEREEERES -
FREREBESNEEERESNBENL
HEEBESEET - KHER  HESD
ARERHE R BERR A RBER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
X e
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31H IFF/E
22. OTHER RESERVES (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

Statutory reserves (Continued)

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries are
domestic limited liability companies established
under the PRC Company Law. According to the
relevant PRC rules and their articles of association,
statutory surplus reserve should be appropriated
from net profit of management account under
China Accounting Standard before distribution. The
amount of appropriation should be 10% of profit
after taxation, calculated in accordance with the
PRC accounting rules and regulations, applicable
to enterprises in the PRC, of the Company and
its subsidiaries. The appropriation may cease
to apply if the balance of the statutory surplus
reserve has reached 50% of the entity’s registered
capital. Statutory surplus reserve can be used to
make up prior year losses, to expand operation
or to increase share capital. The Company or its
subsidiaries may capitalise the statutory surplus
reserve by way of bonus issues provided that the
amount of the statutory surplus reserve remaining
after such appropriation shall not be less than 25%
of the registered capital of the Company or its
subsidiaries.

Other reserves

Other reserves as at 31 December 2019 and 2018
represent the difference between the paid up
capital of the subsidiaries and the nominal value of
Company's shares issued in exchange for the equity
interest in the subsidiaries upon the reorganisation
of the Group prior to listing.

Upon application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, the
unlisted equity investment are reclassified from AFS
financial assets to Equity Instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income. The fair value
of the unlisted equity investment is arrived on the
basis of a valuation carried out by a independent
professional.

22. HiufkE )
HiEE : (4%)

(a)

(b)

EELEE(E)

ARRJREETHBERRRBRE AR
ERRANERRAT - iRIBET B
ERRRENERAA  EERRDE
SENEAABRETE S ELRFH
BB IR R B PR AL B8 o BESUEIRE
AR EEE DB RE MR
B AR E) R E B A R A B B AR 0 A
10% &% - WEERBATBEHHED
ERERIMEARMNS0% - RIS
BREXTRABAES - EERHBLIES
A AEEEEFEE  BREFSEM
B o A 2x B o H Y B X ) AT LA B 1T AL
BRI BEERBRIBEEENE - 1
RS EERBABESAERBERER
BEAR AN X B S H T B8 & B R B AR H
25% °

Hitf# 6

20194 2018412 A31 HEYHith &
BB AR EEBRAERNAR N LT
1T E B SRR EU B D R AR W
TR EEMMNZEEE -

720181 A1H BRI %3k E 2R
FEOTRRF - FEL SR ERAIHEES
MEEEFHESBEMZEAKIEA
ABEARNERTE - FEMERE
BEMARBEDNRE - Z2BYEEZAL
EITHEESL -

REBBSFEMREBRNERAT



23.

24,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BHRERNE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31HIFF/E

RETAINED EARNINGS 23. REEF
RMB’000
ARBTT
At 1 January 2018 H2018F 1811 497,344
Profit and total comprehensive income for G [Z i F & 2 EU A EEE
the year 2,569
Transfer to statutory reserves WERSETFAES (5,064)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 72201812 831H&2019F1/1H 494,849
Adjustment on initial application on IFRS EpNEE SR e SRk (26)
Restate balance at 1 January 2019 201991 A1 HMEY &k 494,823
Profit and total comprehensive income for G [E i F & 2 HEUW A EEE
the year 9,454
Transfer to statutory reserves WERSETFANED (5,217)
At 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H 499,060
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. BE5 R EMBEA IR
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
Trade payables B S ENFIE 179,563 209,477
Bills payables (note a) R ES AR ) 290,000 445,012
469,563 654,489
Other tax payables HAb ERTIE 361 2,826
Other payables and accruals oAt S FRIB AT FRIA 31,441 51,038
501,365 708,353

ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
X e
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31H IFF/E
24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The bills are non-interest bearing and have a
maximum maturity of six months. The credit period
granted by the suppliers to the Group ranged
from 30 to 90 days. Management of the Group
monitors the repayment of all payables and ensures
compliance with credit time frame.

The aging analysis of the trade payables and bills
payables at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

2. ES R HMENRE m)
WisE -

(a)

ZERBEARR NI MA KK ACMER
HERS TASBENEERN F30E290
B-AEBEERESERMARNIIA
BB - AERATE RN RBERERES
XA e

BHRNFBARENREERREHRE
RNEZAMNRESITAT -

2019 2018

20196 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET AREEF T

0 - 90 days 0Z90H 334,156 483,814
91 — 180 days 91E180H 135,075 140,937
181 - 365 days 18153651 275 19,130
Over 365 days 365HA E 57 10,608
469,563 654,489

25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

25. 8 AE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREEF T
Billings in advance of performance (Note) J&#) 2 J&FE (M 5E) 243,817 202,042

Note:

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

Upon the adoption of IFRS 15, amounts previously
included as “Receipts in advance” under “Trade
and other payables” (note 24) were reclassified
to contract liabilities. During the year ended 31
December 2019 revenue recognised that was
included in the contract liabilities balance at the
beginning of the year was RMB76,420,000.

PEAE : PRANEIRR B A5 S RIS 155% 1% - 5t

AR B 5 R EafER5xE] (FsE24)
HETYAMEWFREINEEEEN SR
BAEHEE - REIE2019F12A31H
LEFE - fFAGHABFIEHBRNERE
Rk zE A ARE76,420,0007T °

REBBFEMREERNERAF]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BHRERNE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31HIFF/E

26. BORROWINGS 26. fB
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET AREEF T
Current B

Short term bank borrowings REEIRITIE

- Unsecured — 957,528 504,520

Carrying amounts repayable (note d)  ZBfEERMEE(MzEd)

— within 1 year ——FR 957,528 504,520
— more than 1 year but within 2 years —#2iB—FEMER - -
— more than 2 years but within 5 years —iBBMFEERER — S

— over 5 years —RFE - -
957,528 504,520
Less: Amounts classified as current B DER—ERIERESE
liabilities due within 1 year or BB EREKRKERK
contain a repayment on HH &
demand clause 957,528 504,520
Analysed into: Llr=1
- Unsecured — R 957,528 504,520
Notes: Hi7E -
(a) The effective annual interest rates of the (@) MIEBBEFNBRENEAT
borrowings at the reporting date were as follows:
2019 2018
20194 20184
Effective rate BRI 4.81% 5.18%
(b) The carrying amounts of the borrowings (b) 20195 20185 12A31H « BEHMER
approximate their fair values as at 31 December HEREEQAEERS - DRARERRN
2019 and 2018 either due to their short-term R2ARA B B ok A AR fE SR R fE 3 A
maturity or because they bear interest at prevailing BITM SRR B -

market rates throughout their maturity period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

X e
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31H IFF/E
26. BORROWINGS (continued)

(o) The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings
are denominated in the following currencies:

26. fEF(#)

(0 AKEEROEEERNIEEE:

2019 2018

20195 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREFT

RMB AR 957,528 504,520
957,528 504,520

(d) The amounts due are based on scheduled
repayment dates.

(d) BIEFIRTREREEE B HEE

27. DEFERRED INCOME 27 REWA
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREEF T
Government grants received BERBUN B & 4,823 5,177
The government grants from TEDA Administrative AEEEWREREERERZESGHEE L

Commission were received in respect of its acquisition of
land use rights and the project of inspection and storage
centre. The government grants are recognised as deferred
income and are released to income over the periods
necessary to match them with the related costs.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

b {5 PR HE N2 B R IR B T B RO DR A 4 B
T ZEQUNHPSERRRBLTERA - B
AR AR B AR AN B 31 P 75 EARRL AT AU ©

REBBFEMREERNERAF]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31HIFF/E

UNDER FINANCE LEASE

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
leased certain of its buildings under finance lease. The
lease term is 3 years. Interest rate underlying the lease
liabilities/obligations under finance leases is 7.25%. At the
end of the lease term of the finance lease contract, the
Group will have the right to purchase these, buildings at a
nominal purchase price of RMB100. No arrangement has
been entered into for contingent rental payments.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
leased certain of its land use rights, motor vehicles
buildings and machinery under finance lease. The lease
term is 3 years. Interest rate underlying the obligations
under finance leases is 5.225%. At the end of the lease
term of the finance lease contract, the Group will have
the right to purchase these land use rights, buildings and
machinery at a nominal purchase price of RMB100. No
arrangement has been entered into for contingent rental
payments.

As at 31 December 2019, lease liabilities of aggregate
carrying amount of RMB26,866,000 was denominated in
RMB related to leased properties for own use.

28. LEASE LIABILITIES/OBLIGATIONS 28.JHE&/E ®MEHEESEHE

RE E2019F 128318 LtFE AEE
L@EHErsrXHREETEF - HHE3
F-HEAE BMEMEETNIEBIEA
7.25% - REEREE K 2 HEE R -
EEEERNERBEEEARBI00LEE
REEF  WEINEMRAESHRE
B o

REE2018F 128318 IEFE - NEB A
BmERESFXNERAEEFTLHERE - R
BEBFRE:SE HERF  mEHESE
BRI R 55.225% - REMEHREADHZ
THEREWME - AEERBEEAREBEBA
REI10THEEZS T nEMRE - BF LK
B8 o WA E AR &R EHE

MR2019F12A31H EEME AR
26,866,000t M EBE YA AR EE
& HABRHASYMESR -
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Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
X e
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31H IFF/E

LEASE LIABILITIES/OBLIGATIONS 28 . #HE&8f/E ®mEHESTE )

UNDER FINANCE LEASE (continued)

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’'s finance
lease liabilities were repayable as follows:

R20194F 2018512 A31H » AEBRE
HEaBEmERBnT

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payment lease payment
REAEMR REAEATRE
2019 2018 2019 2018
2019% 20185 2019% 20185
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFR ARETT ARETR ARETT

Amounts payable under finance lease: BEMEE TEMFE -
Within one year —5R 41,851 47,676 34,115 45,134
In the second year REZF 48,654 7,559 45,063 7,304
In the third year RE=F 23,479 = 23,263 =
113,984 55,235 102,441 52,438
Less: Future finance charges B BREB (11,543) (2,797) - -
102,441 52,438 102,441 52,438
Less: Amount due within one year shown il : REVAEE MR —FR
under current liabilities Bl (34,115) (45,134)
Amount due after one year shown under  FEREVBEE T —FIRE—FN
non-current liabilities BEBmeE 68,326 7,304

The carrying amounts of the finance lease liabilities
approximate their fair values. As at 31 December 2019,
the Group has investment properties under finance leases
with net book value of approximately RMBNil (2018:
RMB9,056,000) (Note 16), buildings under finance leases
with net book value of approximately RMB37,816,000
(2018: RMB86,008,000) (Note 15), machinery under
finance leases with net book value of approximately
RMBNil (2018:RMB1,368,000) (Note 15), furniture and
office equipment under finance leases with net book value
of approximately RMBNil (2018: RMB1,186,000) (Note 15)
and motor vehicles under finance leases with net book
value of approximately RMBNil (2018: RMB3,632,000) (Note
15).

MEREEECEEOEREAAEEMN
o M2019F12A831H  REEUFEM
ERBZREMENEMFERNARE
Z0(2018%F + AR #9,056,0007T) (Hi&E
16)  LBEREREZEFHNERLFER
4 AN R #37,816,0007T(2018%F : A R ¥
86,008,0007T) (MIzE15) « LR EMAERHE
ZHENEMFEANARBZL(2018
F: AR®1,368,0007T) (FIaE15) « SAG
BHRERAZRAMRAERENRAFE
B ANRBEZIT(20184: ARM1,186,000
L) (MF15) RURERERE 2 RBHER
HFEANARBZIL(2018F : AR
3,632,0007T) (fI5E15) °

REBBFEMREERNERAF]



29.

30.

31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BHRERNE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31HIFF/E

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 29. EERIBEERE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARMT T
At 1 January M1A1H 57,923 56,899

Deferred tax charged/credited to the — FRMR B REM 2= A
statement of profit or loss and the  RINK/ st ARGEER A
comprehensive income during the

year (926) 1,024
At 31 December M12A31H 56,997 57,923
DIVIDENDS 30. R E
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final EEe@A NREEE2019F12A318 1
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil). FERIKE (20185 : &) -
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 31. EEEH#

2019 2018

20195 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREFT

Pledged bank deposits EERRITER 127,773 172,591
Investment properties wEYHE - 9,056
Buildings BT 37,816 86,008
Furniture and office equipment REMMAERE - 1,186
Motor vehicles RE - 3,632
Machinery M s - 1,368
165,589 273,841
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #(Z2019412H31H I F/F

3. CASH GENERATED USED IN 32. K&TEffEBES

OPERATIONS
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Profit before income tax R PRS2 A& A1 69,559 47,738
Adjustments for: FMUATIER EHL AR -
Interest income FEWA (20,444) (13,570)
Finance costs BMEMAK 42,416 32,134
Depreciation for property, plant M - WERRETE
and equipment 14,675 15,187
Depreciation of right of use assets EREEENE 10,009 =
Change in fair value of investment WEWEA R BEZES)
property 3,700 (4,100)
Amortisation of land use rights + 3 A R 531 531
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BE R&E
and equipment &8 333 253
Impairment loss of trade, bills and other & 5 U FIE - fEUZE1E K
receivable Hh FE WK IR (E S 18 37,172 41,028
Deferred income amortisation i AL N iz (354) (354)
Share of profit of investments RAEREARNEG
accounted for using equity method WEFE (15,793) (17,324)
Operating cash flow before changes &EZELEFHFINLERS
in working capital: mE 141,804 101,523
Decrease in inventories FERL 433 23,605
Increase in trade, bills and B RNHIE - BBER
other receivables R E At FE U FRIBIE N (417,342) (47,497)
Decrease in trade and B 5 I E At & FRIBR
other payables (206,988) (536,547)
Increase in contract liabilities AR EEEN 41,775 202,042
Net cash used in operations activities AL = EBFTAHIRES F58 (440,318) (256,874)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited —~ XF&SFEVRERMRMDER AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BHRERNE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31HIFF/E

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 33.REIHELEEBYHE
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TRFMASERMETHEENEEE
arising from financing activities, including both cash B BREASIIIERSEE - rﬂéﬂ%@??ﬂi
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing MAEERERSRERXHARASARER
activities are those for which cash flow were, or future RAEBEEHRERERDEARE T
cash flows will be classified in the Group's consolidated BREREMAE -

statement of cash flows from financing activities.

Lease
liabilities/
obligations
under finance
leases Borrowings Total
HEaE/
MEHESEE (EE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT

At 1 January 2018 K2018F1H1H 99,272 319,995 419,267
Accrued interest FEETFI & 6,237 25,897 32,134
Less: interest paid o BRFLE (6,237) (25,897) (32,134)
Proceeds from financing %Q%ﬁﬁfﬁ‘i\fﬁj\é’\]

cash inflows PR FRT - 1,278,018 1,278,018
Financing cash outflows mﬂﬁfﬁimuﬂj (46,834) (1,093,493) (1,140,327)
At 31 December 2018 and R2018F12A31H &

1 January 2019 20191 H1H 52,438 504,520 556,958
Accrued interest FEEHRR 11,380 31,036 42,416
Less: Interest paid o BRAE (11,380) (31,036) (42,416)
Proceeds from financing cash REABMEBRSRAK

inflows FiS #0R 100,000 1,439,475 1,539,475
Financing cash outflows MERE AL (98,016) (986,467) (1,084,483)
At 31 December 2019 7K2019F12H31H 54,422 957,528 1,011,950
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
X e
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31H IFF/E

34. COMMITMENTS 34. 7&iE

(i) The Group leases various offices warehouses and (i) AEERBETARESLHERZME
vehicles under non-cancellable operating lease EZEANRRE - RERRE - HEH
agreements. The lease terms are between 1 and BNF—FEZRF2H B2HHEE
5 years, and the majority of lease agreements are B A N HEHRRIETE T AL -
renewable at the end of the lease period at market
rate.
The Group’s future aggregate minimum lease rental BB REEEHERNEE B
expenses in respect of non-cancellable operating HARRFERERIBARENOT

leases are as follows:

2018
20184
RMB’000
Buildings BF ARETT
Within one year —FR 1,353
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEERF
(BIEEREMF) -
1,353
2018
20184
RMB’000
Motor vehicles RE ARBTT
Within one year —FR 1,431
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEERF
(BIEEEME) 636
2,067
(ii) The future aggregate minimum lease receipts under (i) RIBHGEEMEEEN T BHLY
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of FAEMNRRRERSWAEZEINT :
investment properties are as follows:
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBTFT
Within one year —FR 14,237 11,191
In the second to fifth year inclusive £ —EF A 4F
(BREEMEF) 9,000 5,458
Over fifth year AFLAE - -
23,237 16,649

218 Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited  K3/& 8T EREBIHDBR AR
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36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # 2201912531 H1FF/E

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2019, the Group has outstanding
guarantee of approximately RMB315,818,182 (2018:
RMB304,424,242) provided to Tedahang, a joint
venture with 60% interest owned by the Group, for its
bank borrowing facilities of RMB350,000,000 (2018:
RMB350,000,000). The borrowings drawn down by the
joint venture as at 31 December 2019 was approximately
RMB34,181,818 (2018: RMB45,575,758).

The Directors of the Company consider that the fair value
of this outstanding financial guarantee is insignificant at
initial recognition and the possibility of default is remote.
Accordingly, no value has been recognised at the inception
of the guarantee contracts and on the balance sheets as at
31 December 2019 and 2018.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

(a) Transactions/balances with other state
owned enterprises in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment
currently predominated by enterprises directly
or indirectly owned or controlled by the PRC
government (hereinafter collectively referred to as
“state-controlled entities”). The directors of the
Company consider those state-controlled entities
are independent third parties so far as the Group's
business transactions with them are concerned.

During the year, the Group’s significant transactions
with these state controlled entities include
purchases of raw materials for trading purposes and
fuel for transportation vehicles used in the logistics
business. As at year end, majority of the Group's
cash and bank balances and borrowings are with
state controlled banks.

(b) Key management compensation

The details of remuneration of key management
personnel are set out in Note 9.

35.

36.

MBEREME

20195612 A31H - AEBERFET(R
EEBEAONBRAKHEEARE)MRITHE
A5 AR #315,818,1827L(2018%F © A
K #6304,424,2427 ) iR M R BT HOHE AR
#9 A R #350,000,0007C(20185F : AR ¥
350,000,0007T ) ° # £20195F12A318 1k
FE ZAELRRCRERMERABOARE
34,181,8187L(2018% : AR #45,575,758
JT) °

RAREFRE  ZARBIIMBEROIAR
BERAVISERBL TEX - BAEATREM
B e B - RET L IERE A8 & R2019
FR2018F12A31EMEERBERPILE
HERBMAEE-

EXRBELXRS

() EEMPEBELENRS
fmER
AEEKENEBERBRKETEK
FEZXEERBEEIIEHNEEAT
FREAIBELEDIELE - ARAE
ERR - RAREBEEFFETHER
RpMs > %SEALEBELFE=
¥ o

FAAREESEFEELENEKR
RXHBEA/RZHBENBERMBHIAR
YMIREB AR ERBEAOMRE - B
FE > AEBEABOEE LRITHER
UNEEFAREFREERITRAEE
RITEE -

(b) TEEE AEHMH
TEEEABFHMOFBHNMEI -
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36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 36 EABESRS 2

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

For the transactions constitute connected
transactions under GEM Listing Rules, please
refer to “Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions” under “Directors’ Report”.

The followings are the details of continuing
connected transaction of the Group during the year
31 December 2019 and 2018

BERBKGEMETMRRNBETHRERS
MRS F2HEEEREATIE
BRGRISEMERS |6

K& E & £20199F K2018F12A31
BIEFEMNFHERER SFBHINN
™

2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFTT
Tianjin Fengtian Logistics will provide 22 M ¥ %[22 H
logistics services and supply chain  £EIRHFHE KX
solutions for automobiles and car  JFEEHYRRG &
components to the Toyota Group — ERESEEER 5 RARTS
(note 1) (BtsE1) 15,414 17,839
Sales of frozen meat and provision — ZEETT(KE) 2 HEYR
of the related storage, logistics BRABRAATR
and logistics supporting services SHERRA G RIR M
by Tedahang Cold Chain Logistics AR « ¥R MY
Co., Ltd to the Company (note 2)  FERBARHS (FizE2) - 30,716

Notes:

1. Tianjin Fengtian Logistics Co., Ltd (KZZ
MR AER AR, a sino-foreign equity joint
venture incorporated in the PRC on 19 July
1996, which is owned as to 52% by the
Company, 36.2% by Toyota Tsusho, 7.3%
by Kamigumi Company Limited (BZ#k=&
#t_F#H) and 4.5% by Toyota Transportation
Corporation (AR EZ H#& XK &11); and
Tianjin Fengtian Logistics Co., Ltd. is a
subsidiary of the Company under the GEM
Listing Rules.

2. Tedahang Cold Chain Logistics Co., Ltd.
(FETKRE)REYREB AT, a company
established in Dongjiang Bonded Free Port,
Tianjin, PRC with limited liability and owned
as to 60% by the Company and 40% by
Chia Tai Logistics Company Limited (IE X
¥ m AR A 7)), and Tedahang Cold Chain
Logistics Co., Ltd. is a joint venture of the
Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

BEE

1. REEHWARERLAR —FKR
19967 A19H8 f£+ Bl sE A 32 A9
FINEEDE  BARE - EHEiB
B BAKKNEH LARAARE
M@k et o B HEE52%
36.2%  7.3% M4.5%FE 35 o 1B iE
GEMETRA] - KIELHYRER
ARBARBKMB AR °

2. FEACRER)AEMRARAR
—RRPBKERERHABREL
MAEREERT  AARTRIER
YIRBIRATDRIHEE60%&40%
M o MIEGEMEMMRA - FiEfT
(RE)VREMRBR AT ARAT

WEERTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HIBRRHAIE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A31HIFF/E
36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 36 EABESRS )
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

In addition to the transactions and balance KRB ERSERENR S K EH
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statement, the I REBRIEBREARS ©

Group entered in to related party transaction.

2019 2018

20194 20184

Name of related party Nature of transaction RMB’000 RMB'000
BEL AR REME AR¥T T AREFT
Tedahang Interest income 6,344 -

TIETT MEHA

37. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 37.8@AQTHMBRAENER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December

®W12H31A
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT AREEFTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W~ BB KRB 2,226 2,533
Investment properties KREME 126,000 128,100
Investments in subsidiaries REBRARMIEE 180,321 180,321
Investments in jointly controlled entities 7 REI1ZHIEEEHITE 174,631 174,631
Investments in associates REERNaIRE 11,310 11,310
Equity instruments at fair value through BE#BE M2 EUEEIE A1
other comprehensive income BEARERKE 60,410 18,500
554,898 515,395
Current assets RENEE
Inventories rE — 344
Trade and other receivables B S kE M EIFIE 1,386,208 1,176,253
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note a) FEURHTE A FIRIE (M sFa) 33,912 44,627
Pledged bank deposits BERIRITFR 127,773 172,591
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEED 141,871 137,150
1,689,764 1,530,965
Total assets RAE 2,244,662 2,046,360
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EakEE
Equity T
Share capital &N 354,312 354,312
Other reserves (note c) E R (MR 99,997 98,883
Retained earnings (note c) REB BN (7T 200,160 217,002
Total equity RS 654,469 670,197
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37. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 37. EBAARNERIRNER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (&)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

As at 31 December

®W12H31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR® T AREEFTT
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 RHADERFRIA 469,380 723,089
Amounts due to subsidiaries (note b)  FEfTHIE A R (M 5Eb) 71,793 137,118
Current income tax liabilities EHMGEHRAE 256 250
Lease liabilities/obligation under HEERE RMEABEERMT
finance lease 21,922 -
Borrowings B 957,528 499,520
1,520,879 1,359,977
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEAE 15,661 16,186
Lease liabilities/obligation under HEAE REHERE
finance lease 53,653 -
69,314 16,186
Total liabilities wWaE 1,590,193 1,376,163
Total equity and liabilities HREZKEE 2,244,662 2,046,360
Net current assets REBEETFHE 168,885 170,988
Total assets less current liabilities ZAEERTIAE 723,783 686,383
These financial statements were approved and authorised MR HRESEMN202063 278
for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2020 and HERERETE  WHATATREES -
were signed on its behalf by:
Yang Weihong Zheng Yuying
BEA B8R
Director Director
2 -
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37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &[Z2019%12H31HIFFE
INFORMATION ABOUT THE 37. 8@AATBBRIEHER

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Amounts due from subsidiaries are non-trade
nature, unsecured, interest free and recoverable on
demand.

(b) Amounts due to subsidiaries are non-trade nature,
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

(%)

PaE

(@) MRMBARREBIBESNE  RE

HH

PRt RIZEKAYRE -

(b) ENMBARREBIESNE  "E

G

et B RARERER -

(0 Reserves of the Company: (0 AARMHEE
Share Other Statutory  Retained
premium  reserves  reserves  earnings Total
RVEE HttRE EEiEE  REEA B3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2018 20181418 55,244 - 38,734 175,950 269,928

Transfer from retained earnings ¥4 B RZ A7 -
Profit and total comprehensive ~ FEEF R EHEMALE

2,715 (2,715) -

income for the year - 2,190 - 43,767 45,957
At 31 December 2018 and M2018%F12A318 %

1 January 2019 20191 A1H 55,244 2,190 41,449 217,002 315,885
Transfer from retained earnings % B R & 27 - - 1,498 (1,498) -
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FEEBEREZEEBLEE

loss for the year - (384) - (15,344) (15,728)
At 31 December 2019 2019124318 55,244 1,806 42,947 200,160 300,157

For details of the statutory reserves, please refer to the
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

BEEERAESNFE  B2HAHYBHRE

fizE22 °
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38.

39.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The outbreak of the new coronavirus pneumonia
(“COVID-19") in January 2020 has had a serious impact
on the economy and society in the PRC and affected all
aspects of the economy, especially affecting transportation
companies. Recently, COVID-19 has spread rapidly across
the world, and had an increasing impact on the overall
economic situation, while the duration of its impact is
still uncertain. The impact of COVID-19 on the Group's
operations is mainly reflected in three aspects:

(1) There are increasing uncertainties in the profit for
the year. Although most of the Group’s companies
have resumed operations, there are significant
impacts on the Group's performance as the
production capacity of upstream and downstream
enterprises, especially the manufacturing sector, has
not been fully recovered;

(2) Liquidity risk has increased. As the liquidity of
some small and medium enterprises has been
severely affected and cash recovery has been
slow, the turnover rate of the Group's receivables
has decreased and the risk of ECL of some trade
receivables has increased,;

(3) Volatility of asset valuation has increased. The
valuation of assets such as stocks, crude oil and
gold, strains significantly coupled with severely
weak investment demand, which in turn will
definitely affect the valuation level and profitability
of the Group’s operating assets.

The Group will keep an eye on the COVID-19 outbreak and
continue to assess its impact on the financial position and
operating performance of the Group. The Group will also
take necessary measures to reduce risks. As of the date of
signing of the consolidated financial statements, relevant
assessments are still in progress.

AUTHORISATION OF ISSUE OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March
2020.

38.

39.

MR EIH

202051 AR ERFHEEARR S b & ([ #72
ik DRIEHPEEELETREELE -
MEEEBRSEETE  HEERFHER
BERHCRTERMABEE - 08 - HEMHA
EERBEASTREE  HEBLET R
FELEMK - FEBHMTEEHEE - #2
RHAREELN T ETERBCE =[]
m :

(1) 2FRNNTHEEEER - BALE
BARSARDIEESE  BARELE
TR R BUE R A EERE 1K
ETR  HAKENFERXE TN
B

(2) REBUERBREKN - BoH/NEERD
XA EERESE ReDFEE K
SEEUEKAEETR  ¥0EH
FEUGRIE R E MR AR K -

(3) BEMENKSHEEN - RE - A
EeEEEMEAREK REFL
BENE  BUPEIAREELEE
BEMMGENRFMAFEED -

AEBRBZREENBHRAEENERE
W R R E AR B B R AR R
RNTE - WKW ERRFERR - 22
REMBRAEEZA - BRFGIDERT
f o

RETIRSHMBERSR

ZEESDN2020F3 827 B E R RET) B
AHPBHRE -

REBBSFEMREBRNERAT





